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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Jana Small
Finance Bank Limited will be held at shorter notice, on Monday, 30t May 2022 at 3:30 a=m / p.m
at the Registered Office of the Bank situated at The Fairway Business Park, First Floor, # 10/1,
11/2 & 12/2B Off Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road, Next to EGL Business Park, Challaghatta,
Bengaluru - 560071, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Approval and Adoption of Audited Financial Statements of the Bank for the year ended 31st
March 2022 along with Auditors’ Report and Directors’ Report:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 and Profit
and Loss Account of the Bank for the year ended 31st March 2022, together with Cash Flow
Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022, Notes to Financial Statements, Directors’
Report and Auditors’ Report thereon and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT the Bank do hereby adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March
2022, the Profit & Loss Account for the year ended on that date along with Cash Flow
Statement, Notes to Financial Statements, Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon
for the year ending on that date.”

2. Appointment of Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan (DIN- 00163276) as a Director who retires by
rotation:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification
as an Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Section 152 of the Companies Act,
2013, Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan (DIN- 00163276), who retires by rotation at this Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-
appointed as a director of the Bank.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To re- appoint Mr. R. Ramaseshan (DIN :00200373) as an Independent Director of the
Bank:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules made thereunder read
with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force),
Mr. R. Ramaseshan (DIN :00200373), who was appointed as an Independent Director of
the Bank for a term of five years up to February 07, 2023, be and is hereby re-appointed
as an Independent Director of the Bank for a period of 3 years with effect from February
08, 2023 and he shall not be liable to retire by rotation.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Ajay Kanwal, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
and Mrs. Lakshmi R N, Company Secretary of the Bank be and are hereby severally
authorised for and on behalf of the Bank to do or cause to do all acts, matters, deeds and
things and to execute all documents and to take all steps and do all things and give such
directions as may be required, necessary, expedient or desirable for giving effect to the
above resolutions and make all such filings as are required under the Companies Act,
2013.”

4. To appoint Mr. K. Srinivas Nayak as an Independent Director of the Bank:
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and 160 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under and other applicable laws, if any,
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as
amended from time to time, Mr. K. Srinivas Nayak (DIN: 09094351), who was appointed
as an Additional Director (Independent) of the Bank by the Board of Directors with effect
from May 05, 2022 and who holds office until the date of this Annual General Meeting in
terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, be and is hereby appointed as Director
(Independent) of the Bank, not liable to retire by rotation, for a period of Five (5) years up
to May 04, 2027.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Ajay Kanwal, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
and Mrs. Lakshmi R N, Company Secretary of the Bank be and are hereby severally
authorised for and on behalf of the Bank to do or cause to do all acts, matters, deeds and
things and to execute all documents and to take all steps and do all things and give such
directions as may be required, necessary, expedient or desirable for giving effect to the
above resolutions and make all such filings as are required under the Companies Act,
2013

5. To pay fees or compensation exceeding fifty percent (50%) of the total remuneration
payable to all the Non-Executive Directors to Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia (DIN: 05344972).

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 17 (6) (a) and (ca) and other applicable
Regulation(s), if any, of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and applicable Provisions(s), if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, the consent of the Members of the
Bank be and is hereby accorded to pay fees or compensation, if any to Dr. Subhash C.
Khuntia (DIN: 05344972), Independent and Non- Executive Director, exceeding fifty
percent (50%) of the total annual remuneration / fees payable to all the Non-Executive
Directors during the Financial Year 2022-23.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Ajay Kanwal, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
and Mrs. Lakshmi R N, Company Secretary of the Bank be and are hereby severally
authorised for and on behalf of the Bank to do or cause to do all acts, matters, deeds and
things and to execute all documents and to take all steps and do all things and give such
directions as may be required, necessary, expedient or desirable for giving effect to the
above resolutions and make all such filings as are required under the Companies Act,
2013
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6. To approve raising funds through issue of Debt instruments:
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in terms of Section 42, Section 71 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14(2) of the Companies (Prospectus and
Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and other relevant rules notified there under; and in
accordance with (i) the provisions of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021; (ii) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956; (iii) the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Bank; and (iv) SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; and subject to consent of (i) the relevant
stock exchange; (ii) all other concerned statutory and regulatory authorities (if and to the
extent necessary); and (iii) such other approvals, permissions and sanctions as may be
necessary, approval of the members of the Bank be and is hereby accorded for
borrowing/raising funds in INR / foreign currency by issue of debt instruments in domestic
and/or overseas market, by issue of debt instruments (including bonds, non-convertible
debentures, notes etc.), secured or unsecured, in one or more tranches (the “Debentures”)
by way of private placement or public issue or otherwise and as per the structure and within
the limits permitted by RBI, MCA and other regulatory authorities from eligible investors of
an amount not exceeding Rs. 500 Crore in FY 2022-23. The yield for all Debentures (which
includes coupon and redemption premium, but excludes processing fees which is payable
additionally) issued during FY 2022-23 will be decided by board of directors of the Bank
(“Board of Directors”) for each tranche depending on financial market conditions.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Ajay Kanwal, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
and Mrs. Lakshmi R N, Company Secretary of the Bank be and are hereby severally
authorised for and on behalf of the Bank to do or cause to do all acts, matters, deeds and
things and to execute all documents and to take all steps and do all things and give such
directions as may be required, necessary, expedient or desirable for giving effect to the
above resolutions and make all such filings as are required under the Companies Act,
2013.

By and Order of the Board
For Jana Small Finance Bank Limited

Lakshmi R.N.
Company Secretary
ACS - 14234

Place : Bangalore
Date: 17-May-2022
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Note :

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Bank.

2. The proxy in order to be valid shall be lodged at the registered office address of the Bank
not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

3. Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013, is annexed to the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

4. In the case of corporate member, it is requested to send a certified copy of the Board
Resolution authorising the representative to attend and vote on its behalf at the meeting.

5. The documents referred to in the Resolutions can be inspected at the Registered Office of
the Bank in Bengaluru during 11 am to 5 pm on all working days of the Bank.

6. Pursuant to General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May 2020, issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, the meeting can be attended through video conferencing. The link is

https://bluejeans.com/957215270

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013.

Item No. 3 :

Mr. R. Ramaseshan were appointed as an Independent Directors for a period of 5 (Five) years
effective from February 08, 2018 and their first term as an Independent Directors will come to end
on February 07, 2023. In this connection, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and considering the skills, experience, knowledge, performance and
contribution to the Board of the Bank, the Board has approved and recommended the re-
appointment of Mr. R. Ramaseshan for a period of three (3) years with effect from February 08,
2023 subject to the approval of Shareholders. The Board is of the opinion that the continued
association of Mr. R. Ramaseshan would benefit the Bank.

The Bank has received necessary consent and disclosures as per the requirement of Companies
Act, 2013 and Rules made there under for such re-appointment and also declaration to the effect
that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in sub section (6) of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to Section 149 (read with Schedule 1V) and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the approval of Shareholders by way of special
resolution is required for the appointment of Independent Directors for the second term. In view of
this, the Board recommends the Special Resolution as set out in Item no. 3 for the approval of the
Members.

Except Mr. R. Ramaseshan in their respective resolutions, none of the other Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel or their relatives is interested or concerned financially or otherwise in the
said Resolutions.
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Brief profile of the Directors being re-appointed;

i. Mr. R. Ramaseshan

R. Ramaseshan has an extensive experience in the Government as an officer of the IAS, and in the
private sector as the MD & CEO of a commodity exchange. His predominant experience is in public
finance, tax reforms, and equity and commodity markets. Passionate about creating a national
market for agricultural produce to help farmers, he currently works with over six states to reform
their agricultural market system. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Engineering and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration with specialisation in Finance. He is a fellow member of the
Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of India.

Item no. 4:

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of
Directors of the Bank have appointed Mr. K. Srinivas Nayak as an Additional Director (Independent
Director) of the Bank with effect from May 05, 2022.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, any Additional Director
appointed by the Board will hold office up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
Hence, the approval of the Members of the Bank is required to appoint Mr. K. Srinivas Nayak as
Director of the Bank. Also, as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, appointment of Independent Director require approval of the Shareholders by
way of a Special Resolution within three (3) months from the date of such appointment.
Accordingly, the Board recommends the special Resolution as set out in item no. 4 for the approval
of the Members of the Bank.

Mr. Srinivas Nayak fulfils the conditions for independence specified in the Act, the Rules made
thereunder and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
such other laws / regulations for the time being in force, to the extent applicable to the Bank. Brief
is provided below.

Except Mr. K. Srinivas Nayak, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their
relatives is interested or concerned financially or otherwise in the said Resolution.

Brief profile of Mr. K. Srinivas Nayak

Mr. Nayak has had career of over 30 years managing and leading Technology projects and services
in Financial Services. He has built and led multi-location Technology teams to deliver technology
solutions deployed globally. Mr. Nayak has handled global responsibilities for software
development and infrastructure services delivering global programmes. More recently, he has
served as the CTO for a UK based Reg-Tech start-up. Mr. Nayak holds a Bachelor's degree in
Engineering.

Item no. 5:

As per the requirement of Regulation 17 (6) (a) and (ca) SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, if any
fees and compensation payable to a single Non-Executive Director exceeds fifty percent (50%) of
the total remuneration payable to all the Non-Executive Directors, the same shall require approval
of Shareholders by way of a Special Resolution.
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Pursuant to above said provision, the Bank hereby seeking the approval of the shareholders for
payment remuneration / fees to Dr. Subhash C Khuntia, which is likely to exceed fifty percent (50%)
of the total remuneration payable to all the Non-Executive Directors during the financial year 2022-
23.

Details of the remuneration / fees payable to Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia is given below:

Sl. No. Particulars Amount (in Rupees)
1 Part time Chairman Remuneration 15,00,000 p.a
(Approved by the Reserve Bank of India)
2 Sitting fees for attending each Board meeting 50,000
3 Sitting fees for attending each Committee meeting 25,000

In view of the above, the Board recommends the special resolution as set out in item no. 5 for the
approval of the Shareholders of the Bank.

Except Dr. Subhash Khuntia, no other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives is
concerned or interested financially or otherwise, in the said Resolution.

Item no. 6:

As per the provisions of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 14 of the Chapter
Il of the Companies Act, 2013 the Bank is hereby seeking your approval for borrowing/raising
funds in INR / foreign currency by issue of debt instruments in domestic and/or overseas market,
by issue of debt instruments, including bonds, non-convertible debentures, notes etc., by way of
private placement or public issue or otherwise amounting to Rs. 500 Crores for the FY - 2022-23.

The Board recommends the special resolution as set out in item no. 6 for the approval of the
Shareholders of the Bank.

None of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives is concerned or interested financially
or otherwise, in the said Resolution.

By and Order of the Board
For Jana Small Finance Bank Limited

Lakshmi R.N.
Company Secretary
ACS - 14234

Place : Bangalore
Date: 17-May-2022




«JJANA SMALL FINANCE BANK

JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
REGD OFF: THE FAIRWAY BUSINESS PARK #10/1,11/2,12/2B,0FF DOMLUR KORAMANGALA INNER RING
ROAD, NEXT TO EMBASSY GOLF LINKS, CHALLAGHATTA,
BANGALORE - 560071
CIN: U65923KA2006PLC040028

ATTENDANCE SLIP
16% Annual General Meeting, Monday 30t May, 2022 at 3:30 a-m / p.m

Name & Address of Shareholder Registered Folio No. / DP ID & | No. of Shares held
Client ID

| hereby record my presence at the 16t Annual General Meeting of the Bank held on Monday, 30t May,
2022 at the registered office of the Bank situated at The Fairway Business Park #10/1,11/2,12/2b,0ff
Domlur Koramangala Inner Ring Road, Next To Embassy Golf Links, Challaghatta, Bangalore - 560071 at

3:30 a=m/p.m.

If shareholder, please sign here If proxy, please sign here

Shareholders/ Proxies are requested to fill up the attendance slip and hand it over at the venue.
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: UB5923KA2006PTC040028

Name of the Company/Bank: Jana Small Finance Bank Limited

Registered office: The Fairway Business Park, #10/1,11/2 & 12/2B, Off Domlur, Koramangala
Inner Ring Road, Next to EGL Business Park, Challaghatta, Bengaluru - 560 071

Name of the member (S) :
Registered Address :
Email Id :

Folio No./Client ID :
DPID:

I/We, being the member (s) of ............... shares of the above named Bank, hereby appoint
1. Name:.vvrieeeeee

AdAress : ..cccvveceereceeeeren,

E-mail 1d @ e,

Signature :................ , or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 16t Annual
General Meeting of the Bank, to be held on the 30th May 2022 at 3:30 a-m- / p.m at the registered
office of the Bank and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated
in the Notice.

Signed this ...... day of ............ 2022

Signature of shareholder : Affix
Revenue

Signature of Proxy holder(s): Stamp

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Bank, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.




BOARD’S REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting to you the Sixteenth Annual Report of the
Company and the Fifth Annual Report of Jana Small Finance Bank Limited together with the
Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

1 FINANCIAL SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHTS, OPERATIONS, STATE OF AFFAIRS :
Rupees in crores)

Particulars FY 2021-2022 FY 2020-2021
Total Income 3,050.30 2,732.79
Interest Expended 1,336.75 1,234.58
Operating Expenses 1,138.82 1,047.31
Provisions and contingencies 569.32 366.59
Profit for the year 5.40 84.31
Add:'surplus/(loss) brought forward from (4,083.15) (4,126.66)
previous year

Amount available for appropriation 0.00
Appropriations:

Dividend & Dividend Tax 0.00
Transfer to Statutory Reserve under section 17

of the Banking Regulation Act and other 5.28 40.82
reserves

Surplus carried to Balance Sheet (4,083.02) 4,083.17

Note: - Figures for the previous year’s figures have been restated wherever necessary, to align
with the figures for the current year.

2 CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY :
There is no change in the business of the Bank during the year.
3 DIVIDEND :

Your Board has not declared or recommended any dividend for the financial year under
review.

4 ISSUANCE OF CAPITAL :

During the year under review, 2,884 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- per share were
allotted, in terms of exercise of units against Restricted Stock Units, under the ESOP scheme
to a few employees of the Bank and 681,423 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- per share
were allotted in terms of a preferential issue to Jana Holdings Limited.

As on 31st March, 2022, the paid up share capital stood at Rs, 201,41,15,640 divided into
5,14,11,564 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and paid up preference sharesul of
Rs. 150,00,00,000 divided into 15,00,00,000 preference shares of Rs. 10/- each.

Funds raised and Credit Ratings :
During the year the bank raised funds by way of issue of Inter-Bank Participatory Certificates

(IBPCs). The outstanding IBPCs as on 31st Mar 2022 was Rs. 1,962.75 crore, outstanding with
five banks viz. Federal Bank Ltd. (Rs. 750 crore,) Axis Bank Ltd. (Rs. 535.75 crores), HDFC



Bank Ltd (Rs. 382.50 crore), IDFC First Bank Ltd.(Rs. 200 crore) and Bandhan Bank (Rs. 94.50
crore.).

During the year, the Bank raised Rs. 50 crores from Vivriti Capital by issuing sub-ordinated
debt. Sub-ordinated debt of Rs. 255 crores from CDC was prepaid and the tenure of the
remaining Rs. 75 crores was extended up to 7th July 2027.

The bank also availed a refinance facility of Rs. 440 crores from SIDBI during the year.

ICRA reaffirmed its rating of [[CRA] BBB (stable) in March, 2022 for the subordinate debt for
an amount of Rs. 456 crore.

Capital Adequacy :

As per operating guidelines for Small Finance Banks, the Bank is required to maintain a
minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio of 15% with a minimum Common Equity Tier [ (CET I) CAR
of 7.5%.

As on March 31, 2022, the Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Bank stood at 15.26% and the
Common Equity Tier I ratio stood at 11.83%.

BOARD MEETINGS:

Board meetings are held at regular intervals with a time gap of not more than 120 days
between two consecutive meetings. The Board of Directors met 8 (Eight) times during the
financial year. Quarterly meetings were held on 13th May 2021, 8t September 2021,
12th November 2021 and 9th February 2022 to approve financial results and deliberate
various business updates.

Also, the Board met at shorter notice, on 13t August 2021, 31st August 2021 to accord
approval for preferential issue and non-convertible debenture issue. Further, the Board met
on 12t April 2021 and 29t March 2022 for approval of the budget plan for the FY 2021-22
and FY 2022-23 respectively.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANANGERIAL PERSONNEL:

During the year under review, there were changes in the composition of the Board.
Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia was appointed as an Independent Director of the Bank for a period of
five years w.ef 28th July 2021. The Reserve Bank of India vide its letter No.
DoR.GOV.N0.51833/29.44.001/2021-22 dated 25t October 2021, gave its approval for the
appointment of Dr. Subhash Khuntia as a part time chairman of the Bank for a period of three
years effective from 25t October 2021. Mrs. Vijayalatha Reddy step down on 5t April 2021
on completion of 70 years of age pursuant to the RBI circular. Mr. P. R. Seshadri has resigned
from the directorship of the Bank w.e.f 29t March 2022.

Further, Mr. Kapil Krishan, Chief Financial Officer of the Bank resigned with effect from 31st
October 2021 and Mr. Buvanesh Tharashankar was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer
of the bank on 9t February 2022.

As on 31st March 2022 the composition of the Board was as below :

1. Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia - Part Time Chairman, Independent Director
2. Mr. Ajay Kanwal - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
3. Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan - Non Executive Director

4. Mr. Vikram Gandhi - Independent Director

5. Mr. R. Ramaseshan - Independent Director



6. Ms. Chitra Talwar - Independent Director
7. Mr. Eugene Karthak - Independent Director
8. Mr. Rahul Khosla - Non Executive Director

As per Section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, appointment of Independent Directors
for second term requires prior approval of shareholders by way of a Special Resolution.
Mr. R. Ramaseshan, who is completing his first term as an Independent Director of the Bank
will come to an end on 7th February 2023. Hence necessary special resolution in this regard
has been included as an agenda item in the Notice of Annual General Meeting.

As on the date of this report, there is a change in the composition of the Board as compared
to 31st March 2022. Mr. Eugene Karthak, Independent Director of the Bank has resigned from
the Board of Directors with effect from 9t April 2022.

Further, the Board has appointed Mr. K. Srinivas Nayak as an Additional Director
(Independent) pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from 5t May
2022. As required under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, a special resolution has to be passed in the ensuing Annual meeting or within three (3)
months from the date of appointment, whichever is earlier, in connection with the
appointment of Mr. K. Srinivas Nayak. Hence necessary special resolution in this regard has
been included as an agenda item in the Notice of Annual General Meeting.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Company has received necessary declarations from each Independent Directors
pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he/she meets
the criteria of Independence laid down in the provisions of Section 149(6) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

Further, the Board hereby confirms that all Independent Directors of the Company fulfil the
conditions as specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013 and all Independent Directors are
independent of the management.

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY, BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT:

There were no material changes and commitments between the end of the financial year and
the date of the Report, which affect the financial position of the Company.

COMPOSITION OF AUDIT & COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE :

The Company has complied with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, relating to the composition of the Audit Committee. As on 31st March 2022, the
composition of the Audit Committee was as follows:

Mr. Eugene Karthak (Committee Chairman)
Mr. R. Ramaseshan

Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan

Mr. Vikram Gandhi

Mr. Rahul Khosla

The terms of reference of the Audit & Compliance Committee are as per the provisions of
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India.



10.

11.

The Audit & Compliance committee met 7 (Seven) times during the financial year, on 12th
May 2021, 13t May 2021, 7t September 2021, 11t November 2021, 12t November 2021,
8th February 2022 and 9t February 2022.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY :

The Bank has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy on Directors’ Appointment
and Remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes,
independence of a Director and other matters as provided under the provisions of Section
178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Policy is available at the
website of the Company at www.janabank.com (https://www.janabank.com/about-
us/leadership-governance/policies/).

VIGIL MECHANISM:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company
has established a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns.
The vigil mechanism forms a part of the Whistle Blower Policy, which has been approved by
the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 5% August 2014 as a NBFC-MFI. After
conversion into a Small Finance Bank, the Bank Board has approved the Whistle Blower
Policy and Vigilance Policy, in their meeting held on 8th February 2018. The Policy has been
hosted on the website of the Bank.

The Bank has an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy to promote a workplace that is free of sexual
harassment. A committee to investigate and redress any grievance has been formed, which
meets on need basis.

DIRECTOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In pursuance of section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby
confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31st March 2022 and of the profit and loss of the
Bank for that period;

(c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Bank and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Bank and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

(f) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE / FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE SUBSIDIARIES / ASSOCIATES/ JV :

The Bank does not have any subsidiary or associate company.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: Lakshmi /Gourish

As required pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of the annual return
in the form MGT 9, a part of this Board’s Report is attached(ANNEXURE I).

AUDITORS:

Statutory Auditors

The RBI vide its letter no. DOS.ARG.No.PS-88/08.72.005/2021-22 dated July 1, 2021, has
approved the proposal of appointment of M/s. M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP and M/s. Brahmayya
& Co, Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors of the Bank for the financial year 2021-22.
Subsequently the shareholders of the Bank at their 15t Annual General Meeting held on 19t

August 2021 have appointed M/s. M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP and M/s. Brahmayya & Co,
Chartered Accountants as the joint statutory auditors for the financial year 2021-22.

Secretarial Auditor

The Board has appointed Mr. Nagendra D. Rao, Practising Company Secretary (Membership
No.FCS-5553), Bangalore, as the Secretarial Auditor as per the provisions of Section 204 of
the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year 2021-22. The Secretarial audit report issued
by him is annexed to this report as ANNEXURE V.

Qualifications, Reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the Auditors:
There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Statutory Auditors’ Report which
require any explanation from the Board of Directors. The statutory auditors have expressed
an unmodified opinion in the audit reports in respect of the Audited Financial Statements for

the financial year ended 31st March, 2022.

Further, there are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by
the Secretarial Auditor in his Secretarial Audit Report.

DETAILS OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS, IF ANY :
Nil.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
OUTGO:

(A) Conservation of energy: Not applicable
(B) Technology absorption: Not Applicable

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo :
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Foreign exchange earnings : NIL and Foreign exchange expenditure : Rs. 24.56 Crores.

DETAILS OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH RESPECT TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Board has adopted policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Bank’s policies, the safeguard of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Bank has put in place a comprehensive Risk Management framework supported by
detailed policies and processes for the management of Credit Risk, Market Risk, Liquidity
Risk, Operational Risk and various other risks.

The Risk Management Committee of the Board has established a formal Risk Appetite
Statement which governs the risk-taking activities in the Bank. The Risk Management
Committee exercises oversight on the implementation of various risk management policies
and processes and is also in charge of review of these and other policies from the risk
perspective.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY POLICY :

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013,
the CSR Committee of the Board of Directors was formed to recommend (a) the policy on
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and (b) implementation of CSR Projects or
Programmes to be undertaken by the Bank as per the CSR Policy. The CSR policy has been
duly approved by the Board of Directors.

REASON FOR NOT SPENDING:

The Bank had incurred losses for the financial year 2018-19 and had earned profit for the
financial years 2019-20 and 2020-21 and hence the Bank could not earmark funds for
Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives during the financial year 2021-22 pursuant to
Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2103. However, the Bank has voluntarily spent Rs.
11,30,125/- towards following CSR initiatives during the year 2021-22. The details are as
under :

a) Partnered with MJV Medical College & Research Hospital for COVID 19 ICU Ward.

b) Organised a health camp in association with MFIN for the flood affected families in
Motihari, Muzaffarpur and Begusarai.

¢) Purchased computer and printers for training urban poor and street vendor under
Employment Enhancing Vocational Skills.

d) Provided food packets to families affected by floods at Gorakhpur

e) Partnered with Saveetha Institute of Medical and Technical Sciences for purchase of
ventilator for ICU Ward.

f) Partnered with Vasundhara Foundation for providing a training program for
enhancing vocation skills especially for women and children.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS :

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related parties referred to in Section 188(1)
in Form AOC- 2 is as in ANNEXURE - L.
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FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION:

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee in their meeting held on 16t May 2022 took
note of the evaluation report of the Board’s performance including Directors’ own
performance and committees of the Board. The Committee deliberated on various evaluation
attributes indicated in the evaluation questionnaire for all directors and after due
deliberations made an objective assessment and evaluated that all directors in the Board
have adequate expertise drawn from diverse backgrounds and businesses and bring specific
competencies relevant to the Bank’s business and operations.

The Committee found that the performance of all Directors was quite satisfactory and the
functioning of the Board and its Committees were quite effective. The Committee evaluated
Board’s composition and Board’s performance as a whole and expressed satisfaction in this
regard. Further, the Committee’s suggestion/feedback were duly taken note of by the
Management.

Employees Stock Option Scheme. (ESOP):
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors administers and
monitors the Employee Stock Option Scheme in accordance with the ESOP Scheme approved

by the shareholders.

Details of Employees Stock Options as on 31st March 2022.

The following are the outstanding options as at year end:

March 31,2022

ESOP ESOP
2017 2018
(RSU) (RSU)

Particulars ESOP ESOP
2017 2018

Total Options granted and outstanding

at the beginning of the year 14,51,448 | 3,93,039 63,075 | 14,656

Add: Options granted during the year 1,86,094 1815 17,688 9,189
Less: Options forfeited / lapsed during
4,715 - - -
the year
Less : Options exercised during the year - - - 3075
}(’)é);;ons Outstanding as at end of the 16,32.827 | 3,94.854 80,763 | 20,770
- Vested 7,98,301 | 1,80,931 71,083 5,530
- Yet to Vest 8,34,526 | 2,13,923 9,680 | 15,240

Employee - wise details of options granted during the year.

1. Key Managerial Personnel :

No. of Options
Employee Name | Designation Granted till
date




L

Ajay Kanwal Managing Director and Chief ESOP:567647
Executive Officer RSU: 75411
Buvanesh ESOP: 6711
Tarashankar Chief Financial Officer RSU : 344
Lakshmi R N ESOP: 1458
Company Secretary RSU: 74

2. Any other employee who received grant of options amounting to 5% or more of
options granted during that year : NIL

3. Identified employees who were granted options, during any one year, equal to or
exceeding 1% of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions)
of the bank at the time of grant: NIL

23

RATIO OF REMUNERATION TO EACH DIRECTOR :

Details / Disclosures of Ratio of Remuneration to each Director to the median remuneration
of employees is in ANNEXURE - III.

24 LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES:

The Bank has listed its debt securities (i.e. non-convertible debentures) on the BSE and
confirms that it has paid the annual listing fees for the year FY 2022-23.

25 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION:

A report on Corporate Governance as applicable to the Bank is included as a part of this
Annual Report (ANNEXURE IV).

Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia Ajay Kanwal
Non-Executive Chairman MD & CEO

Date : 17-May-2022

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

For the financial year ended on 31.03.2022

NNEXUREI

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management

& Administration) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:



CIN

U65923KA2006PLC040028

Registration Date

24-Jul-2006

Name of the Company

Jana Small Finance Bank Limited

BRI e

Category/Sub-category
of the Company

Public Limited Company limited by Shares

Address of the
Registered office &
contact details

The Fairway Business Park, # 10/1, 11/2 & 12 /2B Off
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road, Next to EGL Business
Park, Challaghatta, Bengaluru - 560071

Whether listed company

No, However, the non-convertible debentures issued by the
Company have been listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange

Name, Address &
contact details of the
Registrar & Transfer
Agent, if any.

KFin Technologies Limited (Earlier known as KFin
Technologies Private Limited),

Selenium Tower B, Plot No 31 & 32,

Gachibowli, Financial District,

Nanakramguda, Serilingampally

Hyderabad - 500 032, Telangana State (TS)
Ph.no.:+91 040 67161602

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

S.No. | Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
products / services Product/service | company
1 Banking & Financial Services 64191 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES :

S.
No.

Name and Address
of the Company

CIN/GLN

Applicable
Section

% of shares
held

Holding
/Subsidiary/Associate

1

Not applicable

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of the total equity)
Category-wise share holding :

Equity Shares:

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the end of the year[As on 31-
March-2021]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year[As on
31-March-2022]

% Change

during



Demat Physical | Total % of Total Demat Physical | Total % of Total the year
Shares Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Bodies Corp. 21344374 0 21344374 42.08% | 22025797 0 | 22025797 42.84% 0.77%
e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total shareholding 21344374 0 21344374 42.08% | 22025797 0 | 22025797 42.84% 0.77%
of Promoter (A)
B. Public
Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
¢) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Venture Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Funds
f) Insurance 2914519 0 2914519 5.75% 2914519 0| 2914519 5.67% -0.08%
Companies
g) FlIs 19234095 0 19234095 37.92% | 19234095 0 | 19234095 37.41% -0.50%
h) Foreign Venture 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Funds
i) Others (specify) 141285 0 141285 0.28% 141285 0 141285 0.27% 0.00%
Private equity fund
Sub-total (B)(1):- 22289899 0 22289899 43.94% | 22289899 0 | 22289899 43.36% -0.58%
2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian 1554973 0 1554973 3.07% 1554973 0 1554973 3.02% -0.04%
ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
b) Individuals 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%
i) Individual 10593 0 10593 0.02% 13477 0 13477 0.03% 0.01%
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh
ii) Individual 234605 0 234605 0.46% 234605 0 234605 0.46% -0.01%
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
in excess of Rs 1 lakh
c) Others (specify) 199958 0 199958 0.39% 199958 0 199958 0.39% -0.01%
HUF
Non Resident Indians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%




Overseas Corporate 5092855 0 5092855 10.04% 5092855 0 5092855 9.91% -0.13%
Bodies
Foreign Nationals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
Clearing Members 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
Trusts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
Foreign Bodies - D R 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
Sub-total (B)(2):- 7092984 0 7092984 13.98% 7095868 0 7095868 13.80% -0.18%
Total Public 29382883 0 29382883 57.92% | 29385767 0 | 29385767 57.16% -0.77%
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)
C. Shares held by 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
Custodian for GDRs
& ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) | 50727257 0 50727257 100.00% | 51411564 0 | 51411564 100.00% 0.00%
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares :

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the %
Shareholders year[As on 31-March-2021] year[As on 31-March-2022] Change

during

the
year
Demat Physic | Total % of Demat Physi | Total % of
al Total cal Total
Shares Share
s

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ - - - - - - - - -
HUF
b) Central Govt i i j i j i j i j
c) State Govt(s) i i j i j i j i j
d) Bodies COI‘p Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil -
e) Banks / FI j j j j j j j j j
f) Any other i i j i j i j i j
Total Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil -
shareholding
of Promoter
(A)
B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies




g) Flls/Foreign
Companies

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

15,00,00,000

15,00,00,000

100.00

15,00,00,000

15,00,00,000

100.00

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

c) Others
(specify)-HUF

Non Resident
Indians

Overseas
Corporate
Bodies

Foreign
Nationals

Clearing
Members

Trusts

Foreign Bodies -
DR

Sub-total
(B)(2):-

15,00,00,000

15,00,00,000

100.00

15,00,00,000

15,00,00,000

100.00

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)

15,00,00,000

15,00,00,000

100.00

15,00,00,000

15,00,00,000

100.00

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+(C)

15,00,00,000

15,00,00,000

100.00

15,00,00,000

15,00,00,000

100.00

B) Shareholding of Promoter-




SN | Shareholde | Shareholding at the beginning of | Shareholding at the end of the % change
r's Name the year year in
No. of % of total | %of No. of % of | %of sharehold
Shares Shares of | Shares | Shares total | Shares ing during
the Pledged Shares | Pledged / | theyear
company | / ofthe | encumbe
encumb compan | red to
ered to y total
total shares
shares
1 Jana 21344374 42.08 1.89 | 22025797 42.84 1.87 0.76
Holdings
Limited

C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

SN | Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of | Cumulative Shareholding during
the year the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the 21344374 42.08 21344374 42.08
year
Date wise Increase / 31-Jan-2022:
Decrease in Promoters 423,308 0.83 21767682 42.55
Shareholding  during (allotment of
the year specifying the | Equity shares)
reasons for increase /| 28-Feb-2022:
decrease (e.g. allotment 258,115 0.50 22025797 42.84
/transfer / bonus/ (allotment of
sweat equity etc.): equity shares)
At the end of the year 22025797 22025797 42.84
D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
SN | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Cumulative

Shareholders beginning Shareholding during

of the year the

Year
No. of % of total | No. of % of total
shares shares of | shares shares of
the the
company company




At the beginning of the year Refer
Attachment
A

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year

V) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN | Shareholding of each Directors and | Shareholding at the Cumulative
each Key Managerial Personnel beginning Shareholding during
of the year the
Year
No. of % of total | No. of % of total
shares shares of | shares shares of
the the
company company
At the beginning of the year NIL

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year

INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment.
Rupees in crores
Secured Loans Total
. . Unsecured
Particulars excluding Indebtedn
. Loans
deposits ess
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial
year
i) Principal Amount 963.80 4,741.40 5,705.20
ii) Interest due but not paid - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not Due 2.46 64.34 66.80
Total (i+ii+iii) 966.26 4,805.74 5,772.00
Change in Indebtedness during the financial
year




Note :

. 1,08,370.72 27,412.85 | 1,35,783.5
Addition 7
Addition - conversion from secured to

unsecured ) ) )
) 1,06,558.77 28,457.52 | 1,35,016.1
Reduction 9
Reduction - conversion from secured to
unsecured ) ) )
Net Change 1,811.95 (1,044.57) 767.38
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 2,775.75 3,696.83 6,472.58
ii) Interest due but not paid - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 7.76 54.22 61.98
Total (i+ii+iii) 2,783.51 3,751.05 6,534.56

Section 73 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, states that the provisions of the said Act relating to

acceptance of deposits by companies do not apply to a Banking company as defined in the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, information relating to the Bank's deposits has not been disclosed in the table
above. As per the applicable provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, details of the Bank's deposits
have been included under Schedule 3 - Deposits, in the financial statements of the Bank.

Debentures :
Type of Debentures No. of Debentures Nominal Value per Total Nominal value of
Debentures (Rs.) Debentures [Rs. In
crore]
Non-convertible ( for
each type):-
At the beginning of the 7,010 7,010 units at FV 701
year 10,00,000
Changes during the Increase: 500 units at FV 10,00,000 50
year 500
(Increase/Redemption)
Redemption: 2,950 Redemption 2950 units 295.00
of FV 10,00,000
At the end of the year 456 3,300 units at FV 75
2,27,272.73
3,810 units at 381
Fv1,000,000
Partly-convertible ( for NA NA NA
each type)
At the beginning of the NA NA NA

year




Changes during the NA NA NA
year
(Increase/Redemption)
At the end of the year NA NA NA
Fully-convertible ( for NA NA NA
each type)
At the beginning of the NA NA NA
year
Changes during the NA NA NA
year
(Increase/Converted)
At the end of the year NA NA NA
Total Amount of
Debentures
At the beginning of the 7,010 7,010 units at FV 701
year 10,00,000
Changes during the Increase : 500 units at FV 10,00,000 50
year 500
(Increase/Redemption)
Redemption: 2,950 Redemption 2950 units 295.00
of FV 10,00,000
At the end of the year 456 3,300 units at FV 75
2,27,272.73
3,810 units at 381
Fv1,000,000

VII. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Total Amount
Manager
Ajay Kanwal
(MD & CEO)
1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of 7,15,75,662 7,15,75,662
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961* 1,3,19,482 1,3,19,482
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- - -
tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option - -
3 Sweat Equity - -




4 Commission

- as % of profit
- others, specify...

5 Others, please specify - -
Car EMI 12,23,291 12,23,291
Employer PF Contribution 20,43,615 20,43,615
Total (A) 7,61,62,050 7,61,62,050
Ceiling as per the Act

Note - Value of the Perquisites is not included in the Total amount (A).
B. Remuneration to other directors
SN. | Particulars of Name of Directors Total
Remuneration Amount
1 | Independent Dr. Vikram R. Chitra Eugene PR

Directors Subhash Gandhi Ramases | Talwar Karthak Seshadri

C. han (resigne

Khuntia d wef

29-Mar-
2022)
Fee for attending 5,25,000 3,50,000 8,25,000 7,75,000 5,00,000 8,25,000 40,25,000
board committee
meetings
Commission - - -
Others, please 6,54,167 - - 654,167
specify (Fixed
pay)
Total (1) 11,79,167 3,50,000 8,25,000 7,75,000 5,00,000 8,25,000 51,54,167
2 | Other Non- Ramesh Rahul

Executive Ramanat Khosla
Directors han
Fee for attending - 5,75,000
board committee
meetings
Commission - -
Others, please - -
specify
Total (2) - 5,75,000
Total (B)=(1+2) 1179167 | 9,25000 | 775000 725000 [ 450,000 | 825000 | 5554167

Overall Ceiling as
per the Act (sitting
fees not to exceed
Rs.

1,00,000 per
meeting)

The Bank pays sitting fees to Non-Executive Directors
which is below the ceiling of Rs.1,00,000/- per meeting as

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD [*Please note
that the salary of CEO is already provided under section VII A and in our Bank MD holds the position of CEO

also]




SN

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO*

Total

CFO (from 1st

Decto 31
Mar’22)

CFO(1s |CS

Apr'21
to 31st
Oct'21)

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

5026928

7745820

2586922

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

w

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

others, specify...

Others, please
specify(Employer PF
Contribution)

246400

125967

Total

5273328

7745820

2712889

VIII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type

Section of the
Companies
Act

Brief
Description

Details of
Penalty /
Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority
[RD / NCLT/
COURT]

Appeal made,
if any (give
Details)

A. COMPANY - NIL

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS - NIL

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAUL

T - NIL

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

15359670

372367

15732037




Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia
Non - Executive Chairman

Date : 17-May-2022

Jana Small Finance Bank Limited
Shareholding Pattern as on 31-Mar-2022 and 31-Mar-2021 (Top 10 shareholders other than directors,
promoters, GDRs and ADRs)

Ajay Kanwal

MD & CEO

Attachment A

Sr No. Shareholder No of % Allotment | Transfers No of %
Shares holding Shares holding
(31-Mar- (31-Mar-
2020) 2021)
1 | TPG Asia VI SF Pte. Ltd 9.91% 9.78%
50,26,499 - - 50,26,499
2 | North Haven Private Equity Asia 8.18% 8.07%
Platinum Pte. Ltd 41,47,427 - - 41,47,427
3 | Amansa Holdings Pte. Ltd 6.22% 6.14%
31,54,275 - - 31,54,275
4 | HarbourVest Partners Co-Investment
Fund IV L.P. 22,66,940 447% | - - 22,66,940 4.47%
5 | Client Rosehill Limited 3.47% 3.42%
17,57,755 17,57,755
6 | Alpha TC Holdings Pte Ltd
17,48,975 3.45% | - - 17,48,975 3.40%




7 | Treeline Asia Master Fund

(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 16,52,101 3.26% 16,52,101 3.21%
8 | ICICI Prudential Life Insruance

Company Ltd 11,07,639 2.18% 11,07,639 2.15%
9 | Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company

Ltd 10,84,128 2.14% 10,84,128 2.11%

10 | QRG Enterprises Limited
9,86,216 1.94% 9,86,216 1.92%
Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia Ajay Kanwal
Non Executive Chairman MD & CEO

Date : 17-May-2022

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm'’s

FORM NO. AOC.2

length transactions under third proviso thereto

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

ANNEXURE - II

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis : All Related Party

Transactions are at arm’s length.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis : NIL

()

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship : Jana Urban Foundation and Mr. Ramesh

Ramanathan, Director & Non-Executive Chairman of the Board is also a Director & Chairman in that

Company.

(D) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions : Trademark Licence Agreement




The licence agreement is for usage of “]” Logo and word “JANA” by the Bank which is owned by Jan

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions : Perpetuity, effective from 1-Nov-2019

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

if any: 24t October 2019

(c)
(d)
Urban Foundation
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board,
(0 Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia
Non Executive Chairman

Date : 17-May-2022

Ajay Kanwal
MD & CEO

ANNEXURE - 111

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of
each director to the median
remuneration of the employees of the
company for the financial year;

MD&CEO - 7,15,75,662/2,45,286

All Employee Median (2,45,286) - Median amount of
annualised Fixed pay for all employees

(i) The percentage increase in
remuneration of each director, Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Executive
Officer, Company  Secretary or
Manager, if any, in the financial year;

MD&CEO: (28.36%) - The increase in cost vis-a-vis
previous year is on account of bonus amount paid in this FY
(i.e. Apr'21 & Feb’22) basis the approval from RBI

CS: (13.07%)- increase in cost due to increment & bonus
paid.

CFO: (3.8%) This represents 2 CFO's salary in the previous
year (2020-21) as against CFO's salary in the current year
(2021-2022) at different costs.

(iii) The percentage increase in the
median remuneration of employees in
the financial year;

(245286- 223678) / 223678=9.66%

(iv) The number of permanent
employees on the rolls of company;

15,641 (as on 31st March 2022)

(v) Average percentile increase already
made in the salaries of employees other
than the managerial personnel in the
last financial year and its comparison
with the percentile increase in the

Jana Small Finance Bank compensation policy has a target
for compensation benchmarking at median or above for
employees.




managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point out if
there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration;

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration | Yes
is as per the remuneration policy of the
company.

STATEMENT SHOWING DETAILS OF EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY:

Particulars of employees remuneration, as required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, forms a part of this report. Considering first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Annual Report, excluding the said information, was sent to the members of the Bank and others entitled
thereto. The said information is available for inspection at the registered office of the Bank during working
hours up to the date of ensuing annual general meeting. Any member interested in obtaining such
information may write to the Company Secretary in this regard. The said information is also available on the
website of the Bank at www.janabank.com

Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia Ajay Kanwal
Non Executive Chairman MD & CEO

Date : 17-May-2022
ANNEXURE - 1V

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

The Bank is committed to ensure high standards of transparency and accountability in all its activities. Best
management practices and high levels of integrity in decision making are diligently followed to ensure
sustained wealth generation and creation of value for all stakeholders. The Bank adheres to all principles of
corporate governance in its true spirit and at all times.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board consists of 8 directors as on 31st March 2022. All independent directors possess requisite
qualifications and are very experienced in their respective fields. Necessary disclosures have been obtained
from all directors regarding their directorship and have been taken on record by the Board. None of the non-
executive directors has any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company.

The names of the directors and the details of other committee membership of each Director as on 31st March
2022 is given below:

Board Meetings and Attendance at Board Meetings



The Board met 8 times during the financial year 2021-22 and the gap between two meetings did not exceed
one hundred and twenty days, as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The dates for the board meetings are fixed after taking into account the convenience of all directors and
sufficient notice is given to them. Detailed agenda notes are sent to the directors. All information required
for decision making are incorporated in the agenda. Those that cannot be included in the agenda are tabled
at the meeting. The Managing Director & CEO appraises the Board on the overall performance of the Bank
at every board meeting. The Board reviews performance, approves capital expenditures, sets the strategy of
the Bank and ensures financial stability. The Board takes on record the actions taken by the Bank on all its
decisions periodically.

Attendance of each Director at Board Meetings

S.No Name No. of Board No. of Board
Meetings held Meetings attended
1 Dr. Subhash C Khuntia* 3 3
2 Ajay Kanwal 4 4
3 Ramesh Ramanathan 4 4
4 Vikram Gandhi 4 1
5 R. Ramaseshan 4 4
6 Chitra Talwar 4 4
7 Eugene Karthak 4 2
8 P R Seshadri** 4 4
9 Rahul Khosla 4 3

* Joined on July 28 2021
**Resigned with effect from 29t March 2022

Attendance of each Director at Board Meetings (at shorter notice) :

SNo | Name No. of Board | No. of Board
Meetings held Meetings attended
1 Dr. Subhash C Khuntia* 3 3
2 Ajay Kanwal 4 4
3 Ramesh Ramanathan 4 4
4 Vikram Gandhi 4 2
5 R. Ramaseshan 4 4
6 Chitra Talwar 4 3




7 Eugene Karthak 4 3

8 P R Seshadri** 3 3

9 Rahul Khosla 4 3
* Joined on July 28 2021

**Resigned with effect from 29t March 2022
AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The committee assists the board in the dissemination of financial information and in overseeing the financial
and accounting processes in the Bank. The terms of reference of the committee covers all matters specified
in section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as required by the Reserve Bank of India. The terms of
reference broadly include review of internal audit reports and action taken reports, assessment of the
efficacy of the internal control systems/ financial reporting systems and reviewing the adequacy of the
financial policies and practices followed by the Bank. The committee reviews compliance with legal and
statutory requirements, quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements and related party
transactions and reports its findings to the Board. The committee also recommends the appointment of the
internal auditor and the statutory auditor. The committee also looks into those matters specifically referred
to it by the Board.

The Audit & Compliance committee met 7 (Seven) times during the financial year, on 12th May 2021, 13th
May 2021, 7t September 2021, 11th November 2021, 12t November 2021, 8t February 2022 and 9t
February 2022.

Statutory auditors were present at the audit committee meetings held on 13th May 2021, 12th November
2021 and 9th February 2022.

The committee comprised the following directors for the year ended 31st March 2022:

Mr. Eugene Karthak (Committee Chairman)
Mr. R. Ramaseshan

Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan

Mr. Vikram Gandhi

Mr. Rahul Khosla

The terms of reference of the Committee:
The Committee is governed by the terms of reference specified by Companies Act 2013, RBI circulars issued
from time to time & the regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015.

The Bank has adopted the terms of reference for the Committee from the three regulators which are listed
as Annexure |, II and III to this Charter.

Annexure |

(A) As per the provision of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Committee shall act in accordance
with the terms of reference specified in writing by the Board which shall inter alia, include



(i) the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
company;

(ii) review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
(iii) examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

(iv) approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

(v) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(vi) valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

(vii) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

(viii) monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

The Committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the scope of audit,
including the observations of the auditors and review of financial statement before their submission to the
Board and may also discuss any related issues with the internal and statutory auditors and the management
of the company.

The Committee shall have authority to investigate into any matter in relation to the items specified in sub-
section (4) of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 or referred to it by the Board and for this purpose
shall have power to obtain professional advice from external sources and have full access to information
contained in the records of the company.

Annexure II
(B) Terms of Reference as per RBI Circular issued from time to time are as below:

Quarterly
Exposure to sensitive sectors i.e. capital market & real estate.

- KYC / AML Guidelines - (i) Review of implementation (ii) Review of compliance of concurrent audit
reports with respect to adherence to KYC / AML guidelines at branches.

- Review of housekeeping - particularly balancing and reconciliation of long outstanding entries
Suspense / Sundries / Drafts payable / paid / Funds in Transit / Clearing / SGL / CSGL accounts

- Review of compliance in respect of the Annual Financial Inspection conducted by RBI and any other
inspection conducted by any regulators (ACB should review this on ongoing basis till the bank
furnishes full compliance. ACB should closely monitor persisting deficiencies pointed out in RBI
Inspection Reports )

- Review of Audit plan and status of achievement thereof.

- Review of significant Audit Findings of the following audits along with the compliance thereof - (i)
LFAR (ii) Concurrent Audit (iii) Internal Inspection (iv) I.S. Audit of Data Centre (v) Treasury and
Derivatives (vi) Management Audit at Controlling Offices / Head Offices (vii) Audit of Service
Branches (viii) Currency Chest (ix) FEMA Audit of branches authorized to deal in foreign exchange,
etc.

- Compliance report on directives issued by ACB / Board / RBI.

- Report on compliance of clause 49 and other guidelines issued by SEBI from time to time.

- Report on compliance of regulatory requirement of Regulators in Host Countries in respect of
overseas branches.

- Review of Frauds (frauds of Rs.1 crore and above to be reviewed as and when reported).

- Review of financial results for the quarter

- Review of information on violations by various functionaries in the exercise of discretionary powers.

- Information in respect of equity share holdings in borrower companies more than 30% of their paid
up capital.

- Review First Year Audit Committee minutes and give recommendations.



Half Yearly
- Status of implementation of Ghosh and Jilani Committee reports
- Detailed report on fraudulent transactions relating to Internet Banking through phishing attacks
pointing out in particular the deficiencies in the existing systems and steps taken by the IT
department to prevent such cases.

Annual

- Change in accounting policy and practices which may have significant bearing on financial
statements. A confirmation that accounting policies are in compliance with accounting standards
and RBI guidelines.

- Review of IS Audit Policy

- Review of transactions with related parties

- Review of accounting policies / systems of the bank with a view to ensuring greater transparency in
the bank's accounts and adequacy of accounting standards.

- Review of adequacy of the internal audit function, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure,
coverage and frequency of internal audit.

- Review of the bank's financial and risk management policies.

- Review of annual accounts of the bank.

- Appointment of statutory auditors and review of performance - both for domestic and overseas
operations.

- Penalties imposed / penal action taken against bank under various laws and statutes and action
taken for corrective measures

- Review of report on Revenue leakage detected by Internal / External Auditors and status of recovery
thereof - reasons for undercharges and steps taken to prevent revenue leakage.

Annexure II1

(C) As per the regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
role of the Audit Committee and review of information by Audit Committee is as under below :

(1) oversight of the Bank’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

(2) recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Bank;

(3) approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

(4) reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before
submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

a) matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included in the board’s
report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b) changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

¢) major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;

d) significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e) compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f) disclosure of any related party transactions;

g) modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

(5) reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval;

(6) reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than



those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency
monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations
to the board to take up steps in this matter;

(7) reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

(8) approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Bank with related parties;

(9) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(10) valuation of undertakings or assets of the Bank, wherever it is necessary;

(11) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

(12) reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the
internal control systems;

(13) reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit;

(14) discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

(15) reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there
is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the board;

(16) discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

(17) to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of nonpayment of declared dividends) and creditors;

(18) periodic inspection report submitted by the RBI and Certificates/returns/reports to the RBI pertaining
to the Audit Committee function

(19) annual Tax Audit statement and auditors report thereon

(20) to review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

(21) approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and
background, etc. of the candidate;

(22) to ensure that an Information System Audit of the internal systems and processes is conducted at least
once in two years to assess operational risks faced by the Bank.

(23) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee.

The committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

(1) management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

(2) statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the committee), submitted by
management;

(3) management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

(4) internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

(5) the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor shall be subject to review
by the committee.

(6) statement of deviations as and when becomes applicable: {Need to review once the Bank get listed}

(a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to
stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

(b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice in terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Compliance Charter for the Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board (ACB)



SL. No | Particulars Frequency

1 Report on compliance breaches/failures, if any Quarterly, Annually
2 Review of the annual compliance risk assessment Annually

3 Review of the implementation of KYC-AML guidelines Quarterly

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Committee comprised the following Directors for the year ended 31st March 2022:

Mr. R. Ramaseshan (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan

Ms. Chitra Talwar

Mr. Eugene Karthak

Mr. Rahul Khosla

The committee met 5 (Five ) times in the financial year, on 12t Apr 2021, 12th May 2021, 7th September
2021, 11t November 2021 and 8t February 2022.

The terms of reference of the Committee shall, inter alia, include

Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, compliance with the fit and proper criteria
as required under the Reserve Bank of India Guidelines for Licensing of Small Finance Banks in the
Private Sector, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board of
directors a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, while formulating the above policy, should ensure that

(1)
(i)

(iii)

oo

the level and composition of remuneration be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain directors
relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and material risk indicators involves a
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Bank and its goals and in accordance with extant guidelines of
the RBI

Formulating criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board of
Directors;

To ensure ‘fit and proper’ status of proposed/existing Directors;

Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;

Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of directors
their appointment and removal and shall specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance
of the Board, its committees and individual directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an independent external agency and review its
implementation and compliance. The Bank shall disclose the remuneration policy and the evaluation
criteria in its annual report;

Extending or continuing the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the
report of performance evaluation of independent directors;

Recommending to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to whole time directors
and material risk takers.

Administering, monitoring and formulating detailed terms and conditions of the Employees Stock
Option Scheme of the Bank

Carrying out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or



enforced/mandated by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable;
and

Performing such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its
duties.

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Nomination:

Making recommendations to the Board on the necessary and desirable competencies of directors to
ensure that the Board has an appropriate mix of skills, experience, expertise and diversity to enable
it to discharge its responsibilities and deliver the Company’s corporate objectives;

At the request of the Board, making recommendations for the appointment and re-election of
directors;

Prior to recommending a candidate for appointment to the Board, undertaking checks as to a
candidate's character, experience, education, criminal record and bankruptcy history and any other
checks it considers appropriate;

Establishing and, at the request of the Board, reviewing induction programs for new directors and
continuing education programs for all directors in order to allow new directors to participate fully
and actively in Board decision-making at the earliest opportunity, and to enable new directors to
gain an understanding of: - the industry within which the Company operates; - the Company’s
financial, strategic, operational and risk management position; - the culture and values of the
Company; - the rights, duties and responsibilities of the directors; - the roles and responsibilities of
the Company’s senior management and its subsidiaries; - the role of the Committees; - meeting
arrangements; and - director interaction with each other, senior executives and other stakeholders;
Regularly reviewing the time commitment required from a non-executive director and whether non-
executive directors are meeting this requirement;

Evaluating the performance of the Board, its Committees and directors in line with the processes
approved by the Board from time to time;

Developing, implementing and reviewing the Company’s succession plans for membership of the
Board to ensure: - an appropriate balance of skills, experience expertise and diversity; and - an
appropriate structure and composition of the Board;

Ensuring that all non-executive directors: - specifically acknowledge to the Company prior to being
submitted for election or re-election that they will have sufficient time to meet what is expected of
them; and inform the Chairman of the Company and the Committee before accepting any new
appointments as directors of other companies; and

Making recommendations to the Board in respect of the membership and chairmanship of the Audit
& Compliance Committee and Risk Management Committee.

Remuneration:

Determining and agreeing with the Board a framework or broad policy for the remuneration of the
Managing Director and such other senior executives as it is designated by the Board to consider. No
individual shall be directly involved in deciding his or her own remuneration;

In determining such policy, taking into account all factors which it deems necessary. The objective
of such policy shall be to ensure that senior executives of the Company are motivated to pursue the
long-term growth and success of the Company within an appropriate control framework and that
there is a clear relationship between senior executive performance and remuneration;

Within the terms of the agreed policy, determining the total individual remuneration package of each
senior executive ensuring an appropriate balance between fixed and incentive pay including, where
appropriate, bonuses, incentive payments and shares or share options to reflect the short and long-
term performance objectives appropriate to the Company’s circumstances and goals;



- Determining the Company's recruitment, retention and termination policies and procedures for
senior executives;

- Determining the policy for any incentive schemes to be operated by the Company and asking the
Board, when appropriate, to seek shareholder approval for such schemes. The terms of any equity
based remuneration schemes shall prohibit entering into transactions or arrangements which limit
the economic risk of participating in unvested entitlements under these schemes;

- Determining the policy for superannuation arrangements for the Company's employees;

- Determining a framework or broad policy for the remuneration of the non-executive directors of the
Company;

- Reviewing and reporting to the Board on the remuneration of directors, senior executives and all
employees of the Company based on gender; and

- Reviewing and approving the corporate governance section of the Company's annual report.

Diversity:

- Ensuring that all decisions, frameworks and policies regarding nomination and remuneration are
made giving regard to the Company’s objectives in respect of promoting and maintaining diversity
throughout the Company and on the Board;

- Reviewing, developing and making recommendations to the Board and, in particular, establishing
measurable objectives to promote and maintain diversity throughout the Company and on the
Board; and

- On at least an annual basis, reviewing and reporting to the Board on: - the Company’s progress
against the measurable objectives set by the Board for achieving greater gender diversity; and - the
Company's compliance with the Diversity Policy, and where necessary, making recommendations to
the Board on any changes to the Diversity Policy or the measurable objectives for achieving greater
gender diversity.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:
As on 31st March 2022, the composition of the Risk Management Committee was as follows:

Mr. Vikram Gandhi - Committee Chairman
Mr. Ajay Kanwal

Mr. R. Ramaseshan

Mr. Eugene Karthak

Mr. Rahul Khosla

Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia

The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the year under review. The dates of the meeting were 12th May
2021, 7t September 2021, 11t November 2021 and 8t February 2022.

Terms of reference of the Committee:

The Committee of the Bank will be governed by the terms of reference as specified by SEBI LODR Regulations
and applicable provisions of Banking Regulation Act, 1949 (As amended), applicable RBI guidelines/
circulars/ notifications issued from time to time and any other applicable law or enactment for the time
being in force and issued by Board from time to time.

a. Toensure thatall the current and future material risk exposures of the Bank are assessed, identified,
quantified, appropriately mitigated and managed;



b. To establish a framework for the risk management process and to ensure its implementation in the
Bank;

c. To ensure that the Bank is taking appropriate measures to achieve prudent balance between risk

and reward in both ongoing and new business activities;

d. Review and recommend changes, from time to time, to the Risk Management plan and/ or associated

frameworks, processes and practices of the Bank;

e. To enable compliance with appropriate regulations, wherever applicable, through the adoption of

best practices;

f. Perform other activities related to this charter as requested by the Board of Directors or to address

issues related to any significant subject within its term of reference.

g. Evaluate overall risks faced by the bank and determining the level of risks which will be in the best

interest of the bank.

h. Identify, monitor and measure the risk profile of the bank.

i. Develop policies and procedures, verify the models that are used for pricing complex products,
review the risk models as development takes place in the markets and also identify new risks.
Design stress scenarios to measure the impact of unusual market conditions and monitor variance
between the actual volatility of portfolio value and that predicted by the risk measures.

Monitor compliance of various risk parameters by operating Departments.
Review the outsourcing functions of the Bank

. Review of risk management practices, procedures and systems to ensure that same are adequate to
limit all potential risks, faced by the bank to prudent levels (Annually). (Risk Management
Framework to be reviewed for adequacy).

n. Limit Management Framework to be defined by outlining of the tolerance limits. Any exceptions and

breaches to be reported on a quarterly basis.

—e
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:
The Bank has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee with the following directors:

Mrs. Chitra Talwar - Committee Chairman
Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia

Mr. Ajay Kanwal

Mr. Rahul Khosla

The Committee did not meet during the year under review.
The terms of reference of the committee include:

a. Formulation of a corporate social responsibility policy to the Board, indicating the activities to be
undertaken by the Bank in areas or subject specified in the Companies Act, 2013. The activities
should be within the list of permitted activities specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
thereunder;

b. Recommending the amount of expenditure to be incurred, amount to be at least 2% of the average
net profit of the Bank in the three immediately preceding financial years;

c. Instituting a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the corporate social
responsibility projects or programs or activities undertaken by the Bank;

d. Monitoring the corporate social responsibility policy from time to time and issuing necessary
directions as required for proper implementation and timely completion of corporate social
responsibility programmes;

e. Identifying corporate social responsibility policy partners and corporate social responsibility policy
programmes;

f. Identifying and appointing the corporate social responsibility team of the Bank including corporate
social responsibility manager, wherever required; and

g. Performing such other duties and functions as the Board may require the corporate social
responsibility committee to undertake to promote the corporate social responsibility activities of
the Bank.”



INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY STRATEGY COMMITTEE:
The Bank has constituted an Information Technology Strategy Committee with the following directors:

Ms. Chitra Talwar (Committee Chairman)
Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia

Mr. Ajay Kanwal

Mr. Vikram Gandhi

Mr. R. Ramaseshan

The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the year under review. The dates of the meeting were 12th May
2021, 7t September 2021, 11t November 2021 and 8t February 2022.

Terms of reference:

The Committee is governed by the terms of reference as specified by RBI circulars issued from time to
time.

1. To approve IT strategy and policy documents

2. To ensure that management has an effective strategic planning process

3. To ensure that IT strategy is aligned with business strategy

4. To ensure that investments in Information Technology represent a balance of risks and benefits for
sustaining Bank’s growth and within the acceptable budget.

5. To monitor IT resources required to achieve strategic goals and provide high-level direction for sourcing
and use of IT resources.

6. To oversee implementation of processes and practices and ensuring that maximum value is delivered to
business

7. To ensure that all critical projects have a component for ‘project risk management’ from IT perspective
(by defining project success measures and following up progress on IT projects).

8. To define and ensure effective implementation of standards of IT Governance, Business Continuity and
Data Governance.

9. To ensure that there is an appropriate framework of information security risk assessment within the
Bank.

CUSTOMER SERVICE COMMITTEE :
The Bank has constituted a Customer Service Committee with the following directors:

Ms. Chitra Talwar (Committee Chairman)
Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia

Mr. Ajay Kanwal

Mr. Vikram Gandhi

The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the year under review. The dates of the meeting were 12th May
2021, 7t September 2021, 11t November 2021 and 8t February 2022.

The terms of reference of the Customer Service Committee include:

1) Toreview the level of customer service in the Bank including customer complaints and the nature of
their resolution;

2) To provide guidance in improving the level of customer service;

3) To ensure that the Bank provides and continues to provide best-in-class services across all its
category of customers to help the Bank in protecting and growing its brand equity;



4) To formulate a comprehensive Deposit Policy incorporating issues such as death of a depositor for
operations of his/her accounts, annual survey of depositor satisfaction, product approval process
and triennial audit of customer services;

5) To oversee the functioning of the internal committee for customer service;

6) To evolve innovative measures for enhancing the quality of customer service and improving the
overall satisfaction level of customers.

7) To ensure implementation of directives received from RBI with respect to rendering of services to
Bank customers

The key roles & responsibilities of the Committee are provided below:

1. Approving the various policies that relate to customer service; examples thereof include and are not
limited to:

* Comprehensive Deposit Policy

* Cheque Collection Policy

* Customer Compensation Policy

e Customer Grievance Redressal Policy
2. Reviewing metrics and indicators that provide information on the state of customer service in the Bank;
providing direction to the management of the Bank on actions to be taken to improve the metrics;
3. Reviewing the actions taken/ being taken by the Bank to standardize the delivery of customer experience
across all branches;
4. Reviewing results of the surveys conducted that provide quantitative and qualitative information on the
state of customer experience;
5. Providing inputs on the products introduced by the Bank with a view to ensure suitability and
appropriateness;
6. Monitoring the implementation of the Banking Ombudsman Scheme with particular reference to:
* Reviewing all the awards against the Bank with a focus on identifying issues of systemic deficiencies and
the Bank’s plan to address these deficiencies;
» Reviewing all awards that remain unimplemented after 3 months from the date of the award with the
reasons thereof; to report to the Board such delays in implementation without valid reasons and for
initiating remedial action;
7. Review, on an overall basis, the customer service aspects in the Bank on the basis of the detailed
memorandum submitted in this regard and report to the Board of Directors thereafter; this is done once
every six months and based on the review, the Committee will direct the Bank to initiate prompt corrective
action wherever service quality / skills gaps have been noticed;
8. Monitoring the activities of the Standing Committee on Customer Service (executive level committee) on
a quarterly basis;

COMMITTEE FOR MONITORING LARGE VALUE FRAUDS

The Bank has constituted a Committee for monitoring large value frauds with the following directors:

Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Ajay Kanwal

Mr. R Ramaseshan

Ms. Chitra Talwar



The Committee did met 1 (one) time during the year under review. The date of meeting was 29t October
2021.

The terms of reference of the Committee are as under:

a. Identify the systemic lacunae, if any, that facilitated perpetration of the fraud and put in place measures
to plug the same;

b. Identify the reasons for delay in detection, if any, reporting to top management of the Bank and RBI;

c. Monitor progress of CBI / Police Investigation and recovery position;

d. Ensure that staff accountability is examined at all levels in all the cases of frauds and staff side action, if
required, is completed quickly without loss of time;

e. Review the efficacy of the remedial action taken to prevent recurrence of frauds, such as strengthening of
internal controls;

f. Put in place other measures as may be considered relevant to strengthen detective and preventive
measures against frauds;

CREDIT COMMITTEE

The Bank has constituted a Credit Committee with the following directors:

Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan
Mr. Vikram Gandhi
Ms. Chitra Talwar

The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the year under review. The dates of the meeting were 12th May
2021, 7th September 2021, 11th November 2021 and 8th February 2022.

The terms of reference of the Committee are as under:

1) Review credits approved by the Credit Approval Committee of the Bank under its authority
2) Approve credits beyond the authority of the Credit Approval Committee of the Bank.

WILLFUL DEFAULTERS COMMITTEE
The Bank has constituted a Willful Defaulters Committee with the following directors:

Mr. Ajay Kanwal - Committee Chairman
Mr. R. Ramaseshan

Ms. Chitra Talwar

Mr. Eugene Karthak

The Committee did not met during the year under review.
The terms of reference of the Committee are as under:

The Committee of the Bank will be governed by the terms of reference as specified by RBI Circular issued
from time to time and issued by Board from time to time.

To review the order of the executive level committee that identifies accounts to be reported as willful default
to comply with the regulatory guidelines. The Order shall become final only after it is confirmed by the
Review Committee.



IPO COMMITTEE
The Bank has constituted an IPO Committee with the following directors:

Mr. Rahul Khosla - Committee Chairman
Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia

Mr. Ajay Kanwal

Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan

The Committee did not met during the year under review.
The terms of reference of the Committee are as under:

a. To make applications, seek clarifications, obtain approvals and seek exemptions from, where necessary,
the RBI, SEB], the relevant registrar of companies and any other governmental or statutory authorities
as may be required in connection with the Offer and accept on behalf of the Board such conditions and
modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by any of them while granting such approvals,
permissions and sanctions as may be required and wherever necessary, incorporate such modifications/
amendments as may be required in the draft red herring prospectus, the red herring prospectus and the
prospectus as applicable;

b. To finalize, settle, approve, adopt and file in consultation with the BRLMs where applicable, the DRHP,
the RHP, the Prospectus, the preliminary and final international wrap and any amendments,
supplements, notices, addenda or corrigenda thereto, and take all such actions as may be necessary for
the submission and filing of these documents including incorporating such alterations/ corrections/
modifications as may be required by SEBI, the RoC or any other relevant governmental and statutory
authorities or in accordance with Applicable Laws;

c. To decide in consultation with the BRLMs on the actual Offer size, timing, pricing, discount, reservation
and all the terms and conditions of the Offer, including the price band (including offer price for anchor
investors), bid period, Offer price, and to do all such acts and things as may be necessary and expedient
for, and incidental and ancillary to the Offer including to make any amendments, modifications,
variations or alterations in relation to the Offer;

d. To appoint and enter into and terminate arrangements with the BRLMs, underwriters to the Offer,
syndicate members to the Offer, brokers to the Offer, escrow collection bankers to the Offer, refund
bankers to the Offer, registrars, public offer account bank, sponsor bank, advertising agency, legal
advisors, auditors, and any other agencies or persons or intermediaries to the Offer, including any
successors or replacements thereof, and to negotiate, finalise and amend the terms of their appointment,
including but not limited to the execution of the mandate letter with the BRLMs and negotiation,
finalization, execution and, if required, amendment of the offer agreement with the BRLMs;

e. Tonegotiate, finalise and settle and to execute and deliver or arrange the delivery of the DRHP, the RHP,
the Prospectus, offer agreement, syndicate agreement, underwriting agreement, share escrow
agreement, cash escrow agreement, agreements with the registrar to the offer and all other documents,
deeds, agreements and instruments whatsoever with the registrar to the Offer, legal advisors, auditors,
stock exchange(s), BRLMs and any other agencies/ intermediaries in connection with the Offer with the
power to authorise one or more officers of the Bank to execute all or any of the aforesaid documents or
any amendments thereto as may be required or desirable in relation to the Offer;

f. Toseek,ifrequired, the consent and/ or waiver of the lenders of the Bank, customers, parties with whom
the Bank has entered into various commercial and other agreements, all concerned government and
regulatory authorities in India or outside India, and any other consents and/ or waivers that may be
required in relation to the Offer or any actions connected therewith;

g. To open and operate bank accounts in terms of the escrow agreement and to authorize one or more
officers of the Bank to execute all documents/ deeds as may be necessary in this regard;

h. To open and operate bank accounts of the Bank in terms of Section 40(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended, and to authorize one or more officers of the Bank to execute all documents/ deeds as may be
necessary in this regard;

i. To authorize and approve incurring of expenditure and payment of fees, commissions, brokerage,
remuneration and reimbursement of expenses in connection with the Offer;
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ad.

To accept and appropriate the proceeds of the Offer in accordance with the Applicable Laws;

To approve code of conduct as may be considered necessary by the [PO Committee or as required under
applicable laws, regulations or guidelines for the Board, officers of the Bank and other employees of the
Bank;

To approve the implementation of any corporate governance requirements that may be considered
necessary by the Board or the [PO Committee or as may be required under the applicable laws or the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended and listing
agreements to be entered into by the Bank with the relevant stock exchanges, to the extent allowed
under law;

. To issue receipts/ allotment letters/ confirmation of allotment notes either in physical or electronic

mode representing the underlying Equity Shares in the capital of the Bank with such features and
attributes as may be required and to provide for the tradability and free transferability thereof as per
market practices and regulations, including listing on one or more stock exchange(s), with power to
authorize one or more officers of the Bank to sign all or any of the afore stated documents;

To authorize and approve notices, advertisements in relation to the Offer in consultation with the
relevant intermediaries appointed for the Offer;

To do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and execute all such other documents, etc., as may be
deemed necessary or desirable for such purpose, including without limitation, to finalise the basis of
allocation and to allot the shares to the successful allottees as permissible in law, issue of allotment
letters/ confirmation of allotment notes, share certificates in accordance with the relevant rules, in
consultation with the BRLMs;

To do all such acts, deeds and things as may be required to dematerialise the Equity Shares and to sign
and/ or modify, as the case maybe, agreements and/ or such other documents as may be required with
the National Securities Depository Limited, the Central Depository Services (India) Limited, registrar
and transfer agents and such other agencies, authorities or bodies as may be required in this connection
and to authorize one or more officers of the Bank to execute all or any of the aforestated documents;

To make applications for listing of the Equity Shares in one or more stock exchange(s) for listing of the
Equity Shares and to execute and to deliver or arrange the delivery of necessary documentation to the
concerned stock exchange(s) in connection with obtaining such listing including without limitation,
entering into listing agreements and affixing the common seal of the Bank where necessary;

To settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in regard to the Offer, including such issues
or allotment, terms of the IPO, utilisation of the IPO proceeds and matters incidental thereto as it may
deem fit;

To submit undertaking/ certificates or provide clarifications to the SEBI, Registrar of Companies,
Karnataka at Bengaluruand the relevant stock exchange(s) where the Equity Shares are to be listed;

To negotiate, finalize, settle, execute and deliver any and all other documents or instruments and to do
or cause to be done any and all acts or things as the Listing Committee may deem necessary, appropriate
or advisable in order to carry out the purposes and intent of this resolution or in connection with the
Offer and any documents or instruments so executed and delivered or acts and things done or caused to
be done by the Listing Committee shall be conclusive evidence of the authority of the Listing Committee
in so doing;

To delegate any of its powers set out under (a) to (q) hereinabove, as may be deemed necessary and
permissible under Applicable Laws to the officials of the Bank;

To approve suitable policies on insider trading, whistle-blowing, risk management, and any other
policies as may be required under the SEBI Listing Regulations or any other Applicable Laws;

To approve the list of ‘group of companies’ of the Bank, identified pursuant to the materiality policy
adopted by the Board, for the purposes of disclosure in the DRHP, RHP and Prospectus;

Deciding, negotiating and finalising the pricing and all other related matters regarding the execution of
the relevant documents with the investors in consultation with the BRLMs and in accordance with
applicable laws;

taking on record the approval of the Selling Shareholders for offering their Equity Shares in the Offer for
Sale;

to withdraw the DRHP or the RHP or to decide to not proceed with the Offer at any stage in accordance
with Applicable Laws and in consultation with the BRLMs; and

To appoint, in consultation with the BRLMs, the registrar and other intermediaries to the Offer, in
accordance with the provisions of the SEBI Regulations and other Applicable Laws including legal
counsels, banks or agencies concerned and entering into any agreements or other instruments for such



purpose, to remunerate all such intermediaries/ agencies including the payments of commissions,
brokerages, etc. and to terminate any agreements or arrangements with such intermediaries/ agents.”

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Bank has constituted a Stakeholders Relationship Committee with the following directors:

Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia
Mr. Ajay Kanwal
Mr. Eugene Karthak

The Committee did not met during the year under review since there were NIL complaints/grievances
received from the stakeholders. Further there were no request for transfer/transmission during the year
under review since all the securities were held in dematerialised mode.

The terms of reference of the Committee are as under:

Terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee shall include the following:

a.

° P B

To resolve the grievances of the security holders of the Bank including complaints related to transfer/
transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/
duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. and assisting with quarterly reporting of such complaints.
To review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

To review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Bank in respect of various services being
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

To review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Bank for reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/ annual reports/ statutory
notices by the shareholders of the Bank.

Formulation of procedures in line with the statutory guidelines to ensure speedy disposal of various
requests received from shareholders from time to time;

Toredress of shareholders’ and investors’ complaints/ grievances such as transfer of shares, non-receipt
of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividend etc.

To approve, register, refuse to register transfer or transmission of shares and other securities;

To sub-divide, consolidate and or replace any share or other securities certificate(s) of the Bank;
Allotment and listing of shares, approval of transfer or transmission of shares, debentures or any other
securities;

To authorise affixation of common seal of the Bank;

To issue duplicate share or other security(ies) certificate(s) in lieu of the original share/ security(ies)
certificate(s) of the Bank after split/ consolidation/ rematerialization and in Replacement of those which
are defaced, mutilated, torn or old, decrepit, worn out or where the pages on reverse for recording
transfers have been utilized;

To approve the transmission of shares or other securities arising as a result of death of the sole/ any
joint shareholder;

. To dematerialize or rematerialize the issued shares;

To Ensure proper and timely attendance and redressal of investor queries and grievances;

To carry out any other functions contained in the SEBI Listing Regulations, Companies Act, 2013 and/
or equity listing agreements (if applicable), as and when amended from time to time; and

To further delegate all or any of the power to any other employee(s), officer(s), representative(s),
consultant(s), professional(s), or agent(s).

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

Independent Directors of the Bank met during the year on 5th March 2022 to review the performance of non-
Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, review the performance of the Chairperson of the Board
and had accessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the bank management
and the Board.



During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 independent directors did not have any pecuniary

relationship with the Bank; neither did they have any transactions with the Bank.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS AND EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING:

The details of the Annual General Meetings / Extraordinary General Meeting held in the last three years are

as follows:

General
Meeting

Body

Date, Time & Venue

No. of Special Resolution
passed

15t Annual General
Meeting

19t August 2021 at 11:00 a.m. at the
registered office address : The Fairway
Business Park, # 10/1,11/2 & 12 /2B Off
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road,
Next to EGL Business Park, Challaghatta,
Bengaluru - 560071

3

Extra - Ordinary
General Meeting

25t March 2021 at 11:00 a.m. at the
registered office address : “The Fairway
Business Park, # 10/1,11/2 & 12 /2B Off
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road,
Next to EGL Business Park, Challaghatta,
Bengaluru - 560071

14t Annual General
Meeting

5-Jun-2020 at 11:00 am. at the
registered office address : The Fairway
Business Park, # 10/1,11/2 & 12 /2B Off
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road,
Next to EGL Business Park, Challaghatta,
Bengaluru - 560071

Extra - Ordinary
General Meeting

16-Oct-2019 at 4:30 p.m. at the
registered office address : “The Fairway
Business Park, # 10/1,11/2 & 12 /2B Off
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road,
Next to EGL Business Park, Challaghatta,
Bengaluru - 560071

13th Annual General
Meeting

28-Jun-2019 at 11:00 am. at the
registered office address : The Fairway
Business Park, # 10/1,11/2 & 12 /2B Off
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road,
Next to EGL Business Park, Challaghatta,
Bengaluru - 560071

NIL

Extra - Ordinary
General Meeting

30-May-2019 at 4:30 p.m. at the
registered office address : “The Fairway
Business Park, # 10/1,11/2 & 12 /2B Off
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road,
Next to EGL Business Park, Challaghatta,
Bengaluru - 560071

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Bank has a whistle blower policy, which was approved by the Board on 8t Feb 2018. The policy provides
a whistle blowing route to employees, including part time, temporary and contract employees and directors
of the organisation.

Summary of the policy:



o The policy defines the incidents that are required to be reported by a whistle blower, the concerns and
safeguards to the whistle blower.

e The procedure for raising an issue under the policy as well as the investigation process and reporting of
the whistle blowing incidents are detailed in the policy.

CEO and CFO Certificate:

A certificate dated 17t May, 2022 pursuant to the Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Part B of Schedule II thereof, from the Managing
Director & CEO and the Chief Financial Officer on the financial statements of the Bank for the financial year
ended 31st March 2022, was placed before the Board at its meeting held on 17t May, 2022.

Code of Conduct:

The Bank has laid down Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management. The same is
available on the website of the Bank at www.janabank.com.

Certificate by the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of the Bank regarding compliance with the
Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management is given below:

This is to confirm that:

The Bank has obtained from the Directors and Senior Management personnel affirmation that they have
complied with the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management of the Bank for of the financial
year ended 31stMarch, 2022.

COMPLIANCES:

There have been no instances of non-compliance by the Bank on any matter related to capital markets, nor
have any penalty/strictures been imposed on the Bank by the Registrar of Companies, Reserve Bank of India,
Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority on such matters.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting

Date and time: 30th May 2022
Venue : “The Fairway Business Park”, # 10/1, 11/2 & 12/2B Off

Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road, Next to EGL Business
Park, Challaghatta, Bengaluru - 560071



http://www.janabank.com/

Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March 2022

Sr No. Name of the Equity Shareholder No of Shares % holding
Domestic Investor
1 | Jana Holdings Limited 2,20,25,797 42.84%
2 | QRG Enterprises Limited 9,86,216 1.92%
3 | Vallabh Bhanshali 1,19,410 0.23%
4 | Enam Securities Private Limited 4,290 0.01%
5 | Badri Narayan Pilinja 1,15,195 0.22%
6 | Vallabh Bhanshali HUF 1,99,958 0.39%
7 | Growth Partnership Il Shiv Shankar Co-investment Trust 1,995 0.004%
8 | Growth Partnership Il Ajay Tandon Co-investment Trust 825 0.002%
9 | Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Ltd 10,84,128 2.11%
10 | Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Company Ltd - 2,52,963 0.49%
Policyholder Fund
11 | Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Company Limited - 1,08,413 0.21%
Shareholder Fund
12 | ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Ltd 11,07,639 2.15%
13 | ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Ltd 3,61,376 0.70%
14 | Hero Enterprise Partner Ventures 5,61,647 1.09%
15 | Ashwin Khorana 650 0.0013%
16 | Venkatesh lyer S 509 0.0010%
17 | Debdoot Banerjee 229 0.0004%
18 | Ananth KumarM S 289 0.0006%
19 | Harnath Kummamuru 262 0.0005%
20 | Ajay Pareek 7,228 0.0141%
21 | Alexander John 578 0.0011%
22 | Vidyasagar Bedida 431 0.0008%
23 | Amit Raj Bakshi 417 0.0008%
24 | Ravi Duvvuru 1,031 0.0020%
25 | Sandeep Arora 1,419 0.0028%
26 | Amit Lamba 434 0.0008%
Foreign Investor
27 | TPG Asia VI SF Pte. Ltd 50,26,499 9.78%
28 | North Haven Private Equity Asia Platinum Pte. Ltd 41,47,427 8.07%
29 | Caladium Investment Pte. Ltd 7,62,608 1.48%
30 | Client Rosehill Limited 17,57,755 3.42%
31 | Alpha TC Holdings Pte Ltd 17,48,975 3.40%
32 | CVCI GP Il Employee Rosehill Limited 9,84,455 1.91%
33 | Treeline Asia Master Fund (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 16,52,101 3.21%
34 | Global Financial Inclusion Fund 1,41,285 0.27%
35 | HarbourVest Partners Co-Investment Fund IV L.P. 22,66,940 4.41%
36 | HarbourVest Partners Co-Investment IV AIF L.P. 5,95,353 1.16%
37 | HarbourVest Skew Base AIF L.P. 70,469 0.14%
38 | HIPEP VIII Partnership Fund L.P. 2,74,778 0.53%
39 | HIPEP VIII Partnership AIF L.P. 1,83,186 0.36%
40 | HarbourVest Asia Pacific Fund VIII L.P. 40,070 0.08%
41 | HarbourVest Asia Pacific VIII AIF L.P. 74,418 0.14%




42 | HarbourVest Co-Investment Opportunities Fund L.P 2,86,229 0.56%
43 | HarbourVest Co-Invest 2017 Private Equity Partners L.P. 5,72,456 1.11%
44 | The Maple Fund L.P. 5,72,456 1.11%
45 | Manipal Research & Management Services 1,56,500 0.30%
International
46 | Amansa Holdings Pte. Ltd 31,54,275 6.14%
Total 5,14,11,564 100.00%
Sr No. Name of the Compulsorily Convertible Preference No of Shares % holding
Shares
Domestic Investor
1 | Hero Enterprise Partner Ventures 15,00,00,000 100.00%
Total 15,00,00,000
Dr. Subhash C Khuntia Ajay Kanwal
Non Executive Chairman MD & CEO

Date : 17-May-2022
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JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

__Balance Sheet as at March 31,2022

] T Koo
) ' Asat As at
Schedule 31.03,2022 31,03.2021
I (Audited) {Audited)
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
Capital 1 20,14,116 20,07,273
Reserves and surplus 2 99,92,874 92,61,506
Deposits 3 13,54,02,021 12,38,59,272
Borrowings 4 4,50,98,320 4,81,53,193
Other liabilitles and provisions 5 93,79,801 76,27,809
TOTAL ' 20,18,87,132 19,09,09,052
ASSETS
Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of india 6 60,00,194 46,22,872
Balances with banks and money at cafl and short notice 7 93,70,728 1,79,74,840
| \Gisstinents - o - i g e 5,06,52,606 | ° 4,59,77,852
Advances 9 13,00,66,792 11,61,18,172
Fixed assets 10 17,16,470 21,20,570
| Other assets S 1 40,80,342 30,93,746
TOTAL 20,18,87,132 19,09,09,052
Contingent liabilities 12 4,17,430 4,74,594
Bills for collection i o -
Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial 17&18
statements

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As pet our report of even date

For M M Nissim & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants n Lagh ‘-Q
{CAl Firm Registration No.107122w/wiooe72 . & F_“;“’\“ .

& '

Or., Subhash Khuntia AjayRanwal :

Part-time Chatrman Managing Dlrector & CEO
s DIN; 053444772 DIN: 07586434
Sarjay Khemani =
Partner 2N
Membership Number: 04157
Mumbai, May 17, 2822

afiesh Ramanathan van
Director Chief Financiat Officer
DIN: 00163276

For Brahmayya & Co,,

Chartered Actountants f}“\m
ICAl Firm Registration No:000515S 7

takshmi R N

-— @/X Company Secretary

G. Srinivas
Partner
Membership No: 086761

Bengaluru May 17, 2022 Bengaluru, May 17, 2022
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JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2022

I o [Rin000's}
Year ended Year ended
PARTICULARS Schedule 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
S PR R lbudited) 3 {Audited)
L ANCOME
interest earned 13 2,72,65,351 2,49,77,080
QOther income 14 32,37,632 13,5G,801
TOTAL ' 3,05,02,983 1,73,27,881
H, EXPENDITURE
Interest expended 15 1,33,67,509 1,23,45,784
Operating expenses 16 1,13,88,210 1,04,73,112
Provisions and contingencies £5,93,206 36,65,922
TOTAL 3,04,48,925 2,64,84,819
. PROFIT/(LOSS}
Met profit for the year 54,058 8,43,062
gatance in Profit/{loss) brought forward {4,08,31,582} {4,12,66,476)
TJOTAL {4,07,77,528)]  (4,04,23,414)
. APPROPRIATIQNS R R ’
Transfer (o Statutory Reserve 13,497 2,010,766
Transfer to Capital Reserve 30,546 31,436
Transfer to Investment Resarve Account 2,937 -
Transfer ta Investment Fluctuation Reserve 5,794 1,65,966
falance carried over to Balance Sheet (4,08,30,298) {4,08,31,582}
V. EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE
{Face value of per share X 10 per share}
Bagic () 1.06 16.62
Dijuted (%) 0.99 15,70
Significant accounting policies and notes ta the financial 17 & 18
The schedules referred to abeve form an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date
For M M Nissim & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Dlrecr.ors Q
Chartered Accounants L - ¢
or s FN L
SCAl Eiren Registration No.1071 B L et , o !« T
g et jgeni f/m J—
: T - I

Or. Subhash Khuntia A}ery Rarmval
‘ Part-time Chairman Managing Director & CEQ
DIN: 05344972 ,

S,

Sanjay Khemani
Partner
Membership Number: 044577 et T
Mumbal, May 17, 2022 RamBsh RamEhsihan FTarashankar
Director Chlef Financial Officer

OiN: 00163{25b
For Brahmayya & Co,,

Chartered Accountants { L‘f’

ICAL Firm Registration Noe:000515%
Lakshmi R N
Company Secretary

a

(3. Srinivas
partner
mernbership No: 086761

Bengalury, May 17, 2022 Bengalury, May 17, 2022




JARNA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022

g e - - e {2in 000's)

] » B ) ' Year ended Year ended
Particufars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
{Audited) {Audited)

A jCash flow from operating activities
Met profit before taxes 54,058 8,43,0672
Adjustments for: ]
Depreciation on bank's property 8,08,153 8,26,769
Loss on sale of fixed assets 2,076 77,344
Employee stock optien expenses 24,194 {9,654}
Provision for non performing assats 2,87,048 588,846
Bad debts written off 58,53,286 23,27,031
Provision for stardard assets (including standard restructured accounts) (4,57,705) 7,82,291
Premium amortisation on HTM investments 25,447 44952
Operating profit before working capital changes {n 66,00,557 54,80,641
Movement in working capitat N o o

{increase)/Oscresse v investmants 91,93,454 {82,89,710)]

(ncrease}/Decrease in advances {1,96,30,069) (2,02,51,232)
increase/[Decrease) in deposits 1,15,42,740 2,73,39,802
{Increase)/Decraase in other assets {10,14,265) {3,53,605)
{tntrease)/Decreass In Ben marked fixed deposits 1,14,007 {1,35,793)
Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilitias and provisions 17,52,002 24,03,697
Net change in working capital {1} 19,57,869 713,154
Direct taxes (paid)/refund (i} 27,664 (41,439)
Net cash flaw from operating activities {4 (ii)+{i) {A} 85,86,095 61,52,361

B. {Cash Hlow used In investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets {4,08,420) {4,27,243)
Praceeds from sale of fixed assets 2,291 2,721
{intrease)/Decrease of held-to-m aturity securities {1,28,97,555) {1,22,32,744)
Net cash {used in} investing activities {8} {1,33,03,684) {1,26,57,266)




JAMA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

o Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
[Audited) {Audited)
Cash Flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 6,843 87
Securities premium received 6,53,131
Proceeds from issue of Tiar |l capital bonds 5,800,000 "
tncrease [ (decrease) in other borrowings (35,55,168} 1,91,66,364
Net cash used in financing activities {C) {23,95,194} 1,91,66,451
Net increase/{decrease} in cash and cash equivalents (A}+({B}+{C) (71,12,783) 1,26,61,546
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the period/year (refer note 2 & 3) 2,24,61,919 98,00,373
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year (refer note 2 & 3} 1,53,49,136 2.24,61,919

Notes:

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared undar the indirect method as set out in Accounting Standard 3

ot Cash Flow Statements specified under Section 133 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies— -~

(Account) Rules, 2014 and Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises of 'Cash & Balances with Reserve Bank of india (Schedule 6} and 'Balances with

Banks and Money at Call and Short Notice {Schedule 7},

3, Cash and Cash Equivalents excludes lien marked Deposits of X 2.18 crores and ¥ 13.58 crores respectively as on

March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

As per our report of even date

For M M Nissim & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

3 L hambe

ICAl Firm Registration N0.107122W/W 100672

H

Dr. Subhash Khuntia
Part-time Chairman

DIN: 05344972
Sanjay Khemani

Membership Number: 044577 o PRy 7
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JANA SMALL FINANGE BANK UMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MIARCH 31, 2022

{Tin 000's)

: As at As at
l PARTICULARS 31.03,2022 31.0%.2021
| N {Audited) {Audited)
SCHEDULE 1 - CAPITAL
Authorlsed Capital
Ecpulty
100,000,000 {March 31, 2071: 100,000,000) Eguity Shares of % 10 each 10,860,000 10,00,000
Preference
250,000,000 (March 31, 2021; 250,000,000) Prefarence Shares of 10 each 25,00,000 25,00,000
tssued, Subscribed, Calledup and Paid-Up Capital
Equity
51,411,564 (March 31, 2021 50,727,257 | Equity Shares of % 10 each fully paid up 514,116 5,072,273
Prefarance
31 Mar 21115 5 - il artible
150,000,000 (31 March 2021 .]..)0,000,‘{)00) 165 Non-Cumulative Computsorily Corvertible 16,00,000 15,00,000
Preference Shares of % 10 each fully paid up
TOTAL 20,144,116, - 2007,273
SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS
L STATUTORY RESERVE
Opaning halanee 12,37,531 iG,26,765
Add: Additions during the year 13,497 2,10,765
Less; Deductions duri W the year - -
TOTAL 12,51,028 12,37,531
il CAPITAL RESERVE
Opening balance 1,69,628 1,38,092
Add: Additions during the year 30,548 31,436
Less: Daductions during the year - .
TOTAL 2,00,074 1,69,528

HEL SHARE PREMIIM
Opening halance

4,81,89,124

4,81,77,238

Add: Additions durtng the year 6,56,367 11,886

Less: Deductions during the year : -
TOTAL 4,88,45,491 4,81,89,124
IV, GENERAL RESERVE

Onening balanze 1,44,101 1,444,101

Add: Additions during the year . -

Less: Deductions durlng the year - o
TOTAL 1,44,101 1,44,101
V. INVESTMENT RESERVE

Cpening bafance -

Add: Additions during the year 2,937

Less: Deductions during the yesr N -
TOTAL 2,937 -
VE INVESTMENT FLUCTUATION RESERVE

Opening balance 212,323 46,387

Add: Additions dusing the year 5,784 1,685,966

Less: Deductiens during the year - -
(TOTAL 2,18,117 2,12,323




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PARY OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

(T in 000's)
{ As at As at
PARTICULARS 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
) (Audited) {Audited)
VIL EMPLOYEE 5TOCK OPTIONS RESERVE
Opening balance 1,840,481 1,62,074
Add: Employee Stock Option expense during the year 24,184 {9,713}
Less: Transfer to Share Capital / Secusitlas Premium on axercise of stock options (3,251) {11,874)
TOTAL 1,61,424 1,40,481
VI BALANCE IN PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT (4,08,30,298) (4,08,31,582}
[TOTAL [i to Vi) 99,92,874 92,61,506
SCHEDULE 3 - DEPOSITS
Al Demand depaoslts
i. From banks £,92,268 §,39,933
ii. From athers 70,086,299 59,472,818
li. Savings bank depaosits 2,28,29,265 1,42,78,065
I, Term deposits
i. From banks 2,53,37,752 2,06,86,995
i, From others 7,95,36,437 §,30,11,460
TOTAL (1ta 1) 13,54,02,021 12,38,59,271
B.L Deposits of branches In India 13,54,02,021 12,38,59,271
ii. Deposits of branches outside india - -
TOTAL {{ to 1} 13,54,02,021 12,38,56,271
SCHEDULE 4 - BORROWINGS
I. Borrowlngs in India
a. Reserve Bank of India 80,00,000 .
b. Other banks* 31,44,500 $7,44,500
t. Other institutions and agenciess 3,39,53,820 4,21,34,530
il Borrowings outside India - 2,714,163
TOTAL {1 and i) 4,50,98,320 4,81,53,193

Secured Borrowlngs Included in (2(c) above 15 % 13 crores (March 31, 2021: % 73,92 crofes)
*Inchides Sub-ordinated debt (Tier |1 capital) ® 303 crores (March 31, 2021: % 343 crores)
* Inctudes sub-ordinated debt (Tier i capital} % 153 crores IMarch 31, 2021: X 358 crores)




IANASMALLFINANGE BANK LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEEY AS AT MARCH 3, 2022

i As at As at ]
PARTICULARS 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
- - {Audited) {Audited)
SCHEDULE 5 - OTHER UABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
L Bills payable 42,59,459 21,42,373
1L Wnter office adjustments (nat) - -
lit, Interest aceruyed 23,55,746 23,79,575
V. Gthers {tacluding provisions) 20,03,310 18,872,967
V. Standard Asset- General Provision 7,61,286 12,17,8494
TOTAL{1to V) 93,79,801 76,27 800
SCHEDLKE 6 - CASH AND BALANCES WiTH RESERVE BANYK OF INDIA
I Cashin hand 778,170 6,16,262
II. Balances with Reserve Bank of India
oy Current aceaunt “ "52,22,024 40,06,610
b In Dther accounts - .
TOTAL {i to 1] 60,00,194 48,22,872
SCHEDULE 7 - BALANCES WITH BANKS AND MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE
I kn Endia
i} Balances with banks
ajIn Current accounts 48,942 147,193
b} In Gther deposit accounts* 21,786 11,97,647
i} Money at ralf and short notice
a) With hanks - “
bl With other tnstitutions - -
¢} Lending under reverse repo (Reserve Bank of india} 93,00,000 1,66,30,000
TOTAL{ito i) 93,720,728 1,79,74,840
11 Quitside India
it In Current accounts - -
i1} In Other deposit accounts - -
1} Money st call and short notice -
TOTAL (i ta iif) . N
GRAND TOTAL [l 1o 1t) 93,70,728 1,78,74,840

* As of March 31, 2022, Includes deposit with banks of T 2,18 crores lien marked towards

guarantee issued by other banks on the hehalf

of the Bank. Purther, as of March 31, 2021 includes doposit with banks of 2 13.58 crores lien marked towards berrowings from banks and

financial institutions as security deposit & guarantee

isstied by other banks on the behall of the Bank,




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

SCHEDULES EORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEEY AS AT MARCH 38, 2022

(=i 000's)

As at Asat
PARTICULARS 41,0%.2022 31.03.2021
N |Andited) [Audited)

[SCHEDULE & - INVESTMENTS T

L Investments in Indla [net of provisions)

Iy Governmeant securities 4,97,21,381 4,69,77,852
iy Other approved securities - -
lif} Shares - .
v} Debentures and honds .
v} Subsidiaries and/or jolnt ventures - -
vi} Qthers (Security Receipts) 9,25,225

TOTAL 5,06,52,606 4,69,77,452

Il Investments Qutside India - “

GRAND TOTAL {l to i) 5.06,52,606 4,69,77,852

1kt Investrnents

i} Gross valug of investments
a) in India 5,06,52,725 4,6G,81,887
b} Quiside india - -
Tatal 5,06,52,725 4,69,81,887
1ty Depreciation/provision for investments
a) In India 119 4,035
b} Qutside India
Total 119 4,035
iii) Net value of investments
3l in India 5,06,52,606 4,69,77.852
b} Outside ingia . -

Totad _ 5,06,52,606 4,69,77,852

SCHEDULE 9 - ADVANCES {Net of Provisions]

A, 1) 8ills purchased and discounted 13,79,67% 46,000
i) Cash credits, oversrafts and joans repayable on demand 7L,47,777 48,99,200
Hi} Term loans 12,15,39,336 10,71,73,972

TOTAL 13,00,66,792 11,61,19,172

6. i) Secured by tangible assets * 6,80,53,537 4,84,97,022
i} Coverad by bank/government gugrantees 25,868,380 11,21,643
ili} Unsecured 5,94,26,775 6,65,00,507

TOTAL

13,00,66,792

11,61,19,172

* tucluding Advance agalnst book debt

(—%' ;
é'.




JANA SMIALL FINANCE BANK LIVITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2022

~ i (X in 060's} N
PARTICULARS 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
. J — ) fAudited) {Audited)
C. 1 ADVANCES IN INDIA
i} Priorty sector* 9,61,35,285 8,12,30,231
it} Public sector . -
i} Banks 1,86,391 -
iv) Others* 3,34,45116 3,48,88 941
* Priority sectors includes % 1,010 crores (March 31, 2021 % Nil erores), in respect of which the
Bank has sold Priority Sector Lending Certificates {PSLC).
C. NADVANCES OUTSIDE INDIA - *
TOTAL 13,00,66,792 11,61,19,172
SCHEDULE 10 - FIXED ASSETS
l. Premises - -
i} Costasat the end of the preceding yeas .
I Additions during the year - .
Il Deductions during the year » :
il Depréciationto date . -
v] Capital Work in Progress
TOTAL
it. Other fixed assets (including furniture and fixtures)
i} Costasatthe end of the preceding year 64,40,273 61,73,859
11} Additions during the year 4,59,845 3,71,207
69,00,128 63,458,065
i} Deducttons durlng the year {2,13,931) {1,04,793)
Iv) Depreciation to date {49,81,480} {43,32,199)
v} Capltal Work in Progress 11,773 12,496
TOTAL® 17,16,470 21,20,570
“includes leased assets of £ 13.22 croces {March 31, 2021: 1 18.45 croras}
GRAND TOTAL {1 and 1) 17,16,470 21,20,570
SCHEDLLE 13 - DTHER ASSETS
[ Inter office adjustments {net) - -
Il Interest accrued 19,60,80% 10,19,549
Ill. Tax paiddin advance / tax deducted at source {net of provisions) 6,10,543 582,672
V. Stationery and stamps - -
Y. Non Banking Assets acoulred in satisfaction of claims . -
Vi, Others* 15,408,994 14,931,525
* Includes deposit with RIDF and other funds of % 1.38 crores {March 31, 2021: % 1.46 crores)
TOTAL e e 49,80,342 30,93,746 |
SCHEDULE 12 - CONTINGENT UABILITIES
b Claims against the bank not acknowledged as debts 3,04,690 3,589,089
i tability for partly pald iovestments . .
HI Liability on account of outstanding forward exchange contracts -
IV, Liability on account of outstanding derivative contracts -
V. Guarantees given on behalf of constituents
&) In India 25,000 25,000
h) Qutside india - -
VI. Acceptances , endorsements and other abligations - -
Vit Other iterns for which the Bank is contingently llable 87,740 90,505
TOTAL 4,127,430 4,74,594 |




SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

{Lin0o0's)

PARTICULARS

Yenr endod
31.03.2022
{Audited)

Year ended

31.03.2021
{Audited)

SCHEDULE 13 - INTEREST EARNED

I Interest/discount en advances/bills* 2.41,20,339 2,30,14,464
#.  Income oninvastments 25,59,535 17,19,188
lil. Interest on balances with Reserve Bank of india and other inter-bank funds 5,85,090 2,43,282
V. Others 387 146
* Includes interest recoveries from technically written olf sccounts
TOTAL 2,72,65,351 2,49,77,080
SCHEDULE 14 - OTHER INCOME
I Commission, exchange and brokerage 24,13,708 16,10,552
il Profit/ {loss) on sale of investments (net) 46,521 2,07,881
tl. Profit/ {loss) on revaluation of investments (net) - -
V. Profit f {loss) on sale of land, buildings and other assets{net) {2,066) {77,279)
V. Profit on exchange / derivative transactions {net) . -
Vi-Income earned by way of-dividends from - - :
subsidiaries/joint ventures abroad/in tndia
Vil Miscellaneous income” 7,79,46% 6,09,647
i includes PSLC income ¥ 12,71 crores (March 31, 2021 % Nii), recoveries from
written off accounts X 57.42 crores (March 31, 2021: X 52.82 crores), and lease
income X 7.25 crores {March 31, 2021 X 7.25 crores)
TOTAL » 32,537,632 23,50,801
SCHEDULE 15 - INTEREST EXPENDED
L Interest on deposits 93,04,237 87,03,097
Il Interest on Reserve Bank of India/inter-bank borrowings 30,67,747 20,66,0972
il Other Interest {inclduing interest on debrentures and other barrowings) 10,55,525 15,76,595
TOTAL 1,33,67,509 1,23,45,784
SCHEDULE 16 - OPERATING EXPENSES
I Payments to and provisions for employees {refer note 18.4 and 18.14) 69,589,890 61,84,586
Il Rent, taxes and lighting [refer note 18.22{0)) 9,15,637 10,10,975
M. Printing and stationery 85,670 62,635
V. Advertisement and publicity 1,05,501 1,68,441
V. Depreciation on bank's property {including leased assets) 8,08,153 8,26,769
Vi, Director's Fees, attowances and expenses 5,515 5,477
VI Auditars' fees and expenses 10,028 10,822
VIl Law charges 75,876 40,851
X, Postage, telegram, telephone ete. 1,63,299 2,04,443
X, Repalrs and maintenance 2,70,869 3,01,404
XL nsurance 1,64,910 1,26,803
Xil. Other expenditure 17,688,467 15,24,807
{a). Travel and conveyance 3,50,393 2,583,273
{b}. Professional fees (includes cost of outsourced technology support services) 8,64,472 833,679
{c). Others 473,602 3,42,855
TOTAL 1,13,88,210 1,04,73,113




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
Sthedule to the Financial Staterments for the year ended March 31, 2022

SCHEDULE -17
Significant Accounting Policies appended to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022

1, CORPORATE INFORMATION:

Jama Small Finance Bank Limited (Formerly known as Janalakshmi Fingnelal Services Limited - the "Corspany”),
headquartered In Bangalore, engaged in providing a wide range of banking and financial services. Qriginally incorporated
on July 24, 2006, the Com.pany registerad as a Non-Banking Financlal Company {NBFC) with the Reserve Bank of India on
March 4, 2008, The Company gat classified as a NBFC-MFI effective from September 5, 2013, The Company became a
public fimited company under the provisions of Comparles Act, 2013, with effect from August 10, 2015,

Pursizant to the rasolution passed by the sharehalders at the Extracrdinary General Meeting [EGM) held on fanuary 13,
2018 and the issue of small finance bank license by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) on April 28, 2017 under section 22(1) of
the Hanking Regulstion Act, 1949 "Janalakshmi Pinancial Services Limited” {the “Company”) converted itself inta a Smail
Finance Bank with effect fram March 28, 2018, Accordingly, the name of the Company was changed to Jana Small Finance
Bank Limited {the “Bank"}.

The Bank has received scheduled Bank status with effect from 16 July, 2019 vide publication in the Gazette of India {Part
i+ Section 4).dated July 27 = August 02, 2019, Accordingly, Jana Small Finance Dank Limited 1. included in the secand
schedule of the Reserve Bank of Indiz Act; 1934,

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION:
The Bank’s financial statements have been preparad and presented under the historical cost tonvention, on the accrual

‘hasis of accounting and on-going concern basis, unless otherwise stated and In conformity with Generally Accepted

Accounting Principles {GAAF), which comprise applicable statutory provisions, regulatory norms/guidelines prescribed by
the Raserve Bank of India (RBI, Banking Reguiation Act 1949, Accounting Standards specified under Saction 133 of
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules
2021, in so far as they apply to the banks and the current practices prevalent within the banking industry in india.

Use of Estimuates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP reguires the management to make astimates and
assumptions considerad in the reported amounts of assets and liahilities {Including contingent liabilities) a5 of the date of
the financial statements and the reported income and expenses for the reporting period. Management believes that the
estimates used In the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could ditfer from
these estimatas, Any reviston in the accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and future perieds.

3. REVENUE RECOGNITION:

i, Interest income on loans, advances and investments is recognized o the Profit and Loss Account on aecrual basis except
income on advances, investments and other assets classified as Non-Performing Assats {NPAs), which is recognized upon
reafization, as per the prudential norms prescrived by the RBI Unrealized Interest on NPA is reversed in the Profit and
Loss Account and is recognized only on receipt basis. Further, charges and penal interest on advances is recognized on

receipl basts,

ii. Income on nor-coupon bearing discounted instruments i recognized over the tenure of the instrumants so s to
provide a constant periodic rate of return,

iti, Processing fees on loan, direct assignment and securitisation is recognised upfront when it becomes due,

iv. Dividend is accounted on an acerual basis where the right 10 recelve the dividend Is estabilished.

v, Interest incomes of deposits with banks and financial institutions is recognized on a time proportion hasis taking into
account the amaunt outstanding and the implicit rate of intarest.

vi. PSLE related income and expenses is recognised as and when they become due.
vil. All other fees are accounted for as and when thuy become due,




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
sehedule to the Financial Stataments for the year ended March a1, 2022

SCHEDULE - 17

Significant Accounting policies appended to and forming part of the financial statements for the year anded March 31,
2022

4. INVESTVIENTS;

Classification:

in accordance with RBI guidelines, investments are classified inte three categories, viz, Held 10 Maturity (HTM), Availabie
for Sate {AFS) and Held for Trading {HFT). Undes each of these categornias, investments are further classified under six
groups — Government Secwities, Other Approved Securities, Shares, Debentures and Bonds, investments in Subsidiories [
Joint Ventures and Other Investments.

The transactions in Securities arg accounted on "Settlement Date” of accounting except in the case of equity shares where
trade date accounting is followed.

Bosis of clussification:
i lnvestments that the Bank intends to hold tili aturity are classiied under “Held to Maturity {HTM)" category.
ii. Invastments that are hatd for resale within 90 days frem the date of purchase are classified as “Held for Trading (HET)".

i, Ivastments, which are not classified in the above two categories, are classified as “Available for Sale {AFS)". Further,
as-per tha RBI guidelines, HFT securities, which remain unsold for a period of 90 days are reciassifled as AFS scourities.

iv. An investment Is classified as HTM, HFT or AFS at the time of its purchase and subsequent shifting amongst categofies R
is done in conformity with repulatory guidelines,

Transfer between categories:

Transter of investments from one category to the other is done in accordance with Rt puidelines. Transfer of securitios
from AFS / HFT category to HTM category 15 made at the lower of book value or market value. In the case of transfer of
securities from HTM to AFS / HET category, the investments hetd under HTM at a discount are transferred to AFS ] HFT
category al the acguisition price and investments placed in the HTM category at a premiun are transferred to AFS/ HFT at
the amortized cost. After transfer, these securities are re-valued and resuftant depreciation, i any, is previded.

Transfer of investments from AFS 1o HET or vice- o versa i done at the book value, Depreciztion carried, if any, on such
investments is also transferred from one catepory 1o another.

Acquisition Cost:
Broken period interest if any, paid on acquisition of investments is debiled 10 prolit and Loss Account, Braken period

interesi received on sale of securities is recognized as interest income.

Valuation:
tnvestments classified under AFS and HFT categories are marked to markat individually and depreciationfappreciation is

aggregated for each group and ret depreciation in each group is provided and net appreciation 13 lnared.

Yraded investments {if any} are valued based on the trades / guotes on the recognised stock exchanges of pricas
published by financial Benchmarks Indla Pyt Lid. {FBIL) with Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives Assaciation
(FIMMOA) a3 the calculating agent.

The market vatue of unguoted government of India secutities, state government securities elc. which are directly issued
by the government of india is computed as per the prices published by FBIL with FIMMODA as the calcuating agent.

Unquoted equity shares are valued at the break-up value, if the latest Balance sheet is avaltable or at X 1 for each
campany as per the RBI guidelines,
Units of mutual funds are vaiyed at the latest repurchase price J net asset value declared by the mutual fund.

Treasury bills, commercial papers and certificate of deposits being discounted instruments, are valued at cascying £ost.

Net depreciation in the valie, if any, compared to the gcquisition Cost, 0 40y of the greups, is chasged to the Profit and
Loss Account. The net appreciation, if any, in any of the groups is not recognised except Lo the exient of deprecialicn
pravided earlier,
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JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

Schedale to the Fnanual Statements fnr the year ended March 31, 2027

SCHEDULE . 17
Significant Ascounting Folicies appended to and formsing part of the financlal statements for the year ended March 31,
2022

investments classified under HTM category are carried at thelr acguisition ¢ost and not marked to market, Any premium
on acquisition Is amortised over the rematning maturity perind of the security on a constant yiefd-to-maturity basis, Such
anortisation of premium is adusted against Interest income under the head "Incame from investraents”. Any dimiaution,
other thar the temparary, In the value of investments in HTM category is provided for.

security receipts {SR) are valued as per the net asset valee provided by the issuing Asset Reconstruction Company from
time to fime.

Non-performing lnvestments are identified and provision are made thercon based on the REI guidelines. The provision on
such non-performing fnvestments are not set off against the appreciation in respoct of other performing investments.
Interest 0n nor-parfarming investments is not recognized in the Profit and Loss Account until received.

Disposai of nvestments; '
Profit/ Loss o sale of investments s takin £a Profit and Loss Account, Howevar in tase of profit on sale of Investments in
“Held to Maturily” category, an equivalent amount of profit (net of applicable taxes and amount required to be
transferred to statutory reserves) is appropriated ta Capital Reserve in accordance with RBI guidelines, Cast of
investments is based on the weighted average cost method,

Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions:

In aceorcance with the RBI guidelines, repurchase [Repo) amd reverse repurchase {Reverse Repo) transactions in
sovernment securities and corparate debt securlties are reflected as borrowing and lending transactions respectively,
Borrowing cost on repo transactions is accounted as interest expense and revenug on reverse repo transadtions s
accounted a5 intarest insome, '

5. ADVANCES CLASSIFICATION AND PROVISIONING:

Clussification:

Advances are classified into parforming and non-perforping advances ('NPAs') as par the RB! guidelines snd are stated net
of specific provisions made towards NPAs. Further, NFAs are classifiad into sub-standard, doubtfu! and loss assels hased
on the criterla stipulated by the RBL Provisions for NPA is made at rates as prescribed by the RBE and as per fBank's
internal credit policy and same 1s charged to the Profit and Loss Account under Provisicns and Contingencies.

Nan-perfarming advances are written-off in accordancs with Bani's policies. Amounts recoversd against debts written-off
are recopnised in the Profit and Loss atcount as "Miscellanegus income” under Other income [Schedule 143,

The Bank considers a restructured account as one where the Bank, for economic or tegal reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, grants to the borrower concessions that the Bank would aot otherwise consider.
Restructuring wauld normally invelve madilication of terms of the advances/securities, which would generally include,
amang others, alteration of repayment period/ repayable amount/ the amount of Instalments/ raie of interest {due to
reasons other than competitive reasons). Restructured accounts are classified as such by the Bank only upon approval
ard implementation of the restructuring package. Nucessary provision including diminution in the fair value af a
resyructured atcount is made and classification thereof i as per the extant BB guidelings.

The Bank mamtains & general provision on standard advances at the rates prescribed by the RBL Provision made against
standard assets is included In "Other liabilities & provisions" (Schedule 55,

The Bank transfers advances thiough inter-bank participation, In accordance with the RBI puidelines, in the case of
participation with sk, the aggregate amount of the participation 1ssued by the Bank s reduced from advances. |n case of
participation with nop-risk sharing, the aggregate amount of participation is classified as horrowings.




JANA SMIALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
Selwdule ta the Faancial Staements for the year ended March 31 PIER

SCHERULE - 37

significant Accounting Policies appended Lo and farming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022

Tha Bank vide RDI circutar FIDD.CCLPYa n.BC.23/04.09.01/2015- 16 dated April 67, 2016 trades in priority Sector portfolio by
sefiing or buying Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLCs). There is no transfer of risk on Ipan assels in these
rransactions. The fee paid for purchase of the PSLC s teated as an ‘Expense’ ant the fee received for the sale of PSLCS 15
treated as ‘Miscellaneous ineome’.

Flogting Provisions:

Provistons made, i any, In excess of the Bank’s policy for specilic Joan loss provisions for non-performing assets and
regulatory genersl provisions are categorised as floating provisions. Creation of fiaating provisions is considered by the
pank up to a level approved by the Board of Directors in accordance with the RBI guidelines, froating provisions are used
up to a level approved by the Board only for contingencies under extraordinary circumastances and for making specific
provisions for impaired accounts as per these guidelines or any regulatory guidance / instructions, Floating provisions, if
any, are shown under *Other fiabilities and Provisionsy” {Schodule 5).

6. SECURITISATION AND TRANSFER OF ASSETS:

Axsats transfarred through securilisation and direct-assignment of cash flows are desrecognised when they are sald {tue
On sale of strossed assets, if the sale is at a price below the vel hook value (i.e., funded outstanding less spetic
provisions hald}, the shorifall is charged to the Profit and Loss Account and if the safe is for a value higher than the net
book value, the excess pravision is cradited to the Profit and Loss Account in the year when the sum of cash received by
vy of initial consiceration and / or redemplion or transfer of security receipts issued by SC/RC exceads the net book
value of the loan at the time of transfer.

In respect of stressed assets sold under an asset securitisation, where the Investment by the bank in security recaipts {SRs)
acked by the assets sold by it is more than 10 percent of such SRy, pravisions held are higher of the provisions recuiired
i terns of net asset value dectarad by the Securitisation Company {'$¢") / Reconstruction Company {'RC) and provisions
as per the extant norms applicable to the underlying foans, netionally treating the book value of these 3Ry as the
corresponding stressed foans assuming the joans ramained in the books of the Bank.

The Bank invests in Pass Through Centificates (PTCs) issued by othar Special Purposa Vehicles (SPVs). These are accounted
at acquisition cost and are classified as investments. The Bank also buys loans through the direct assignment route which
are classified as advances. These are carried 8¢ acquisition cost untess it is more than the face value, in which tase the
premivum is amortised based on effective intergst rate methed.

pank recognizes Fxcess Interest Spread (E15) only on cash hasis and Over Collateratization, if any, is included in the Gross
Advances and il is provided for as per the provisioning norms of REL

Direct Assignment portiolio bought by the Bank, if any, are chassified as advances. These are canied at goguisition cost
unless it is more than the face value, in which case the premium is amoriised over the tenor of the lpans,

7. FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION: .

Fixeed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreclation as adjusted for Impalement, if any. Cost includes cost of
purchase inclusive of freight, duties, incidental expenses and all other directiy attributable expenditures towards
acquisition and instaltation of assets before it Is ready for commerzial use. Subsequent expeaditure ncurred on 055ets put
ra use 35 capitalised only when it increases the future banefit / tunctioning capability fram / of such assets. Specific prant
received for scquisition of fixed assets are reduced from the cost of the asset.

Deprectation on fixed asset is charged over the estimatad useful life on a straight line basis after retaining 3 resicduat vidue
of 0.01%, except fur leasehold improvements and software which are fully depreciated,
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Significant Accounting Policies appended to and forming part of the financial statements tor the year snded March 31,
2022

The Bank is following the estimated useful life as stated in the Part © of Schadule it of Companies Act, 2013 which is as
balow:

Type of Asset Useful Lifo

Compurters including desktops and electronie equipment 3 Years

Servers and petworks 6 Years

Furniture and fixtures 10 Years

Electrical instaliation . 10 Years

Motor vehicles & Years

Office equipment 5 Years

Leasehold Improvements Remaining primary leasehold perind as par agresmern

The estimated usefuf fife of the intangible assets are reviewad at the end of cach financial year and the amortisation
period is revised to reflect the changad pattern, if any.

Software i depreciated fully over the useful life of the soltware based on the license validity or five years whichever is
earlier,

Fixed assets purchased during the year are depreciated on the basis of actual number of days the asset has been put to
use In the year, Fixed assets disposed off (luring the vear ate daprectated up to the date of disposal.

Profit or kosses arising from the retirement or disposal of a Fixed / Intangible Asset are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of fxed/ intanglble assets and recogaized as income or
eipense in the Profit and Loss Account. Profit on sale of premises, If any, is transferred to Capital Reserve as per the RE|
guidetines,

BIMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS {Other than loans and advancesh:

i accordance with AS-28- Impalrment of assets, Bank assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether thera is any indication
of impairment of assets based on internal / extornal factars. impairment foss, if any, is provided in the Profit and Loss
Account to the extent of carrying amount of assets excesds their estimated recoverable amount, which is higher of an
assel's net selling price and its value in use. in assessing value in use, the estimatad future cash flows are discountad 1o
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
risks specific to the asset.

Alter impairment, deprectation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful fife.
When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in earlier accounting periods no fonger exists or
may have decreased, such reversal of impairment foss 15 recopnised 1n the Profit and Lo<s Account, to tha extent the
armgunt was previously chargad to the Profit and Loss Account,
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Sipnificant Accounting Policies appended to and ferming part of the financial staternents for tha year ended March 31,
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9. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS:

{i} Forpign currency transactions are rerorded in the reporting currency, by Jpplying o the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate botween the reparting currency and the forelgn currency at tha date of the transaciion.

{ii) Forgign cusrancy monetary items are reporied using the closing rate. Nan-monetary items which are carried in terms
of histarical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate a1 the date of the transaction.

All exchange differences are recognized as Income OF 85 expenses in the period in which they arise.

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFiTS:

Defined contribution plon:

Retirement benefits it the form of provident fund and employee state nsurance schame arg defined contribution
sehames and the contribulions pre charged to the Profit and Loss Accaunt of the year whan the contributions to the
respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective funds.

Defined benefit plan and campensated absences:

Liability for defined benelit gratuity plan and acoumulated compansated absences is determined by estimating the praesent
value of amount of benefit that employees have earned In return far their service in the current and prior periods. The
Bank accounts for its Hability for unfunded compensated absences and funded gratuity based on actuarial valuatian, as 3t
the Balance Sheet date, determined annually by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Metho. Tha Bank
rmakes contribution to Gratuity Funds managed by life insurance campanies. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in
full in the Profit and Loss Account for the peried and are not deferred.

Short term employee benefits:
Short term employes benefits expected to be paid in consideration for the services rendered by the employees is

recognized during the period when the employae renders service.

11, INCOME TAXES:

Income tax expense is the eggregate amount of curreat tax and deferred tax expense incurred by the Bank, The current
tax expense and deferred tax expense are determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and
a3 per Accounting Standard 22 - Accounting for Tases on incoma respectively.

Beferred tax is recognizad on timing dilferences, being the differences betwean the taxable Income and the accounting
income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods, Deferred tax assats
and Yabilities are measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enagted or substantively enacted as at the balanee shest
date. Deferred tax assats are recognized only to the extent therg is reasonable certainty that the assets ¢an be realized in
future. in case of unabsorbed depreciation or carvied forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assels are recognized
only if there is virtual cartainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tox assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
and appropriately adjusted to reflect the amount that is reasonably / virually certain ta be reatized.

12, EARKINGS PER SHARE:

Bank reports basle and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting Standard « 20, Earmings Per Share. Basic
parnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or fass for the yesr attributable to equity shareholders (sfter
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equily shares outstanding during the year, The veeighted
average numbar of equity shares gutstanding during the year is adjusted for events of axercise of employee stock options
and restricted stock units, bonus issue, benus element in a rights issue Lo existing shareholders and share sphit.

Dituted eatnisgs per share reflects the potential dilution thal could eecur i contracts to issue equily shares were exescised
or converted during the yesr. Diluted eamings per puity share are computed using the wezighted average aumbes of
equity shares and the dilutive patential equity sharas [slock options, restricted stock units and convertible prelers
_shares) cutstanding during the year, except where the results are anti-dilutive,
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13, PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS;

in accordance with AS 29 « Provisions, Contingent tiabilities and Contingent Assets, the Bank croates a provision when
there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it s probable thal an cutflow of reseurces
will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which reliable estimate can be made. Provisions {eweliuding
retirement benefits] are not discounted ta lts present value and are determined based on best estimate reguired to settle
the ohligation at the batances sheet date. These are reviewed 2t each balance sheat date and adjusted to refieet the
turrent best estimates. I it is no longer probable that an outflow of resource would be required ta setile the oldigation,
the provision i reversed,

A disclosure for comtingent liability is made when there is;

il A possivle obligation arising from the past events, the existence of which will be confirmed by sceurrence or nan-
occurrence of one ar more uacertain future events nol within the control of the bank: or

iM] A present obligation arising from a past event which is not recognized s It is not probable that an outflow of resaurces
witl be required 1o settle the obligation or 2 reflable estimate of the amount of abligation cannot ba made.

When there Is a possible obligation or present obligation in respect of which the Iikelihood of outflow of resources i
remaots, ne provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent #ssets are not recognised in the financial statements, However, contingent assels are assessed continually and
If i is virtually certain that an inflow of economit benefits will arise, the asset and related incame are recognised i the
period in which the ¢hange occurs.

L4 ACCOUNTING FOR LEASE:

Operating Leaset

Leases, where the lessor effectively retalns substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased term are
classified as operating leases in accordance with Accounting Standard 19, Leases. Lease rentals on assets under operating
tepse is charged off to the Profit and Loss Account on a straight-fine basis In accordances with the AS-19.

Finance Lease!

Leases under which the Bank assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of awnership are classificd as finance leases,
Assets taken on finance Ioase are initially capitalised at falr value of the asset or present value of the minimum lease
payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower, Lease payments are apportioned betwesn the finance charpe
and redoction of the outstanding liability, The finance charge Is allocated to periods during the lease tarm so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining batance of liability for each pertod.

Asset givert on finonce lease

It case of assets given under finance lease, leased assels are recopnised as a receivable at an amount equal 1o the net
nvestment in the lease. Lease rentals are apportioned between principal and interest on the internal rate of return. the
principal amount received reduces the net investment in the lease and interest is recognised as revenue,
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Significant Accounting Policies appended 10 and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022

15, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Cash an¢ cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with Reserve Bank of India, balances with other

banks/institutions and money at call and short natice.

16, CASH FLOW STATEMENT:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect methad, whereby prefit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of
a non-tash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or
pxpenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, Jovesting and financing
activities of the Bank are segrepated.

17. SHARE ISSUE EXPENSES:
Share istue expenses are adjusted against Share Premium Account in terms of Section 52 af the Companies Act, 2013,

18, SEGMENT INFORMATION:
The disclosure relating to segment information- i n accardance with Aceounting Standard-17, Segmant Reporting and as
per the guidetings issued by RBL Bank has classified its business inte following for segment reporting:

(a) Treasury includes ali investment portfolios, Profit / Loss on sale of Investments, equities, Income trom money market
opetations.

{b) Corporate / Wholesale Banking includes all advances to companies and statutory bodies, which are not inchsded
under Retail Banking.

{e) Retail Banking includes fending to and deposits from retail customers and identilied earnings and expenses of the
Segment,

(¢} Other Banking Cperations inciudes all other operations not covered under Treasury, Corporate / Wholesale Banking
and Retail Banking.

Unalincated includes Capital and Reserves and other unallocable assels, liabilities, income and expenses.

19, CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:
Expenditure incurrad towards corporate social respansibility are recognised as and when becomes due.

20, EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN and RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS:
Designated Employees of the Bank receive remuneration in the form of share based payment transacticns, whereby
employess render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settied transactions},

i accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments, issusd by the institute of
Chartered Accountants of india, the ctost of equity-settled transactions i3 maasured using the intrinsic method and
recognlzed, together with a corresponding increase In the "Employees Stock options outstanding account” in reserves.
The curnulative expense recognized for equity-settied transactions at each reporting date uniil the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting geriod has expired and the Bank's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
wilt ultimately vest. The expense or credit recognized in the Profit and Loss Account for a period represents the mavemneant
in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that peried and Is recopnized in employee benefits
expensea,

Consequent 1o k8! Guidelines on Compensation of Whole Tune Directors/ Chief Executive Officers/ Material Risk Takers
and Control Function Staff, new stock options granted to Whaole Time Directors, Chief Executive Officers and Materlal Risk
Takers on or after Aprit 01, 2021, are recognised at fair value on the date of grant using Black-Scholes model.

21, BORROWING COST:
Borrowing tost incluedes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings and exchange differences wising from foreign currency borrowings 1o the extent they are regarded as an
adjustrent to the interest cost.




IAMA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

SCHTDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS FOR THE YEAR EMDED MARCH 31, 2022
Al amensnts are in dndion Rupees to Croras unless othersise Stated)

Selreduln 18 - Notes forming part of the Financial Statentents for the yess ended March 31, 2022

i Capltal
1.1 Capital Adequacy Ratio [CAR)

Tha loliowing tabie sets fartly, for the year indizated, compatation of capital adequacy 85 per the operating guidelings.

Particulars i Morchi 31, 2022 1 March 31,2021
Cornmon equity ter 1 capital 986,593 924,64
;Iir:-rl capial 1,136,493 107469
Tier 2 caphtal 330.39 344,14
Total capital (Tier 1+ Tlor 2 1,467,312 1,418.83
(Fotal fisk Weighted Assots (RWAS) ' 961311 § $,147.05 |
Common Bty tGar 1 capitad ratio {%) [Common equity tier 1 s a perentape of RWAS) 10274 101
Tiar | capital ratio (%) {Tlee § Capital 35 9 percentage of RWAS) 11.83% 1L75%
Tier 2 capital ratio {%) [Tier 2 Capital 35 a percentage of RWAs) 3.43% 3,75‘;?
Capital o RWAS ratio {%) (CRJ\R) {Yotal Capital as a percentage of RWAS) 15.26% 15.51%
Leverage Ratls 5.63% 5.62%
Percenlage of the shareholding of Government of India - .
Ainvount ol tier FTeapital raised throogh dabteapital vstruments during theyaar - 0 e e GO e vt e

Buring the year the Bank has renswed subordinated debt (Tier 2 Copital] amounting to 2 75 rroeres and rapaid €255 grores {March 31, 2021 Niff. Subordinated
et {Tiar 2 capital) oulstanding 25 at March 31, 2021 i T abG crores {March 31, 20213 701 croces).

1.7he Capiral Adeguacy Ratio {CAR} has Been Compted in accordance with RBL Ciroular Mo, REIZG16-12/81 DBR NBD.NG, 38/16.13.218/20158-17 datad
Oeteber 6, 2016 on Opecaling Guidetinas for Sniall Finsnce Ranks. As per the saitf circular, prodential regutatory framework will largely be drawn from the
Hase!l stordards for cepital requirements and  Basel 11 standardized  agproach for credit risk. Further, the RBE wide s Circular Ho.
R, NBD No.4502136.13.218/2017-18 dated November 08, 2017 has provided an exertion (o alt Small Finance Banks whereby i separate capital charge s
preseribed for markot risk and operationai risk.

2. The Bank has appliod 100% risk weight on advances charged as securlty against grandfathered borrowings on the date of conversion Into a Small Finance
Bank,

3, Sub-ordinated debt inclusion in Fier Z capitat has bren Brolled o 30% of Tier 1 capitah

I acgordance with the RBI goidations, Banks are reguired to make Pillar 3 distlosures ender the Base! 11 Framework and Net Stable Funding Ratip (NSFR}
Diselpsures. Thase disclasires are availablo on the Bank's website at the [ollowing Bnk: https:/fwww janabank rom/regulatory disclosures/

the disilosures have not been subjected Lo sudit by the statutory augditors of the Bank.

1.2 Capital Infuston
Buring the year ended March 31, 2022, the Bank has issuid equity sharas having face value of % 30 each for cash persuant 1o preferential alkatment of

£i,31,423 couity shares at £ 968.56 each aggrogating to T86.00 crores (March 31, 2021 Nil). Further, during the year endad the ank has allotted 2,884 equity
sharas (March 31, 2021. 8£54) raspectively with respect 0f stock options exercisad aggrepating to 10.32 crores {March 31, 2021: % 1.20 eroees),

Detatls of movement in the paid up equity share capital are as below ;

Particulars Marci 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No. of Equity Amoust No. of Equity Amaunt
shares shares
Eauity shares as at the beginning of the year 507,207.257 5173 5,07,18,603 50,72
Addition puzsuant Lo stock option exercised 2,884 000G 4,654 0.0
Addition pursuant Lo equily shares issued durlng the year 6,851,429 (.68 - -
Equlty shares outstanding as at the end of the year 5.14,11,564 51.41 5,00.27,257 50,73

In terms of Section 12 of the Banking Kegulation Act 1949, the subscribed caplial of @ hanking comgpany opecating i lndis shall not be lass tian one-hall of the
authorized capital, and the paic-up capital shall ot be tess than one-hatf of the subscribied capitel. As al the rommencemen{ of banking operaticns (March
28, 20138), the Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Bank wiss % 38,29 crores as against the authorised shace capital of 1,327.60 crores. The Bank bas
recaivid scheduled Bank status with effact from July 16, 2019 vide publication in the Gasstle of fedia [Part it - Section 4] dated July 27 - Augus 02, 2619,
Acenrdingly, Jana Small Finange Bank timiled is included i the seenndd scheguie of the Reserve Bank of India A, 1934, As on July 31, 2019, the issued,
wliseribed and paid up capital of the Bapk was X 197 16 crores which forms 14.85% of its authorized share capital. The Hank's paid-up capital as on July 31,
14 et the statutery rmquirement 35 above, whils the subsscribsed capital dld not meet with the datutory requiremgnt of heing not less than half of the
Autharized Capital,

In order to cormply with the above stotutory requirement, on february 03, 2020 the Bank has dirminished it's suthorised sharg capral 10 % 350 coores
comprising Equity Share Cagital of L 100 crores and Preference Share Capilad of 2 250 crores.
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LA cartandS P an dndien Rupses o Ctones ainess othe ot st}

& Larnings per eguity share

“March 33, 2022

Particulars

KJ;Ei;r;;k?{“nftﬂrmx (¢ crores) T T i ) 540

Weighted average aumbier of equity sharas in computing e Dasic rarnings per share 5.08,19 000 9,07,25,922

5$sic carnings per share ¢ o 10!: 1652

wypiphied average number of egaily .;r”);mv; :;;‘c.ompuiing thee diluted earsings pacshare 504, 82,456 7 5,36, 84,456

Diluted earnings per share ¥ o 049 15,70

ﬁm‘ralnai vakile per share 2 o o B 10D 000

L. Bsic 2arRings per shire & colculated by diviging the net profit of losy afier 1ax Tor the year atiributabie fo equity sharcholders by the wiighted averaje
numiber of pguily shares sutstandleg during tha yar.

2. Diluted earnings per gquity share is computad Yy dividing net prokl of loss for the yeer attributabie to equity shareholdess by weightedt avirige puinbiar of
eauity shores inclading potential eiudty shares cutstanding as al tha end of tha year, except when results are anti dilutive.

3 The difulive impact s on account of stack options granted 1o eimployess and Nan-Cumtative Cormpulsorily Convertible Pealerence Shares.

1. Resdrves

3{a) Statutory Resarve

The Bank has transferret € 1.35 crores (March 31, 2021 X 21.08 erores) 1o statutory tesesves pursuant 1o the requirements of Section 17 of the Banking

wagilation ACt, 194% dad KT guidelized ilsted Sapténsbicr 23, 20000

3{b} Capital Ruserve
The Bank has transferred ® 105 crores {March 31, 2021: % 3,14 croras) wo capital reserves, Leing 1he profit from sale of HTM investmaeeats, net of taxgs and
apprapralion 10 stalutory reservey, a5 pef the RBI reguiations.

3{¢) Share premium account
Shaee issue expenses amounting 10 % N (March 31, 2023 Nil} are adpustad from securities premium atcount i terms of section 52 (23 {2} of the Companies

Act, 213

3{d) Investment Resarve
The Rank has transfarred 2 0.29 crores {March 31, 2021 Nil) o tvestment Reserve, being the escess depreciation provisions crealed on CAFS or HET
caiegorios of investment than the regquired amount for the yoae, a5 par the RBI regulations,

3] Investiment Fluctuation Reserve
As per RO master direction, Banks were required to create an IFR with elfect From 2018-19 Lo reach 3 lavel 6f 2% of BET and AFS portiolio wilthin a periog of

e years, where feasibio. IFR shall be created by transferdng an amount aot less than the lower of the following:

(i} Mot profit on sole of Investrents duadng thi year

{it} Net profit for the yoar less mandatory appropriations

Thwe Bank has transforred € 0.58 crores for the year ended March 31, 2022 (March 31, 20215 R 1660 crores) 1o avestimeal fhictualion reseoves,

31f) Drawdown of Reserves
Dueing the year andid Rarch 31, 222 there werg 6o drawiiwn from reserves {March 3%, 3021 Nith
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AL eeaunts arpin indian Rupees ir Crores unless otherwse shistingl
4. Employens Stock Option Plaw Scheme

Ther Baok has share- based payinent schemes for 11°s eraployees, Schrmies in operations duting the year ended March 31, 2022 are Employes stock optian plan
selseme 2007, Bployes stock oplion plar soheme 2018, Rastriclive Stock Unlts Scheme 2017 and Rostrictive Stock Units Scheme 2014

Thedetalis of the Employee Stuck Gptlon Plan Schemes (ES0P) and Restrictive Stock Unit Scheme (RSU) during the year ended March 11, 2022

- Particulars ESOP 2017 ESOP 2018 RSU 2017 RSU 2038
Grant date Varous dates | varlous dates Various dates Various dates
Tatal sptions undar the plan 18,67.579 w2sgey | WD ol ESOR | Subssetof ESOP
Lo ' 2017 2018 i
Nusther of gptions gramted 1,86,004 1,815 17,688 9,189
[Method of settlement Equity Eq ity Eguity Equity

Visting

25% alter one year from the date
of grant

25% after twa years from the date
of grant

26% alter three years from the
tate of grant

Balange 24% aftor faur yoars from
tho date of gramt

One year from the date of prant

Frercisable period

The.Exerclse pediod _shall —be
subjéct to o maximurg period of 5
years commencing from, the date
of vesting of such Option or 2
years fram the date of Usting,
whichevas is fater,

The Txgrcise pesiod shall be subject]
o a maximum period of § years
eomenencing  from, the date of
vasting of such Option or 2 yooars
from the date of Listing, whichever is
later.

Vesting conditions

Continugd employmant/ service]
with the Company on relevant
tate of vesting, includmg with 1he
Subsidinrics Company, as tho case
may be

The NRC shalt have the power to
accelerate Vesting of all Unvested
Options of an Employee who is
considered o Good Leaver,

Continingd amployment/ sorvice with
the Company on relevant date of
vasting, including with the
Subsidiaries Company, a5 the case
may be

The NAL shal! have the power to
accelerate Viesting of all Yavesieg
Qptiens of an Employes  who s
considered a Good Leaver,

Exortize price per option (1)

S6Q.5% and 968,50

$0.00
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(AR g s e I indian fugees in Croees wiless therwise staled]

The delails of the Employee Stock Option Plan Schames (ES0P) asd Restrictive Stock Unit Schizme (RSt} during the yoar anded March 31, 2021

Particulars

ESGP 2017

£S09 2018

RSL 2017 RSU 2018

Ejran! [rate

varigus dalas

Yarious dates

Varions dates Varions doles '

Subeser of £50P | Sulb-sed of £50P

Cption available under the pla 579 20,723,697

ptian av plan 18,67.579 20,23,60 1017 g
Number of Qptions granted 25,512 17,564 1,041
hethod of Settloment Equity Eguity Eguity Egulty |

Vesting

259 aftes one year from the date

ot grant

25% after two years from the date

of grant

269 sfter three years from the

date of grant

Balange 25% after Tour years from

the dite of grant

One year from the date of grant

Exercisabla period

Tha Exercise period shall e
subject Lo g maximum period of 5
years commenacing from, the date
ol Vesting of such Option of 2
vears from the date of Listing,
wilchever s latisr, -

The Exercise period shall ba subjecl
to 3 makimium period of 5 yeary
commencing  from, the date ol
Vvosting of such Option ¢r 2 years
from the date of Listing, whichever i3
vty e e i

Yesting conditions

Continued employment/ service
with the Company on raievant
date of vasting, nciuding with the
Subsigiaries Cornpany, as the cise

may be,

The NRC shali have Yhe power o

accelerate Vesting of all Unvested

Options of an Employes whe is

considered 3 Good Leaver.

Conlinded employment/ service with
the Campsny on relevant date of
vesting, including  with the
subsidiaries Company, o5 the case
may be,

The WAL shall have the power o
accalerate Vesting at all Unvested
Optlons of an Employee who &
sonsldered a Good teaver,

Exercise price per optios (%)

960.59

10.00

The tollowing are the autstanding optlons #s at year ended March 31, 2022:

As at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

Particufars ESOP 2017 ESOP 2018 | £SOP 2017 {RSU) | ESOP 2018 (RSU)
Total Options granted and outstanding at the beginning af the year 14,501,448 3,93,03% 63,075 14,656
Add: Options granted during Lhw year 1,586,094 1,815 17,688 9,189
Less: Options forfeited / fapsed during the year 177,478 69,545 - 1,687
Less ; Opticns exercised during the year - - 843 2.043
Options Outstanding as at end of the yoar 146,064 1,24,958 79,922 20,115

- Vested 1,98,301 180921 71,083 16,926

- Yoi 30 vest 5,61,763 1,144,037 8,839 9,189

The follawing are the outstanding options as at and for the year ended March 31, 20211

Particulats As st and for the year ended March 31, 2021
ESQP 2017 ESOP 2018 | £S0P 2017 {RSU) | ESOP 2018 (RSU)}
Tatal Options granted and putsianging at the beginning of the yoas 16,90,629 5,03,932 45,211 23760
Add: Options granted during the year 25,512 . 17,864 1,041
Less: Options forfeited J lapsed during the yoor 2,64,603 1,310,393 . 1,500
Less | Opyions exercised during the year - - - 8,654
Options Qutstanding as at end of the year 14,51,418 3,913,039 63,075 14,656
- Vested 6,94, 834 1,431,103 62,034 13,635
~ Yot lo vest 156,614 251,936 1,041 1,041

As per SEBI guidelines, the accounting for share based payments can be done eithar under Ihe tatrinsic Value® basis or 'Fair Value' basis, As per the approval
of Board the Bank has adopiad ‘Intrinsic Value' method for accounting of share based payments.




JANEASPALL FINANCE DBANK LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

{0 smaats gre o ndion Rupees in Srores unless ot

o s lirted}

B o TV Farthe'year | Fortheyear

partitulars ended March 31, { ended March 31,
e s e e - Lo A S

yon Stock Oplion ﬂmf-:nt.iifurn s 013 o7 -’E-K

Re aetive Stock Units expenditure e 169 - i ?6]

al 2.42 10.97
Partiaulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Lreunt of Employes stack aptians and restrictive stock units autstanding 16,14 1405

£Hee of fair value method of accounting - share based paymant plars i the Profit and Loss Account and on its fluancial position;

The key assumptions used in Black Scholes model for caloulating value of optlons as on the date of the grant are from Aprll 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022

5, The waighted averspe-fair vatve of optlons granted € - -

E50P 2017 & 1018
Particulars and £S0OP (RSU}
017 & 2018
y&rimles )
L. Hisk free intetest rate ) L74% - 6,26%
2, Expected #e (inyoars) 4,50
3. Expected volatility GE00% - W0.42%
4. Divldend yield 0.00%
82319

The key assumptions used In Black Scholes model for cateulating value of options as on the date of the grant are from April 1, 2020 to March 33, 2021

ESOP 2017 & 2018

S, The welghted average fair value of ppticns grantod €

Particulars and £SOP (R5U)
2017 & 2018

Varlables Tranche 3

1. Risk Free Interest Rate 5.15% - 5.75%

2. Eapected Life {in years) A.50

3. Expacted Volatility 64.63% » 67.19%
0.00%
578.05

The guidance note issund By the Institute of Chartered Accountants of intia requiras the disciosure of pro forma net results and Earniogs Per Share (EPS) both
wasic and diluted, had the Company adopted the foir value method amortizing the stock compensation expense thareon over the vesting period, the repored
prafit would have been lowet by % 14.03 crores {March 31, 2028 reported profit would have bieen lower by % 28.55 crores). The birsic and diluted £PS for the

year ended March 31, 7022 would have been (1,70 angd §[{1.70) respeclively (March 31, 2023 L 11.9% and ¥ 10.35).

The expected fife of the stock option 1 based o histotical data and current expectation and is not necessarly indicative of the pattorn that may oceur. The
expocted volalility roflects the assumptlon that the historical volatility of & romparable Hsted entity for & years perlod anded on the date of tha gront i

indicotion of future trends which may not necessarnily be the actual outcome,
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JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LINMITED

SCHEQULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDUL MARCH 31, 2022

(AN senauals are o ivdian Rupess o Croees aofess dtherwise Stu'vid)

S{t) Movement of pravision for depreciatinn and lavestment Fluctuation Reserve

_Maren 33, 2022 |

Maich 33, 2021

Farticulors o = — e -
1} Movement of provisions held lowards ciépmcla-tigr"{gnwlﬁvestmcnls - - ) N 3
@) Opeoing Bualange e : ; e .40 o
bj Audh; Provision made during Lhe year R .40
¢) Less: Write-off fwrite batk of pxcass provision during the year ) » = 035 :
df Closing halance ) - ] 001 G0
i) Movement of investmeat Flucation Reserve (IFR} o
a) Qpening batange 21.23 4.64
by Add; Aot transiorsed during the wear o Q.58 R }9;59‘
) Livss: Sravedown o ' - . B
o} Closing balarce - ILB1 21.23
=ii] Closing batince In [FR as @ percenlage of clasing balance of investments In AFS and HFE/Current Category o 1.07% _ Q.70%

s{c) Sale and Transtars to/lrom HTM Category

Queing the year eoded March 31, 2022, thie Bank has not transferred seowrities from beld-to-matunty (HTN category (o avallable-Jor salie (AFD) Cafegary.

During the yiar srided March 3172022, the Bank has net ondoriaken any transaciions for sole of secutities ol the HTM portiohio #vApnl 12021 The atiove
sale is excluding sale to RDY under pre-annaunced apen market operplion auctions and repurchase of goverpment seckrities by Guvernment of tndia, as

pecmitted by RBF guidelines.

During the year ended March 31, 2021, with the approval of Boued of Biradions, the Bank transferred secusities with 3 nat book vatue of 3 350.52 crares from
hiold-1o-maturity (HTAM} category 1o avalable for-sale (AFS] category, being ranster of securities at the beginning of the accounting year as permitiad by the

RBI

Buting the yasr anded March 31, 2021, the Bank undertook 4 transscbons for sale uf secuniies with a net book vatue of 3 356.52 crores, whizh was 81 .53% of
the WM ponfolio at Aprt 1, 2020, The above saie s exthuding sale w RB undar pre-announced opan mirket dperation auctions and reparchase of

sovernment securities by Government of India, as penmitted by the RBI guidelings,

I accordane with the RBI guielines, sales from, and transfers ta / fram, NTM category exclude the following from the 5% ca
1. One-time transfer of secuyrdies permitted to be undertaken by banks 2t the beginning of the accouating year with approwal of the Board of Direciors;

2, Sales o the R&: under pra-anneunced open market aperation auctions;
3, Repurchase of Governmet secudties by Govermnent abindsa from banks;
4. Additional shilting of sccurities sxplictly permitted Dy the RBI from time o tme;

5. Repurchase of state development foans by respective stale governments under Duy back Sswitch operations, and

B Direct sados troet HTA lor bringing down SUR haldings n the HIM categery.

5{d} Mon-SLIL investmant Portiolio
The NPA in noa-SER investiment is ghvin bataw -

Particulars

March 33, 2022

March 3L, 2022

il Opaning balance

hi Add: Addition during the yeai

vl Less: caduclions during the yiar

o) Closing bialanse

o} Tatal Broviston held

(i) tssuiaise compasition of nor-SLE investinents
As on Margh 31, 2022, the Bank held Dafow non SER Invistments,

Extent of
Extent of “below Extent of Extieny of
issuer Amount privale jovestment Munrated” “unlisted”
placementi graded” securitiosd securitiesy
seouritiesdt
L Public sevtor undertakings - - - .
2. Financial inslitutions - B . .
J.Banks ) B . .
A.8rivade cotparates -
5. Subsidiarios / Jolat vestures - - - N
6.0thers ISecarity Regeipts) B 9a.62
7.Pravision held fowards depreciation - e
Toral ' 92,52 - }

# Amounts reparted under these columns abiove are not muluaily exclusiee




IAMEASMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

SCHIDULES FORMING PARY OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3,203k

{AIE exrounsts ore in indige fupees b Crtres anbess athenwse storted)

Buring the previgus year ended 3arch 43, 2025, the Bank had weitten off non-SLE investments is unlistod equity shigres of T3 ceores

laxeaer

1LPuiblic sector undertakings

Ameaint

Extent of
Extent of "below
private hvestment
platemant# graded”

securitiesy

Exteni of
funrated”
securitiosd

Extent of
“unlistad”
securitiosd

2 Fimnchl institutions

l8anks

4.Private carparatos

5, Subsidiaries / Joing ventures

6.0thers

7.pravision held towards deptreciation

Total

# Arvounts reparted under these columns pbove are not mtituolly exclusive

S{e} Repof Reverse Repo Transactions

Details of repo f eoversi repe deals (i face valige terms) {Including LAF and TREPY) dine during the yoar enged March 31, 2022,

Minlmum Maximum Daily Average o
. . T e e e DT Catstandd Ing Ay at
Partlonars outstarding gutstandirig otititanding
) March 11, 2022
during the year ; duting the year | during the year
Securities sald under repo
| Gavernment securities
a] MSF [Repo with R .00 53,00 .23
) Tri-Party Repo {TREPS) 0,05 A99.95 251.07
¢} Markae! Repo { CROMS) .99 200.94 34.06
ii. Corporate debt securities - : - -
iii. Aty othor securities {SLTRO) 150.00 200,00 2314 B83.00
Securltics purchased under revarse repo
E Government sequsities
2] LAF Reverse Repo with #B) 16.85 2,276.00 33593 30,00
b Tri-Pasty Repo {TREPS) - .
¢} Matket Repo | CROMS) B
i, Corporate delt securilics
it Any ather secarlfics

Details of repa / reverse rapo deals (in face value terms) (including LAF ant TREPS) for the year ended March 31, 2021

Minimum Maximum Daily Average
Dutstanding as at
Particulacs outstanding outstanding outstanding Mareh 31, 2021
durlng the year | during the year | during the year !
Securitles seld under repo . . -
I Government securitivg . - -
a) MSF (Repo with RBY) 4,00 5.00 0.02
uuuu b} Tei- Barty Repo (TREPS) 005 199.98 51.90
¢] Markat Repe | CROMS) 198 59,70 .30
ii. Corperate deb! securities - -
iil. Any other securities -
Secutities purchased under reverse repo -
I Government securities - - - -
) LAF (Raverse Repo with Ri4) 5.00 2013.00 404,18 1.663.00
B} Tri-Pasty Repo (TREPS) L0 100.00 .97 -
¢} Market Rapo { CROME) 5.00 0.04

A.59%

"ii_Corporate dobt securitios




JAHA SMALL FINANCE BANK LINHTED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

[AM Grogunte ape i dnadian Rupoes o Crodes pnbies sthanyer stated]

B Derivativas

Disclasure Sth raspecl w autslonding Lross Currency interest Rate Swap {CCHS]

a) Cross Currency Interest Rale Swap

Barch 3%, 2022

March3l, 2021

Particulars
i} The posional principal of swap agresments 23170
it} Losses which woultt e ncurred H countar parties failed to Tl their obligation undir the agreements - 3.7
i) Colfateral required by the Bank upon eatering into swaps . - 1191
rﬁif&mntration of credit risk ansiog from the sw;xp%;. Mil il
wi i value af $he swap book ] ) T Li.ﬁ“
The natuee and terms of the Cross Currengy intersst #ate Swap e )
Nalure o Terms | 1 Beichmark No. of deals
Hedging Flnating payable vs lixed recewable USh MIFGH 2

by Exthiange Traded Inlerest Rate Derbvatives - Not applicabie

t) Disclosures on Risk Exposure In Derivatives
{H Qualhiative Disclosure

The Bank’ s4reasuey funclion is. respongible for Bank's aceess to financial markets. Further, freasury funclion monitors and managas various Hsks relatiog lo
treasury operations of the Bank including curréncy risk, market risk and fouidity visk! In cosrse of minaging these risks, the Bank Miay usd various iarket

instrumants a8 permissibie for the Bank Lascd on RBI guigelines and internat approvals. Further, compliance with various pelicies and exposure Fmitsis
reviewed by the interal audrors a3 requirsd. The Bank does nst enter Inte any trade in finangiat instruments including derivative fiangial instruments for
speculative purposes. The grandfathered external cominercial borrowing at the time nf transitionn to Small Finance Bank was lully hedged and sarose wos
repaid dueing the Fnancial year ended March 31, 2022, Further, as per opevating puidelines for Small Finance Banks issued by the BRI, there are ns derivative

transactions entered Into dusing the year ended March 31, 2022 {March 31, 2024 A NI

__liid Quantitative Disclosure

March 31,

2022

March 31, 2021

Currency
Derlvatives

Particulars

imerast Ratg
Derivatives

Celrrency
Dorivatives

Iislerest Rate
Derivatives

(i Derivatives Notlonal Principal Amount}

aj far hadging*

23170

I} For trisging

(i} Marked 10 Markel Pasitions

aj Asset [+

1.7

o) Gty () — e

{iti} Crodit Exposure

{iv} Likely impact of one pescentage change In interest rate (1007PV)

a} on hadging derivatives

b} i trading durivatives

(v} Maximem and Midmem of 100°Pv obsarved doring the year

a) an hedging

b)on brading - §

* Peridins (o Lross Cirancy Interast rald swap

d) Credit default swaps

Thi Bank has not transacted in gredit dafault swaps dunog the year ended Karch 31, 2022, [March 31, 2

021 Nil




JAMASMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

SCHIDULES FORMING PART OF THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDLED MARCH 31,2002
(AR neants g o lndion Rupees in Crares oaless otherwise stated)

7. mstet Quality
{a) Cassification of advances and provisions held

As al March 31, 2027

Cloging Dalinge

...... Standard Non-Performing
Particutars Total Standard Total Non- Total
Sub-standird Goubtful Loss pedforming
Advapces .
Advances
Gross Standard Advianges and NPAs
Gpetlng Balancy 103,993,371 800,33 5101 G714 857,98 11,8513
Add: Additions guring the yeard 1.304.24 B
LassiReductions during Lhe yeari® 4 +1,405.31
Closing lalance 12,493.42 244.44 12,46 PERS 13,250.32
Redyctians in Griss NPAS dun to:” ; i ]
i) Upgradation 248.31
i) Recaveries [oxchuding recoveries from caq -
511.67
upgraded accountsy
{il} Technical/ Prodential Write-ofls 452,64
tv) Wiite-offs other than those under {01} above 32.70
Provisions {exciuding Floating Provisions)
Opening halance of provisions held 23931 361,21
Aud Fresh provisions made during the year” 622,87
Less: Excess provision reversedy Weite pifs B18.64
Clasing bakence of provistons held i 243.65 31978
Net NPAs
Cpening Balancn B1§.68 |
Add: Frash roditians during the year 945 18
Less: Redoctons during the year® +1,050.61
Closing Balance 1.6% 513,25
As at March 31, 2021
Standard Non-Parfarming
Total Hon-
Particulacs Total Standard Sub-standard Dotbtiul Loss performing Tatat
hdvances
Advances
Gross Standard Advances and NPAs -
Opening Balynce 981061 320,81 10,132.44
Add: Additions during the yearns 828,19
Less; Reductions duning the yeartt® S -281.01
Closing balance 14,993.33 B57.881 11,851,371
*Reductions In Gross NPAs due toe )
1 Upgradation 41.49
i) Recoveries [oxcluding recoveries from 16.82
upgraded accounts)
iif} Techacal/ Mrudentinl Write-ofiy 21B.80
W) werite-offs other than those uader i) above 13.90
Provislons {excuding Floating Provislons}
{Wpening batance of provisions hetd 4368 a5.74 139.69 0 18043 22411
Add: Fresh provisions made during the your § 29158
Less: Excass provision reversed/ Wrike-offs 2327
Closing hslance of provisions hatd 1256 209.86 21.71 5.74 23931 . Win
et NPAg
Opening Balanco 140.38
Add: Fresh additions during the yogr 612,77
Less: Reductions during the yoar® 139,48
540,47 G18.68 -

 Additions and reductions does nol include Zeoounts v

T fakinemy Hgurg

foh turnged MOA durieg o partwalar manth and subsequently moved out of ¥EA I the same monih

& Gulstanding bakanze as of Barch 31, 2021 has beon considered n Additons during she year' for accounts which ane dassibied as NPA post vacanar of
stanustilt of KPAS a3 per the Supreme Court justgement dated March 23, 2021 and the RBI cirgutar dated Al 07, 2021

5 Reprasent proviston made during the year (inchkising weite offs) as per the Profit & Loss account.

i SN—
w

W




JANA SMALL BINANCE BANK LIMITED

N S U S RN

SCHEDULES FORNING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 11, 2022

LAT oty e i indias Bupees i Crovees unfess arhenwiss stoteif

The Honouraie Suprene Courl ol India {Honble SC), vide aniateom order gated Septernber 63, 202050 the wiit patiion (Gojurshin Sharma Vs Uiian oF Ingdas
% Anrd, hatd deocted that e accounts winch wers net doestared Non-Performing Assets [MPAT) (i August 310 J020 shall not be deciarsd af MPA LI furtne
ordiers. Accordingty, an aceount, which was nol classifies as NPA s al August 31, 2020, had pot been dasilied a5 NPA subscyuently s per the REVS Master
Circular - Prudential Norms on Incame Resogoition, Assel Classification and Provisioalng pertaining 1o Advances (IRAC norass)

The interim erder pranted to not decksr e stcounts as NPA stood vacaiet! on March 23, 2021 vide the judgemint af the Hon'ble SCn the matter of Smail Scate
infustrial Manufagturers Association v U0 & Ors. and otber connected matters, In ascordance vath e westructions in paragraph b of the BRI creatsr duled
April 7. 2021 iss00d In this cornectian, thie Bank has continuad with the asset cassification of barrower actaunts fur the finangial vear March 2021 a5 5 the

extant HBLinstruttions £ IRAC sarmg,

Fioating Provision as at March 31,2022

- Smndaﬁ”m NonnPeﬁEi'-r'r-ling o
Totat Non-
Particulass Total 6 i Total
otal Standard Sub-standard Doubtiul Less performing
Advinces
e e — Advynces o
Qpening Balange
Add Additonal provistons made dueng the yeas
Less: Amatiet deawn down during the year
Cinsing balance of Roating provisions
Floating Provislon as at March 31, 2021 .
Standard Non-Performing
1 Non-
Partiewlars Total Standard Tatal Non Total
Subystandard Doubtiul Loy petioeming
Advances

|Cpening Bulance

Advances

Mgl additional provisions made during the year &

Less: Amount driwn down during the yeas

Cloging balance of lleating provisions

Technical or prudential write ofls

Maovement b the stock of techaical and prudentially written-off accounts and recoveries made therton bs as given below:

Technica: or prudeatlal wrte-oifs refer to the amouat of non-perfarming assats which are putstanding in the baoks of e beanches, byt have beea watler

off {iully ¢r partially) a1 the head office nvel,

Particulars March 31, 2022 | Maech 31, 2021

Qpening balence of teehoical / prugential wate-clfs accounts N 2,663.85 252260
Add: Tachnical £ Prudential wnta-olfs duting the year 552,63 218.50
5ub - Tatal [A) 3,216.48 ¥,741.40
Recoverias made from techncad/ prugdentiol watlen off accounts during the year 57.42 4731
Actund Write-offs during the year 42,43 3. 34
Suly - Tota! {B) F0.85 55
Ciosing balance {A-B) 1,136.63 2,663.858
Ratios tin pec cent] March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2024

Grass NPA o Assets Under Managezment {AUM) 4.98% 6.73%
Net NPA to Net Assets Under Managemant (AUM] 3.43% 4.495%
Gross NPA to Gross Advances 5.71% 7.24%
Not NPA 1o Net Advantss 1.95% 5.33%
Provisian toverage ratio {Including Technical write off) 20.82% B2A4%
Provision coverage ratio (Excludiag Techmcal wiite off} 3216 27.80%




FAMASMALL FINANCE BANK LIVITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDID MARCH 31, 2022

(A Armounrs aie e indian Rupees B Crores uipss athenwite stited)

b }Sectar-wise advances

March 31, 7022
Percertage of
~tor
e T;::ﬂ;:ii\:fs Gross HPAs ?ti;?!:dt:::;: in
that sector

A Pilerity Sector
1. Agriculture and aliied activities 7 2,512.02 5665 Biaw
2. Advances to industries sector eligible as priartiy segtor lending T B35 959 102w
T Textiles 121,24 211 1.74%,
3 Senvioes 1,388 B4 4187 301%
i) Retad Trade 821.34 14.83 1%
4, Prersenat loans® 5,009.87 51542 10.79%
Sub iotal {A)4 9,871.18 12351 T.33%
B. Nan Prlorilygz-ctor
Iﬁ*\gm:ulture amd allind activities o
2. industry 79.51 2.1 0.14%
3-Services - - T “1,750.02 1 ekt

nNmecs 760.45 0.00%

(i} Retidl Trade 663.70 A.24 0.64%
4. Parsonal loans* 1,54%,61 26.95 1.4%
sub total {8} i 3,379.15 3338 0.99%
Total {A+8) 13,250.33 756,90 5.71%

*persanal loan includes housing loans

# Prieeity sectors Includes 1,010 erares. in respect of which the Qank has sok! Priority Sactor Lending Corsificates (PSLC),

Fhe Bank has complled the data for the purposs of this disclosure from its internal MIS system/reparts, which has been fusiished by the Management and

has been reiied upon by the auditors,

March 31, 2621
Percentags of

e Tz:n::z:rcgus Gross NPas To(i:‘:?dt::zut: in
- . that sector
A Priority Sector
1. Apiteuituee andd atlied activities 1,620.13 15295 9445
I;avanms to ingustries sector eligibla as priority sector lending 30288 19.72 6.11%
4 Services T R20.69 £6.20 7.98%
4. Personsl igans® S,.546.07 147.82 S5
Sub total | A) 831897 686.69 8.25%
£, Non Priorliy Sector
1. Agriculture and allied activities B
2. industry 256.60 3051 11LB9%
3. Services 1.584.95 15.84 1.95%

{ENBFCs 542,84 0.00%

i) Retall Trade 408,01 1552 3.20%
4, Personat loans® 1,G94,81 109.91 6.49%
Sub total { B) 3,532,365 1m0 4,85%
Total (A8} 11,851.33 857,98 7.24%

*personal loan includes howsing leans

The Bank has compiled the data by the purpose sf his disclosurs from its inteena! IS systermfreports, which hag been furnished by the Aanaparment and

Iras Been reliod upan by the suditors,




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
SCHEQUALES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YLAR ENGED MARCH 3%, 2022

(A pesoints are i fodiog Rupites s Uroees pafess gilmosse siokend}
et Overseas Assets, NIPAS and Revenue

They Bank does ot bold oy avirseds iwssets £ RPA a5 ot Bardit 31, 2027 and o sversaas operalions were nnderfiken during the year eaded RKareh 31, 3003
Benge revenue from ovessos apesation 5 Nl (Nareh 31, 2021 i
7{d) Details of Resolutlon Pian Iinplemented under Prudential Framwork for Resohulion of Stressed Assels

Thirre widre N accounty that fave been restructured under prudentisl framework on resolilion of stressed assols as pes e Geoular no, RBIZ2018-19/203
DER N0 BRBCA5/21.04.048/2018-19 doted June 07, 2018 duriog the year endled Margh 31, 2022, (Match 31,2021 Nif).

o) Diverpence i the asset clissification and provislaniog

ARyl i3 clroubar DRR BB NOL/ 21 000187 2016 17 datad Aped 18, FO17 gndd Matiboation dated Age B3, 2009, b direoted banks shull make suitalle
disglosures, if cither or both of the following conditions are satisRed:

[a] the additional provisioning Tor KPAs assessad by RS gxceads 10 per cont of the reparted profi before grovisions and conungencies fur the relerence

poricd, and

{b} tha agditional Gross NPAS identilied by HBEexceed 15 per cemt of e publishesd scremoental Gross 8PAs Far the reforence pericd.
tspection for the financial yoar ended harch 31, 3023 ard March 31, 2022 is vat te ba conducied by the Rij.

7(f Batails of Non Performing Flnancial Assets Purchasad / Sobd

Details of loans transforead-exctuding thrpugl InterBank Particigation Certificato IGPCT during the vearended MargiryE, 2022 under tho REt Master Direction
an Fransler of Loan Exposures dated Septamber 24, 2021 are given below: (March 31, 3021 Jil)

To permitted To othar

Particulars Non-Performing Assets sold To ARCs P transferees

transtorees .

{please specify)

No. of dceounts ML |- -
Aggregate prindpal outstanding of loans transtuered 131.4%
Weighted average residusl tener of the loans transferred 1302
Met book value of loans transferzed {at the time of transfer) G8.18 . -
Aggragate consideration 108.85 -
Additional constdaration realized in respact of aceounts lransfereed in eadior years
Quantinn of Excess provison seversad 1o Profit and Loss Account -

The Bank Bas not purchasad / transtesred any Special Mention Account (5MA) a0 foan tot in aefaull (March 31, 2021 NilLL
The Bank has pat acquired sny leans thisugh assigrnment, (viarch 33, 2021 0 Nil)
The Bank has nol acqured any strossed ioan [Masel 33, 2021 : Jil)

rig} Fraudd accounts

Particutars March 31,2022 | March 11, 2621
Numbee of cases Reported 11 5/5
Opering Balance 6.51 10.95
Amguat of Fraud . 5.56 398
Recovery [ Write off of provision {10.35) {8.21)
Closing Balance® 173 651
Unamortised provision debited from ‘othar reserves’ as at the end of the year NH, Nil

* Inchades rectass of fraud provision 10 "Sehedute 9 - Not sdvanees’ {provision for non-parforming assat) amounting 10 34 98 crores {or the

31, 2021

year erled March
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FAMA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FON THE YEAR ERDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd,}

{A amounts gre i tadian Mupees i Crors urdess alaeraie stafed!

Seredule 18 - Notes forming part of the Financial Statarments for tha year ended March 31, 2022

7{h} Disclasure under Resolution Framowork for COVID-14 related stross
Fhe hisclostire requirements as required by B clrgutar dated AuBust &, 2020 [Resatution Framewark 1.0} and May 5, 2021 [Resolution Framewrrk 200 asat
March 31, X122 is given below far the hall year ending Margh 31, 2022:

Expasure to Exposure to
atcounts
lassified as necounts
csta whard chassified as
rea of [4), ol (a) Standard
tonsequent to of (A
| agpregate debt . amount pald by | consequent to
Implementalio ameunt written
Type of Borrower . |that slipped into the bosrowars | lmplementation
n of resalution off during the )
NIFA during the duriag the half- | of reselution plan
plan- Positlon hall-year e
half. year yoar ~Position a5 a1
as at the ond of the
the provioys end of this half-
halt.year year
Al
Perspnat Loans 155.23 3592 10.61 19.76 99.61
Carporaty Persons . - - . -
‘of which MEMIEs s S - e - —_—
Others Csysi 200.77 3217 113.45 157,60
Yolal 733.04 236,69 42,78 139.15 3550

A1) Particulars of accounts reatructured for *Micre, Small and Medium Enteprises (MSME) sectar based on REF guidelines dated fanuary 03, 2010 and
further extended by RBI elrtular dated February 11, 2020 & August 06, 2020,

The Bank has restructured accounts as below,

Particulars* March 31,2022 | March 31, 2023
Mo of Accounts Restrustured 6,407 8,001
Qutstanding Ampunt 80.47 118,42
Provisian Amount 20.25 5.92

* Reprasents active actounts

7(]) Disclesure on COVIY - 19

The outhreak of the COVID-1% pandemic had fed 10 a nation-wide lackdown in March 2020 This was foliawed by lecatised fockdowns i areas with a
significant number of COVID-AY cases, Following the easing of lockdown mensures, there was an improvesnent in economic actvity in the Second hatf of fiscol
021 india experienced a “second wave” of the COVID-19 pandemic i April-May 2011 foliowing the discovery of mutant ceronatirys vadants, leading 1o the
re-impusition of regional kackdowns. These were gradually fifted as the second wave subsided,

The impact of COVID-19, icluding changes In customar behaviour and panderic fears, as wolt a5 resteictlons on tusiness and individual activities, bas lad to
significant volatility n globad and tndian firancial markets and a significant docrease in glabal end local economic sctivities, The sowdsawn during thir year i

to a decraase in loan originations and i cellection efficiency,

india is emerging lrom the COVID-19 pandamic. The extent Lo which Ay new wave of COVID:1% will impact the Group's results will depend on GREoing as wel
a5 future developmonts, Including, among othae thiags, any new informatian concerning the severity of the COVID-19 pandesic, and any agtion t¢ contain ity
spread of mitigate 15 impact whother government-mandated or olacted by us.

:
I
i
|
:



EAMA SMALL FINARNCE SANK LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL $TATEMENTS FOIUTHE YEAIENBED MARCH 31, 2002 {Lond |

USRS s pnlpe athonwne Aiiedd

Hagrires i Ure

TS et fnchaa

B. Disclosures relating to secusitisation

Detaiks of Sales

Duting the year ented Mardh 31, 2027 (he Bark has nel enleted mie any secuntisaiion tansacons other ise Drert sssgnsaents (as moeationed Belew] in

aceerdance with the guidelines isswedd by the RBE(March 33, 2024 NIl

Particutar N e WMarch 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

1} No. of acedunts sold durirtg the year

{ii) Apgrega e vakie of azcounts seld duning (he

{iii} Aggregate Consideraton recedved dyring tho yeiir

{iv) Additional Considerstion ceabsed in respect ol sccouns barsferced in cardor years

(v} Aggregate gain oves nut book value during the year ]

{wl) MAR

{wii} First Loss

fvii) Qutstanding Galance 41,74 41.55

{wili} No. of SPY transaction for seeuritisation transaction -

Details of dirsct assignment transactions

The details of drect ssignment actvity ot th Bank a3 an ongindiur as per RBI guidehines Lo the Guidetines oo Secuntisalion is given below. )

Pasticular.... S March 31, 2022 - | March 31, J021

1) No. el accounts ) B52 .

[ Aggregate vahie of accounts soid W 5C 266

(it} Aggtegate Consigeration 266

(iv) Aggregate galn / foss over net book Value -

Detalls of book value of investment in securkty recoipts {83} backed by NPAs

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Bank has invested 92,52 cross in Sucunty Receipts (March 31, 2021 Nil}.

9, Exposures

9(a} Exposure 1o real estite saclor

Caegory March 3, 2022 | March 31, 2021

A) Direct axposure ) 1,153.21 1,457.42

{i) Residential morigapes” 1,753,2% 1,487.42
1,254.82 690,05

{of which housing foans eligible for inchusion in priarity sector advances)

{ii} Comumergial real estate

{ii] investnents in mortgage backed securities (MBS) and other securitised exposure

s} Resigential

bj Cormmerciai real estati

B} Indirect exposyre

Fuad based and nen- fund based expoaiﬁuﬁtan Matsonal Housing Sank and Housisg Finance Companies (HELS]

* (nciudes anly housing lan

9{b} Exposure 1o Capital Market

Buting the year ended March 31, 2022, the bank has Nl exposure te capitat markel instruments {(March 31, 2021 1Ntk The Bask has written off investments
i aguity shares of Alpha Micre Finance Consultants Private Limited, 100,000/~ shares of % 10 each fully paid up el pad up 010 Creres during the provious

year snded March 31, 2021,

9lch Risk Category wise Countey Expasure

The Bank's S4posures ars Concenteatad i ida, beoce tountey sk pxposure as Al March 31, 2023 is NiF(Maecn 31, 2021 o hif).

o{d} Unsecured Advances

Particukar

Marclh 31, 20522

March 31, 2021

Totat unsecurad advanges of tha bank

Out of the above, amount of adyances for which imangibie securilhes such ss charge over the pphts, icenses, sutharily,

5,943

6,650

Egtinmatedd valug of such nlangibls securities

9{e) Details of Single Borrower Limit [SBL), Group Borrower timit (GEL) excecded by the Bank

During the yoar ended March 31, 2022 and previous year ended Mireh 33, 2021, the Ba0k’s credis expotures 16 single borrowirs and group Darrowers wore

within the lanits prascrnbed undar extang A8 guideknes,




JAMEASMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
SCHBULES FORMING PARY OF THE FINANCIAL STATFMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 [Contd.]

(Al Soanunts aee i facdian Bupees in Croees andess olberwise sfaled)

H1r Fictoring Esposure

The faprk ddoes pot hiove any factodng expasure as at ddaech 30, 2023 (March 31, 2020 Nl

ek olra Group Eapusure

Ther Bank dors not have any in16L groos sxposure asat March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021 1 Nify

9{h} Unhedged Forelgn currency Exposure

The Mok doesn't have any unhedged forelgn currency exposure as al March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021 Nil)
10, Lsncentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPA's

10{a) Concentration of deposits

Percenage of Advances of twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the Bank

[Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 3621

Toraldeposits of twenty lasgest depositors 1.786.10 1,557.16

Paretntape of deposits of twenty largas! depositons to tetaf deposits of the Bank 13.39% 1257%

10{b} Cencentration of advances

Partitulars March 31,2022 | March 31,200

Total advances to twenty largest horrowers® §15.08 B0%.12
6.17% 511%

in geterdance with &01 guidelines.

10[c) Cancentratlon of Expasures

*Advances comprise credit éapasurs {Funded and non-funded credit Imits) incliding derivative transactions i any;-computed 2s-per current expnsure method -

borrawars / customaers

Particulars Mareh 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Toial exposure to twealy largost borrowers / customars® 815.08 60312

Percentage nf expasure of hwenty largest borrowers f customaers to wotal expasure of the Bank on ;
6.17% 5.11%

*Exposures comprise credit exposurs Yunded and son-funded credit limits) including gerivative transactions and Investmant exposure if any, in accordance

with Rt puidelines,

10{d} Concentration of NRAs

particulars _ farch 31, 2022 | March 31, 202)
Total Exposure 10 the top twenty RPA accounts 15,00 19.83
1.98% 2.31%

!f’cr;_t_‘.‘_nt'dge of eapozures to the twenty largest NPA exposure 1o tolal Gross NiPAs
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JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LINITED

SCHYDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 20232 [Contd.}

Al omeunts ore in fmdion Ruppes in Craees ol ss atharwise stiled)

13, Contingent lahifitles

Cantingent fiabhities o T arch 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
ncome tax Hability _ 30.87 3591
Guarantees given on behall of constituents T 2,50 2.50
Others 877 2.0%
Total ' 41,74 47.46

In February 2018, the Iio'n:{(;a'fa‘bklu Supreme Coury of india in it judgoment clarflod that certaln special allowances shoeld be considerad 10 measure
obligations uster Emplayees” Providant Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 {the #F Act), The Gank has been lagaliy advised that there ars
interpretative chalienges on the application of Judgement retraspectively and as such does not consider there is any probable obligations for past
periods. Due to Imporative challenges, the Bank has aot disclosed contingant iadility amount for past tabiity.

Deseription of contingent Manllities

1. Clalms against the Bank not acknowledgad as debts -[The Bank is a pariy to varicus tanation matters in rospect of which appeals are pending,
taxation Tha Bank expects the ovtcome of the appeals 1o be favorable based on decisions on
stmilar istues in the previous years by the appellate authorities, based on the Yacts of the

case and taxation faws,

2. Clalms against the Hank not ackaowlsdged as debts ~|The Bank 13 2 party to varlous Jegal proceedings in the normat course of business, The
athaie ’ : T fank doos not expect the outcame of these praceedings tohave a material adverseeffoct
on the Rank’s Fnancial conditions, resuits of operations or cash Hows.

3. Guarantees given on behalf of constituents, acceptances,|As a part of its cammercial banking activitles, the Bank fssues guarantees on behalf of its

endorsements and other obligations custoniers. Guaranteey generally repeesent ireceacable assurances that the Bank will
make payments i the avint of the customer faiting to Tulfill its financin or performance
obligations,

4, Othar itains for which the Bank Is contingently able These include: a} Gusrantees glven by Bank b} Credit enhancements in respect af

securitised-put foans; ) Bills rediscounted by the Bank; ¢ Capital commitments.

14, Employee benefits

Employment benefits - Gratuity

The fank kas nen-contributory defined benefit artangament providing gratuity benefits oupressed in werms of linal monthly salary and years of service.
Bank pravides far gratuity as per the provistons of Payment ef Gratuity Act, 1972, as amended. Tha scheme is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of
ngia. The tellowing tables summarise the components of net benelit expesse recognised i the Profit and Loss Atcount and the funded status and
amounts recagnised in the Balance Sheet,

The defined gratuity benefit plass are valued by an independent a¢tuary 33 at the Balunce Sheet dale using the projocted unit credit methad as per the

raguirement of AS-15.
During the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Bank does aat have unarmortised gratuity and pension liability,

Expanses recognised in the Profit and Loss Account
Particulars

March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Current setvice Lost 3.17 Z.62
Interest cost on benelit obligation 0.11 {0.11)
Past service cost vested benelit recognisad during the year .
Met actuarial foss recognized in the yeor 5.09 6.27
8.37 8.78

Empinyer Expenses

Nat tabllity/ {Asset) racopnised in the Balance Sheet
Particulars

March 31,2022 | March 31, 202}

Present vatue of Befined Benefit Obligation 302 1
Fair value of plan assets 23.44 1537
wet {asser}/ Bability recognized in balance sheet {0.42) 2.84
Less: Unracognised Past Servica Cost . :
|Asset}/Liabllity recognized in balance sheet 10.42) 2.34




FAMNA SMALL FINANCE BANA LINGTED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTYS FOR THE YEAR ENDELD MARCH 31, 2022 {Conld)
(AN cmous dre in dicn Rufues s o
seconciliation of Defined Benelit Obligation {DBO)

F'arﬁcu!ars o o o

Crores gifens o)

Magch 31,2022 | #arch 3

PR e vt YM&." v s e e e e e e e - o i
Interest cost D70 3.7
Carsent service oost 37 262
Past service cost veslid Dunefi secagnised during tha year :

Benelits pad (3.82) 12,300
Actuarial inss/{gain) 4,76 575
Present Value of DBO at end of year _ ._,.‘ - e 23191 "_W A2y
Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets e

Particulars T o March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
fair Value of Plan Assets at start of year 15.37 13.06
Exprected roturn on plan assets 54 0.84
Contributions by employer 11.63 4,29
Benelits paid ' {3 82) {2.30
Actuarial gain / loss) o (.33 {0.52)
Fair value of plan assats at end of year ka4 15.37

Invastment detatls of plan sssets :
Particutars ) March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Balance with Gifir ingdrance Corporation of Iadiy tLC) _ RN 1537

Infoemation of investment details of plan assets are not available, hience not disclosed and the obtigation 15 funded with UC,

The principat assumiptions used In determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars Morch 31, 2022 | March 31, 2071
Discount rate 5.15% 3.8H%
Expocted rale of return on sssats 5.15% 3.86%
Emplayes wraaver [in service O years and below) A% Y%
Ernployee turaver §in service 1 yoars 10 2 years} 39% A6%
Emplayee turnover fin service 3 yoars 1o 4 years) % A%
fmployea turnover fin service 5 years and above) 23% 3%
Salary growth rate 6,00% £.00%
H 1 R4 &

Mortality Rate During Employment - indian Assuted Lives Mortality (IALM) Wi ?jﬁ; :n; AL ?;?ﬁi??:
Expected average remitining waorking lives of emplovass 2¥earg 3 fear
Expetience Adjustmants for the yeor anded March 31, 2021

Particulars FY 2322 FY 2021 FY 19-20 FY 18-19 FY 17-18
Prasent Value of D8O at the end of the year 13.02 B2l 1341 7,66 565

Fair Vatustion of Plan Assets 23,44 1%.37 13.06 14.54 9.5%

Funded Status [Surplus/{Dedicith 042 {2.84} 1.66 659 394

Exprerience adjustrent on ptar liabilities : Gain f {Loss} {3.54} {3.45} (1.71) {1.74j {3.16}
Experience pdjustment on plan Assets s Gain / { Loss | {333 10.52) [1.04) [0.69) [0.64}

pefined Contribution Plan - Provident Fund
Thir Bank makes Provident Fund contdbutions to Employees Provident Fuad Orpanisation for qualifying emplayees at the spacilied percentage of the
payroll costs ta the Fund, The has Bank recognised X 37.99 crores (March 31, 2021 % 34,30 crores) towards Providen: Fund contributions.

Employes bengfits - compensated absences
The actuarial Habitity in respect of privitege feave granted to employers of the Bask and cutstanding as 3t March 31, 2022 8 % 6.57 crores {(March 31,
W3 6,06 crores).

Assupsption used In determining the privilege leave Hability

o March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
fiscount rate T 5.15% 3.566%
Salary escalation rate o G 5%
Attrition rate: o March 31,2022 | march 31, 2071
for service O years and belgw A% 53.00%
For seevite 1 years Lo 2 years Eiya 456.00%
For service 3 years o 4 years 1% 54.00%
For service 5 yeurs and abowe 23% 33.00%




EAH amounts are in tndian Rupees in Crores wnloss olhorwise stated)

15, Disclosures on Romuneration
Al Quadditietive Diselosures

{3) Informatlon refating to the bodies that oversee remuneration.

b)

o}

Mame, compositlen and mandate of the maln hady everseelng remunaration

The Nomination and Remuneration Committen (NRC) of the Boerd is the main body oversening remuneralion. As at March 31, 2022,
the NRC had flve membars of which three are Independent Directors. The Tunctions of the Committen Include recomraendation of
sppointment of Directors o the Board, evaluation of performance of the Board, Its Committees and directors Inzluding the Managing
Director & CEQ, overseeing the grant of options under the Employees Stock Optioa Schame,

External consultants whose advice has been sought, the body by whith they were commibssloned, and in what areas of the
remuneration process

hat Applicable

Seape of the Bank's remuneration policy (e.g. by reglons, business lines), Including the extent to which it Is applicable to foreign

subsidiaries and branches
The Remunaration Policy of the Bask was approved hy the Board on Febroary 8, 2018, pursuant Lo the puidelines issuod by BB, to

cover all employees of the Bank.

The Remuneration policy was amended by the Board on Augwst 13, 20320 to align the policy In line with curtent fegulatory
amendments, Compensation Poltcy covers all smiployees of the Bank.

Type of employees covered and number of such employees

Ali permanent employees of the Dank are covered. The total number of permanent smployees of the Bank at March 31, 2022 way
15,641 (March 31, 2021 16,893), who were llve as on reporting ginte includiog those on probation and confirmed employees, ..

Informatlon refsting to the design and structure of remuneration processes and Key features and objectives of remuneration poticy
The compensistion phifasaghy ol the Bank is struetured ta support the achiavement of the Bank’s on-going husiness abjectives by
rewsarding achievement of objectives finked diractly to its stratigic business priorities. The matn objectivis of the remuneration policy
of thiz Bank are as foliows:

* Attract, engage and retain talent

* Ensure falrness In the pay structure

* Ensure afignment with the organizatlonal values, Le., Honesty, Discipline, Respect, Service
* Foster a culture of rewariding and recognizing performance,

Effective governance of compensation:
The NRC shall ovarsee the framing, review and Implementation of the compensation nolicy.

Alignment of cnn‘ipcnsaﬁon philosaphy with prudent risk taking:

The employes's compensation will lake account of the risks that bufshe takes on behall of the organization and intends (o discourpge
exvessiva risk taking. It ensures that the compensation works in harmany with other practices to implement batanced risk postures.
Alsa, the committee shall ensure that employees engaged In financial and rlsk contral wilk o Interdependent, have appropate
authority and be compensatad in a manner that s independent of the business areas they oversee and commensurate with their key
role in the Bank,

Whether the remuneration committee reviewed the firm’s remuneration policy durlng the past vear, and If 5o, an overview of any
changes that were made;
The Board/NRC has reviewed the Bank's remuneration palicy during the year under review

Discussion of how the Bank ensures that risk and compliance ernployess are remunerated Independentiy of the huslnesses they
overses:

The committes shall ensure that employens engagad i financlal and risk contred will be independent, have appropriate autharity, and
ba compensated in a manner that Is indepandent of the business areas they oversee and commansurate with their koy tole in the
Bank, The remuneration for the employces in the risk and compliance function will be determined independent of other business
areirs and shalt be adequate to attract quatified and experienced pesfessionals. The pertormance measures of such employees shall be
based principally on the achipvemont of the objectives of theit functions.

Descriptlon of the ways In which current and future risks are taken Into account In the remuneration pracessos,

Overview of the key risks that the Bank takes into account when Implementing recuneration measures:

The committee shall work in dose coordinetion with Risk Management Compuittee ! the small linance bank, in arder to achipve
effactive alignment betweons remaneration and risks,

Qverview of the nature and type of key messures used to take account of these risks, including risk difficult to measure

Cornpensation works in harmony with ather practices 10 implement balanced risk postures.




(AR nOUS sre ot indian Rupees in Crares unless alhie wise slatedd)

15. Disclosures an Remuneration (Contd.)

d

e)

f}

Giscussion of the ways In which these measures affect remuneration:
The emplayee’s compensation will take aceount of the risks, that hefshe takay an bohalf of the organization and Intends Lo disconrape
exlessive fak Laking. It ensures (hat the compensation works in harinary with other praclicss o inplemant halanced risk pastiures,

Discussion of how the nature and type of these measuces have changed aver the past year and reasons for the changes, as well as
the impact of thanges on remuneration;
Not applicable

Deseription of the ways in which the Bank seeks to fink perfermance during a pedormance measurement pedlod with teveis of
resnuneration:

The: main perlormance metogs inchude profitability, business Erowth, asset quality, complidnce and customer sirvice.

A distussion of the bank's policy on deferral and vesting of variable reenuneration and a discusslon of tw bank’s policy and criteria
for adjusting deferred remuneration before vesting and after vesting:

The Banks remunecation policy covers Whele Time Direclors / Chief Exscutive Officery Other Material Risk Takers of the Bank,

Description of tha different forms of variable remuneration {i.e., cash and types of share-iinked Instruments) that the bank wtilizes
and the rationale for using these dlfferent forms.

Variable remuneration ingludes following distinet forms:

1, Statutery Bonus:

Statutory Bonus is paid as per Payment of Bonus Act, 1965,

2. Varlable Pay ;

Varigble pay component ensures that we reward the employees bised on the Individaal achievements and the Bank's performance
measured against goals estaglished for the perlonmance year.

a) Cash Bonus:

The Ludget far Annual Cash Boous, will depend on the bank’s profitability. The actual gay-out 1o the individuai will fucther depend on
hisfher performance, and at the sole disceetion of the managemant,

b} tncentives:

All Business roles up o the tevel of Zonal Business Heads are eiigible for incentives, Pay out of Incentive for agregator roles deperids
upan average incenlives earned by the fronl ling team. These incentlves are tapped to ensure intagrity and compliance,

For the front line feld roles ke CREC, CRES, BUE, Area Heads In Collections, Assets and Linbililies Collections, incentives are paid on a
manthly basis. Roles In operations such as CRE, Talio, BOM or other agaregator roles in Business ke Branch Sales Manager, Regional
Heads and Zonal Heads, a portion of manthly incenitves are retained and is paid after the end of performance year.

Any sdditien/modification would be approved by the MDSCED.

¢} Share-linked Instruments;

Currently £ES0Ps/ RSUs are granled to employess by the management, Hased on the Board approved schemes. Share-linked
instiuments wit be fair vaiued on the date of grant by Lhe bank, As per the Good Leavers policy of the Bank, payment towards any
defareed Instrument or cash bonus will require approval of the MUBCEG.

3. Rewards & Recognltion:
The Bank may, with the approval of the MD&CEQ, run various conlests for its employees to support the achisvement of tha Bank's o
foing business ebjectives. Thosa contests may carry linancial/other rowards 35 permitted by extant regulations,
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JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
SUHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATERMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 202F (Camd.)

FAA ey ity e fr e i BUfleas s 15y s ot fwerse Mnted)

18, Disclosare of Comptalnts
a) Sunuaary information on complaints recelved by the bank fram customers and from the Cfices of Ombudsmae

Particuiars

March 31, 201

March 31, 2022

Complaints received by the Yank from its cusl&ners ) o B ) -
1. N_umhec of camyplaints pending at beginning of the Yot “—?11 - 1845
2. Number of comiplaints received during the year - N 1 . 5,400
i Nuber of complainis disposed during {he yea J ;:(;0
3.0 O which, number of complaints rajected by the bank ¢ !
4. Number of complaints pending al the end of the vear o 01 1
iviaintainabla compiaints :cc::iwcd lry tive bank from SUOs
5. Number of maintaingble complaints +eceived by the bank froms OBOs 155 04
5.1 0F 5, nurmber of complains resulved in faveur of the bank by 0008 17 192
5.2 OF 5, number of complamis rosolved through conciliafionfmediationfagvisorias issaoe by OBOs h & T

5.3 0F 5, aumber of complaims reselved after passing of Awards by 0ROs against the bank

6. Mumber of Awards unimplementad within the stipulated time {other than those sppealed)

MNoete:

£ Mattainabli complaints refer to zomplaints an the grounds specifically mentiosed in ntegrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 tPravicusly Banking
Umbudiiman Scheats, 2006) and eauared within tha ambit of the Schame.
2. The above disclosure dous notinclude 873 complainly which were closed willtin Aest woeking day (As per the section 16.5 of the RBi's Master Circdlar on
Customer Service in banks dated fuly ¢, 2015, off Lamplants redrassed within nex wothing @iy need not be inciudad m tha statament of complaints).

) Top Flvo grounds of complaints recelved by the bank from customers

19, Off balance shaet 5PVs

thaeing the year ended March 3L, 2022, there are ne off balanee shaat $PVs sponsaced Dy the ank, which apeds ta be consolldated as per atcaunting norm

IMareh 31, 2021 Naj,

% Increase/
Number of Number of ducrease in the Numbet of QI 5, number of
G complaints number of N
rounds of complatnts, complaints complaints complaints
\ pending at the complaints
{i.e. complaints relating to) ) received during pending at the § pending beyond
beginning of recelved ower
the year the yoar the peevious end of the year 30 days
year
Minch 31, 2022
Dopost Accounts 33 L913 435 13 .
AM f Debit Cards Eh] Q02 6% 20 -
Loans & adwinces A4 1,300 TH 31
Net Banking IMabite Ranking/Point of Sales 4] 1,345 3% 52 -
staff Behaviour 6 25 -3% i -
Others 52 A4 5% 82 -
Total 211 5,890 ~15% 208
% increase/ o e
Number of Number of dacrease In the Numbes of QF S, numbar af
6 ) n compiaints \ number of )
rounds of complaints, cohtplaints complalnts tomplainks
. . pending at the o complalnes R
{1.e. complaiints relating 1o} beginming of | FECEived during receivad over | PEMInE At the | ponding beyond
t&:m yeagr the yeor the previous wiid of the year 30 days
yaar
March 31, 2021
AT/ Dobit Cards 51 2210 1% 38
Net Banking /Mabile Banking/Paint of Salos 54 1387 682 30
Do pasit Ancounts 27 1342 3B 44
Loans & advantes 19 178 g% At
stall Behaviour ? 347 -1a% G
Qthery 32 244 36t 52
Total 185 7,111 43 21l -




JANA SPALL FINANCE BANK UIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART O THE FINANTIAL STATEMENTS TOR THE YEAR ENDED PMARCH 3%, 2027 [Contd )
(AL gmaynts e in indiam Bupees in Crarne wies s otheriize stibyedf

26, Transfers 1a Depostor Education and Awarenpss Freevel {DEATE)

Baring tiwe yoar enided March 31, 2042, v MAGUNT was roquired o Ly transferces e Deposior Fdueation art Awateness Fund. (March 31,2071 il

11, Penalties fevied by the Rt

During v year ended March 3%, HE2, 0 penaity was iuposed by the RBIon the Rank. [March 31, 2031 Nilj

23, Othes Disclosures

a} Business ratia

Particulays T o March 31, 2022 | Mareh 31, 3021
1) Interestincome a5 a parcentape to veasrking funds’ 13.08%] 15.34%
1) _Net Intorost inconie as & porcentags 1o working funds' 6.87% 7.76%
dif Nondnterost income s a pRrcontage 10 u:c-ri;ing fuers? B 1.60% 1.44%
v} Lostof Deposits " o 119% RO
V) _Netinterest Margin® 726% B.27%
vil Cperating profit’ a5 3 percentage to working funds' JR% 2770
vii) Returs on average assats’ ) G.03% 0.52%
wili) Retwen on fquity Rotio® ' 0.47% 7.40%
ix) Dabt-Equity Ratlo® 197 448
¥} Business’ ideposit plus net atvantes). per eenpioyes® (in % CrOFRs) - e e LAd - 1:38
¥ Profit per paiploye® tin € crores) ' 20003 ¢.0053
xiil Provision coverage ratin* ) A149% 77.89%

L Working fuoids represont the manthly average of tobM assets fercluding accumulated tosses, if any) camputed for raporting dates of form X submirted to
Rt under Section 27 of the Banking Regulatian Act, 1949 for the corrent yoar,

2. Nat interest tncomef Average Earning Assets. Net Intersst Income= Interest Income - interast Expense

3, Operating profit Is net profit for the year betore provisians and codtinpancies.

4. Return on averags assets Is computed with reference to average working lunds.,

5. Returrs on equity ratlo Is computed with referance 1o monthly average of 1otal squlty fincluding roserve & surplusg).

0. Debtequity ratio s computed with referenco 1o totat borrowlngs o total equily as of financial year eng.

7, "Business” Is the total of net advaness and teposits {net of inter-bank depasits).

3. Protuctivity ratios are hased on averago pmtoves numbar

A. Provision Loverage ratio daes not inclide techmicg! wilte offy ncluging techricsl write off, Provision roverage fatio bs 86 83% (March 21, 2001 R2.473%).

b) Bancassarance business & Marketing and distribution

Nature of Income March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Towards seliing of life insurance policies 16. 21 16.30
Tewards selling of nan-ife Insurance policies 4.65 2.63
Foss [ remuneration recelved from ihe matketing and distzibution function . -

Tota} .36 18.93

€] Priority Sector Lending Centificates {'nS1.C5); ,

the Bank enters into transactions fos the sale gr Rurchase of Priofity Sector Leading Ceretificatgs {PSLsE in the case of o sale ransaction, the Bank salic the
fulfiiment of printity sector abligation and in the case of a purchase transaction the Bank buys the fulliimant of priaety sector obligation thiough RB trading
platforin, Thare 15 no transfer of risks or loan assots in siech ransactions. The delails of purchase £ sale of PSLC during the yesr are as under:

PSLC Category March 31, 2022 T March 31, 2041
PSLCBought | PSLE Seld PSLC Bought PLLC Sold

Apriculture -0 200,80 -

Sranll and Mazginal Farmers . . .

Micre Enterprises - A00.00

Ganerat - 5S040

Total . 1,010.00 - —

) Provisions asid Contingencles

Brest up of "Provisions and Conningancies' shown under the haad "Expeaditure’ in Profit and Loss Accouns
Partlculars . . March 31, 2022 | March . ae
U} Provivior for NPT ” N » o :
() Peovision tawards NPA {including bad debts written off)

[Hi} Provision mada towards Income tax )

{ivi Other Provisions and Contingoncies o
Frawision for standard assets - e CAE]
Provisian for restructured standand ns.'w'f,s {gtimﬁn}g BIEV) gL

Provisions for deprecation os hws)smwni o * . ; B o ___“wg;fig

“begvizions far Irauds ang plhirs - - ,,, (1601
366,60

Total




TANA SMALL FINAMCE BANK LI TED

SCHEDULES FORMING PARYT OF THE FIMARCIAL STATEMENTS FOH THE YEAR ENDED MAREN 30, 2042 {Contd,)
LA GG e i iy Rapiows o0 Ui L (A el g

o) hter-hank Participation (1BPC] with risk sharing

e fank nas sared lands Bvoogh of ivsus of BP0 with s Sranng Be gutiandng balance el IR {k sHATIgE e F D M critey Ay e R §E

(tdorch 3L, 3091 CSBI 8% crones).

) limpiemeritation of IFRS converged indian Accounting Standaeds [Ind AS)

Trie Ministry of Corporate Affairs, in its press relcase dated lanuary 18, 2016, had Issued 2 roadmap for implemeantation of indian Accounting Standards {1
AS} for scheduled commercial banks, insurersfinsurance companies ang non-harking financkl commpanies, which was subsequently canfitmed by the R_At
through s ciralar dated Fabruary 11, 2016, This coadmap required these instiluliens to prepare 31343 bised finatcial statements foe the accounting
parias beginaing Apnt L 2008 vith comparatives for 1he periods beginimng Apnl 1, 2017, The iniplementation of iND-AS Iy banks requires cortan legisiative
chsngey inothe fgrmey of financial statoments tg Comply witle tha disclosures required under tND-AS. in Aprit 2038, tho Rir defirrend the imohamoniaton of
IND-AS by a year by whan the necessory lppislalive arnengdments were cxpecled. Yhe leglative amendments recominekivd by the BRI gro pnder
comsidaration by the Gevernment of india Acvordingly, the RBI, through s chivalar dated March 22, 2019, deferrad the mplementation of IND-AS uitit
furtier notice,

&} Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium

Particulary March 3X, 2022 & March 35, 2021
i} Payment of BILGC Insirance Premuun (includiag G4 1) 1525 1.0t
§i) Arrears in Payment of DICGE Pramipm — : :
Total ’ 1525 12,01

h} Proposed Dividens )
Bting the year Bntled March 31,3022 the Bank has ner deciared any dividend. The feserva Bank of tredia, vidi it circutar dated April 17, 2020 and Uecember
4, 2020, has decides that banks shatt sot make ary further diyidfund pay-ous fram prafis, with g visw that Danks must conserv capital iy an envirtient of
netghiened ungertainty caused by COVID- 19 Accordingly, the Board of Directars of the Bank has net progesed any divdend for the vear ended March 31,
2021,

i} Discfosure of Letters of Comfort {LaC} Issusd by the Bank

Tiw: Bunk has not issued fetler of comfart during the year ended March 31, 2027, {March 31, 2021 Nil)

i} Investor education and peatection fund

Thgre i no amount roguired to be nnslerred 10 Ivastor Education and Pretection Fund by the Gank for the year ended tarch 31, 2022, (Mareh 31, 2021
Nilj.

k] Detalls of payments to Auditors as per the Profil and Loss Account

Particulary March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021

[Audit Fees 0.95 097
Tax audit fees 002 @402
Other services 0.02 9.07
Qui-of pocket expenses ~ 0ol 0.02
Total i 101 1.08

i} Leng term contracts

Friee Bank has & process whereby pariodically o forng term contracts incliding dermative contracts if any, are assessed for material foreseeable losses. Af the
year end, the Bank has reviewed and snsured that ao provision i reguiced unde any law or accounting standard on Such lang terrn contragls as on March
33, 2022 (March 32, 2021: Nil),

) Provision for credit card and debii card rewsard polnts

e Bank &5 not provding any reward points on debit cards. Purther the Dank has not issued any creddt card during year ended March 3%, 2022, (March 3,
2028 Nl

1) Deferred Tax Assets

The Bank has noy sucogansed deferred 1ax asset of doferrad tx Habifity far the current year and previous yoas, Defeered 195 asets dro teviewsil al gach
Balance Sheet dale and appropriately adjusted to reflect the ampunt tiat i virtually certain 1o he realized.

The Dank has corried forward Business lasses on wehich, i net deleeed tax asset amounting 1 11,028, 11 crores as at March 31, 2022 {4 101846 crores ay
at March 33, 2021} has not heen recognised in the absance of virtueal certanly, the said amount is available for set off against luTure ipcome tax habsity
subject to availabifity of sufficlont taxabie income in the years of set off




JANA SMALL FINANCE BARK GNITED

SCHERULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDEDC MARCH AL, 2022 {Contl.)
Lz Hupsees i $0ves nfest otherws e stufed)

fl ety g in i
of Leases

Opersting Base primarily comprises of office pramises. which are roaewabils at the oanan of the fank, The following table snds forrk tha details of furuars
rantals payable on nen-cancellable oparating feases

Particulars , SR March 31, 2027 1 March 31, 2021
Nat Fater than one yoar ' 51l 21t
Later than one year but not latar than five years 14.16 R42
Latar than five yoars . -
Ninimur ledse payments recopiised i Profit and Loss Accourt 70,86 Hrad
- Of which tease expanse pertaining 1o sun cancelable leases A6 452

The terms of renewal and escalation clauses are thote normally pravalent in similar agreaments, there are no andus Festrictons of pherous dauses in the
agreement, All other operating feass agreements sntared Into by the Bank are canceftable in natura,

[ Bank has not sud- Inasad any of the propertis taken on loase. Thers are 80 provislans relating to contingent rent,

) Corporate Soclal Responsibltity (CSR)

Grass amount reguiced 1o be sprnt on CSR activities by the Bank Tor the year ended Mareh 31, 2022 is Nt (Mareh 31, 2021 Nif} uneder section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

1 Amount spent during the year anded March 33, 2022

Amount unpaid

Partfculars ) N Amount spent . _..Total
e - T : s K h ! fprovision :

i) Construction facquisition of asset . . -

Ii) on purpose othar thaa (i) ahove .12 - {12
Total 0.12 - .12

lit Arnount spentituring the year eaded March 33, 2021

Amount unpaicd

Particilars Armount spent . Tatat
orovision

i) Construction facguisiion of asset B . -

i1} 1 puriase other than () above 0.76 - .74

Total 0.76 - ' 0.76

As part of organisational eforg 1o ratipnalize costs, the Management took a strategic decision to it the €51 expenditare darlng the current yeas and
PEvituS yoar,

q) Smail and mices industrles

under tho Micra, Smalf and Medum Enterprises Developmant Act, 2006 which came Inta force from Dotober 2, 1005, certain disciosures are coquired 1o be
mage tehating o Micro, Small and Medium entirprises. There have bren no reported cases of delays iy payments o relorg and smalk sativiprises or of
interest payments due to delays In such payments for the year ended March 31, 2022 {March 31, 20211 Nit). The above is based an the information mvailable
with the Bank which has boen refied spon by the auditars.

1} Interest on Interest

in arcordante with the 831 natification dated Apeil 7, 2021, the Bank it requited to refund / adjust ‘interest on interest’ charged 10 borrowers. As raquired by
the RBI natification, the methodotogy for caicutation of sich interest an intorest has beon chrculated by the Indtan Banks' Assoriation, The Bank has framed o
foard approved policy in this regard snd s n the process of sultably tplementing the mathedology. As at March 31, 2023, the Bank bas created a Habitity
towards estimated inlorest reftef of * LLOT crores and reduced Lhe same From the interest Incama.

5] Change in eccountlag policy

Thie tank kas followed consistently the same significast dccountleg policies 1 the pregaration of annudl Biaancial rasults for the gear ended March 31, 2074,
ercept for the following:

13 The Recognitlon of shacpes and pemal bstersst oa advances which was recognised ot accruat basis wpto March 31, 2021, has undergone a chanpe aind is
aaw recegnised an receipt basls, As 4 resolt of above change In the accounting policy, intarest Ingome and dther intome for the iearter and year is lowes by
LIS crores & Ra.69 crores with & consequent impact on profit after tax,

{0} RBF vide Tts clarification dated August 30, 2001, on Guldefings on Compensation of Whole Time Ditectars/ Chief Executlve Officers/ Material Risk Takers
and Control Funcricn Staff, advised Banks that the L value of share-Enked instruments on thee gate of grant should be recognised a5 an pxpenia for alt
mstrumnents granted after the accaunting gecoed ending Mareh 31, 2021, Acoordingly, the Baok has changed ity acepunting policy from intsinsic value method
o the falr walue mothod foe such Qass of empioyses. The Far vatua of the stock-Bbased compensation s estimted on the date of grant using Black-Schales
madal 30d 15 recognbed a3 compansatinn prpense pvor the visting period. As 3 rosoit of thonges m 831 guidelines on share-based paymeat, Emplayees Cont
for the quarter and year angded March 31, 2022 is bighar by T 1,29 ceores and 1 L80 ¢rores rEpoctivily wWith 3 cansequent impact on profiz altar v

t) Cande o Social Sucurity
The Code an Secial Yecurity 2020 (the Cade') refating to employee beaelits, daring the employment and nstempioyment, has received Prosidential assent
e deplember 28, 2020, The Code has been pabfished w the Garette of India Further, the Ministry of Labosir and Emgfoyment hay reicased draft reles for the
Cotto on Movember 13, 1120 The effertive dete fram which the changes are applicable s vet 1o be nohfed and rutes for auantifing the financil impact are
net yet iswed. The Bank will assess the imgract of the Code and will give appropeate impact in the hnanm% statemants in the pared in which, (he Coe

becomes effective and the refatad rules b geterming the finangglimpact are published,
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u}Listing requicement for equity shares of the Bank

A5 per Senall Finance Bank Licensing Guidalings lssued by the RIE, the equity Whares of the Bank arg tequiresd to ha listed on a stock exchange o india within
three years fom the date of commencement of banking business i.e, March 27, 2021, The Bank has fited drall rect herring prospectus [DRHP) with Securitles
Exehange Uoard of ndia (3LBI) on March 31, 2021 and recaved Sl approval o rse Funds through 1PO o july 12, 7011

v} Disclosure undar Rule 11 {e) of the Companles {Audit ang Auditers) Rules, 2014

the Bank, as part of its normal banking business, grants [0ans and advances 10 s constituents including foreign entities with permission o lead of invast of
provide puarantee or security o1 the like In other entities identified by such constituents, Similarly, the Bank sccepts deposits from ity constituents, who may
instruct the Bank to lendfinvest/provide guarantee or securlly or the like against such deposit in other entities identifled by such constituents. Thase
teansactions are part of Bank’s normal banking business, which is conducted after exercising proper due diligence ingluding adherente te "Know Your
Custamer” guitlelines as applicable in respective jurisdiction.

Other than the pature of transactions described above, the Bank has not advanced 7lant [ investag / provided puarantee or seeurlty 1o of tn any sther perion
with an understanding to lend/finvest/provide guaranter or secudlty or the fke to o in any other persoa. Simiiatly, other than the natore of transactions
described above, the Bank has not received any funds from any other persen with an understanding that the Bank shall deng or Invest of provide guarantee
or securily of the like 1o or in any other pefspa,

w} Pravious yeor sudit
The financial results for the yeer ended March 31, 2021 were audited by another firm aof Charterad Arcountants, MSKE & Assoclates, bn which they hud
issuad unmodified opinion,

¥} Comparatives
$iguras for Ihe previous year have baan ragrouped and raclassifiad wherever necessary to tonform with the current year's presestation,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Jana Small Finance Bank Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jana Small Finance Bank
Limited (“the Bank”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Profit and
Loss Account, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949, Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, (“ Accounting
Standards”) as applicable to banks and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at March 31, 2022, its profit and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (S5As). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report,
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1. Identification of Non-Performing Advances (‘NPA;i ‘and Provisioning on

Advances:

Total Loans and Advances as at March 31, 2022: Rs 13,250.32 crores

Gross NIPA as at March 31, 2022: Rs 756.90 crores

Provision for NPA as at March 31, 2022: Rs 243.65 crores

Refer Schedule 18.7(a) “ Asset Quality - Classification of advances and provisions held” of the

financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Identification of NPA and measurement of
provision on account of NPA is made based on
the assessment of various criteria stipulated in
the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI') guidelines on
‘Prudential Norms on Income Recognition,
Asset  Classification and  Provisioning
pertaining to advances’ ('IRACP').

The Bank is also required to apply its
judgement to determine the identification and
provision required against NPAs by applying
quantitative as well as qualitative factors. The
risk of identification of NPAs is affected by
factors like stress and liquidity concerns in
certain sectors.

The provision against advances is based on
criteria such as past due status, out of order
status etc. The provision in respect of such
NPAs are made based on ageing and
classification of NPAs, recovery estimates,
value of security and other qualitative factors
and is subject to minimum provisioning levels
prescribed by the RBI and approved policy of
the bank in this regard. In addition to this, for

e Tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls (including
application controls) over approval,
recording, monitoring, and recovery of
loans, monitoring overdue/stressed
accounts, identification of NPA,
provision for NFPA, and valuation of
security including collateral. Testing of
Application controls includes testing of
automated controls, reports and
system reconciliations.

s LEvaluated the governance process and
tested controls over calculations of
provision on non-performing
advances, basis of provisioning in
accordance with the Board approved

policy.

o Selected the borrowers based on
quantitative and qualitative risk factors
for their assessment of appropriate
classification as NPA including
computation of overdue ageing to
assess its correct classification and
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restructured accounts, provision is made for
erosion/  diminution in fair value of
restructured loans, in accordance with the RBI
guidelines. Further, NPA classification is made
borrower wise whereby if one facility of the
borrower becomes NPA then all facilities of

such a borrower will be treated as NPA.

Additionally, the Bank makes provision on
exposures that are not classified as NPA
including  identified advances or group
advances that can potentially slip into NPA.
These are classified as contingency provisions.

The Management of the Bank also made an
assessment of the impact on borrowers account
due to Covid -19 pandemic and in line with the
COVID 19 Regulatory Package announced by
the RBI in respect of moratorium and
restructuring of advances as relief measures to
the borrowers.

We have identified 'Identification of NPA and
Provisioning on Advances' as a key audit
matter in view of the significant level of
estimation involved, as well as the stringent
compliances laid down by the RBI in this
regard.

provision amount as per the IRACP
norms and Bank policy.

Performed other substantive procedures
including but not limited to the following:

-
5

Selected sample of performing loans-and
assessed them independently as to
whether these should be classified as
NPA;

For sample selected, examined the
securily valuation, financial statements
and other qualitative information of the
borrowers;

Considered the accounts reported by the
Bank and other Banks as Special Mention
Accounts  (“SMA”) in RBI's Central
Repository of Information on Large
Credits (CRILC) to identify stress;
Performed inquiries with the credit and
risk departments to ascertain if there were
indicators of stress or an occurrence of an
event of default in a particular loan
account or any product category which
needs to be considered as NPA;

Assessed the appropriateness of asset
classification and adequacy of related
provisioning by performing procedures
such as computation of overdue ageing,
assessment of borrower level, NPA
identification ~ and  verification  of
applicable provision rates as per IRACP
norms and Bank's Policy on test check
basis;

Selected and tested sample of accounts
which were restructured under MSME
restructuring circular and Resolution
Framework for Covid - 19 related stress
circular for their compliance with the RBI
directions; and
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% Assessed the adequacy of disclosures
against the relevant accounting standards
and RBI requirements relating to NPAs.

2. Information Technology (“IT”) Systems and Controls:

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

The Bank has a complex IT architecture to
support its day-to-day business operations.
High volume of transactions are processed and
recorded on single or multiple applications.

The reliability and security of IT systems plays
a key role in the business operations of the
Bank. Since large volume of transactions are
processed daily, the IT controls are required to
ensure that applications process data as
expected and that changes are made in an
appropriate manner.

Appropriate  IT  general controls and
application controls are required to ensure that
such IT systeins are able to process the data, as
required, completely, accurately and
consistently for reliable financial reporting.

We have identified ‘IT systems and controls” as
key audit matter because of the high level
automation, significant number of systems
being used by the management and
the complexity of the IT architecture and its
impact on the financial reporting system.

_| pertaining to backup,

Page 4 of 14

Our Audit procedures with respect to this
matter included:

o For testing the IT general controls,
application controls and IT dependent
manual controls, we involved specialists as
part of the audit. The team also assisted in
testing the accuracy of the information
produced by the Bank’s IT systems.

» Obtained a comprehensive understanding
of IT applications implemented at the Bank.
It was followed by process understanding,
mapping of applications to the same and
understanding financial risks posed by
people-process and technology.

Key IT audit procedures includes testing the
design and operating effectiveness of key
controls  operating  over user  access
management (which includes user access
provisioning, de-provisioning, access review,
password configuration review, segregation of
duties - and  privilege access), change
management (which include change release in
production environment are compliant to the
defined procedures and segregation of
environments is  ensured), program
development (which include review of data
migration activity), computer operations
(which includes testing of key controls
Batch  processing
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(including  interface  testing, incident
management and data centre security), System
interface controls. This included testing the
requests for access fto systems were
appropriately  logged,  reviewed  and
authorized,

* In addition to the above, the design and
operating  effectiveness  of  certain
automated controls, that were considered
as key internal system controls over
financial reporting were tested using
various techniques such as inquiry, review
of documentation/record/reports,
observation and re-performance.

*  Wealso tested few controls using negative
testing technique.

¢ Tested compensating controls and
performed alternate procedures, where
necessary. Understood where relevant,
changes made to the IT landscape during
the audit period.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

¢ The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the Chairman’s Statement, the Directors
Report including annexures to the Directors report and Corporate Governance Report
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statement and our
auditors report thereon and the Pillar I Disclosures under New Capital Adequacy
Framework (Basel Il Disclosures). The other information is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report,

* Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and Basel
lII Disclosures and accordingly will not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.
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e In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

o« When we read the Other Information, if we conclude that -there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance as required under SA 720 (Revised) ‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating
to Other Information’.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these f(inancial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in
accordance with the provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949,
Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and the
circulars, guidelines and the directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India, from time to
time. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process
of Bank,
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Bank has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast si gnificant doubt on the Bank's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as
a going concern.
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* Lvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act and Section 30(3) of the Banking Regulation Act,
1949, based on our Audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit
and found them to be satisfactory.

b) In our opinion, the transactions of the Bank which have come to our notice have
been within the powers of the bank.
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¢) As explained in the paragraph 2 below, the financial accounting system of the
Bank are centralised and, therefore, accounting returns are not required to be
submitted by branches.

d) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Bank so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
¢) The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

f) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act as applicable to the Banks.

g) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Bank's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the entity
being a banking company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial
remuneration is not applicable by virtue of Section 35B(2A) of the Banking Regulation
Act, 1949,

j)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2021, in our opinion and

~==—to-the-best-of-ourinformation-and-according-to-the-explanations-giver-to-us:— ;

i.  The Bank has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements - Refer Schedule 18.13 to the financial statements;

it. ~ The Bank did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Bank;
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V.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Bank to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Bank
("Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Bank from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Bank shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come te our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

The Bank has not declared any dividend during the year.

2. We report that during the course of our audit we have visited and performed select
relevant procedures at 30 branches. Since the Bank considers its key operations to be
automated, with the key applications largely integrated to the Core Banking System, it
does not require its branches to submit any financial returns. Accordingly, our audit is
carried out centrally at Head Office and Central Processing Units based on the records
and data required for the purpose of Audit being made available to us.
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Other Malter

The audit of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 was conducted
by M/s MSKC & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the statutory auditor of the
Bank, who had expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements,
Accordingly, we M M Nissim & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants and Brahmayya &
Co,, Chartered Accountants do not express any opinion on the figures reported in
the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021.

Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified in respect of the above
matter.

For M M Nissim & Co LLP For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 107122W/W100672 Firm Registration No:0005155
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Jana Small
Finance Bank Limited (the “Bank”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Bank for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Bank’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Bank considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Bank’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013, the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Bank based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the "Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporling and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk thata material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
cffectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatément
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Bank’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Bank's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Bank's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the Bank; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Bank are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Bank; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Bank's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
the Bank has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control
over financial reporting established by the Bank considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M M Nissim & Co LLP For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 107122W/W100672 Firm Registration No:0005155
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Sanjay Khemani G. Srinivas

Partner Partner

Membership No: 044577 Membership No: 086761

UDIN: 22044577 AJCOBD9922 UDIN: 22086761 AJPUNV7232
- Date: May 17,2022 Date: May 17,2022

Place: Mumbai Place: Bengaluru
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